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Company Profile
NG

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”, “we"” or “us”) are a leading spicy snack food
enterprise integrating R&D, production and sales in China. The Group was
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code:

9985.HK) on December 15, 2022.

Based on traditional formulas, the Group started the Chinese seasoned
flour products (also commonly known as Latiao (3{4)) industry, created
our first Latiao (3R1&) snack in 2001, leading the standards construction of
Latiao industry. With our outstanding product development capabilities,
the Group has successfully diversified into vegetable products, bean-
based products and others, including Konjac Shuang (BE%£58), Fengchi
Kelp (BFZ /&%), XIAO MO NV (/NEZ) and others. The Group has further
launched new products like explosively spicy Mala Mala (X i (& 2k 5K it
R ER), explosively spicy vegetarian tripe Konjac Shuang (BsREEM
&%) and others in the Current Year, which are quite popular among
consumers.

Adhering to our product development philosophy of “maximizing the
intrinsic value of nature with an industrialized approach”, the Group
continuously upgrades existing products and launches new products,
focuses on quality through establishing an industry-leading production
system and strict quality assurance system.

We are a popular snack food brand among young consumers in China.
The Group focuses and understands the needs of young consumer
groups, constantly enhances brand value through novel and interesting
interactions with consumers, and keeps up with current hot topic trends
to give the brand new vitality. In 2024, we have won more than 20
awards, including “Hurun China Top 100 Domestic Brands List” by Hurun
Report, “ 2024 Food & Beverage Sector Innovation Power List -Top 10
Brands Favored by Generation Z” and “2024 Most Promising Growth
Companies in the Consumer Sector” by National Business Daily and the
“The 31st China International Advertising Festival Youth List -2024 Vibrant
Brands Favored by College Students” by China Advertising Association.

The Group has an omni-channel sales and distribution network that
effectively reaches consumers, we have quickly adapted to the evolving
purchasing behavior of consumers and expanded to supermarkets,
chained convenience stores, traditional e-commerce channels and
emerging snacks specialty retailers, content e-commerce channels
and social e-commerce channels which have wide exposure to young
consumers.
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We adhere to the mission “to let the world fall in love with Chinese
flavors” and are continuously committed to the good vision of “making
authentic Chinese gourmet more entertaining, casual, convenient,
affordable, data-enabled and automated, ultimately build a great business
that brings joy and happiness to people for 123 years”. We adhere to the
core value of “Integrity, Innovation, Customers First, Employee Oriented”,
continuously offer consumers better products and a cheerful consumption
experience.

The Group was selected as a constituent stock by Hang Seng Indexes
Company Limited on February 21, 2025. The Indexes included:

(1) Hang Seng Composite Index;

(2) Hang Seng Composite Industry Index - Consumer Staples;
(3) Hang Seng Composite LargeCap & MidCap Index;

(4) Hang Seng Composite MidCap Index;

(5) Hang Seng Composite MidCap & SmallCap Index;

(6) Hang Seng Consumption Index;

(7) Hang Seng SCHK Consumption Index;

(8) Hang Seng SCHK Consumer Staples Index

The aforementioned changes took effect on March 10, 2025.
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Definitions

"AGM"
[FERRERAE ]

"Articles of Association” or “Articles”
[ARER I EE

“Audit Committee”

[BEZZEE]
“Board” or “Board of Directors”
3=

“Cayman Companies Act” or
“Companies Act”

[R2EE(REE)ERFNE)]

“China” or “PRC" or “Mainland China”

[FPEE ekl AR E A

"Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ =R AR R

"Corporate Governance Code”
KpEER<TAD]

“Current Year” or “Year” or “2024"

[AFE ]

“Date of Adoption”
[ERam A HA

“Director(s)"”

[E%]

"ERP system”
[ERPZ 4 |
"ESG”

[ESG]

"FSSC 22000

[FSSC 22000

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, June 12, 2025
RATEH20255F6 A 12H (28N BRI FERR RS

the articles of association of the Company, as amended, which was effective on the
Listing Date
ARARA ET BEBERB AR ERR(KIEE])

the audit committee of the Company

ARBEZEREE

the board of Directors of the Company

ARREES

the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
MEREEEE22B(ARE) 1961 FE3FEN - K& RIERT) GETEERT - #
FESIAE A TT HAE2K)

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of this annual report, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan

BEARLNE - SAFEREMS - FREES - RPIRAHE

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules, and unless the context
otherwise requires, refers to Mr. LIU Weiping, Mr. LIU Fuping, HH Global Capital,
Amused Town Limited, Decision Stone Limited, Adroit Fairy Limited, Beacon Flash
Limited, HH Green Philosophy and HH Innovation Group

MXESERMEN  BIETEE  FEFHRE - MAMEIRER - Amused Town
Limited * Decision Stone Limited * Adroit Fairy Limited * Beacon Flash Limited  F1%
FERLRAMERELFT AR ETRADME T RE

Corporate Governance Code in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

CEMARBDMIERCI<REERFRID

the year ended December 31, 2024
HZE2024F12A31BIFE

January 1, 2021, the date on which the Company approved and adopted the RSU
Scheme
20211 A1 8 - BVZARQ RN ERAN R $I A B A2 5T 216 H B

director(s) of the Company

RARES

enterprise resource planning systems, which is a business process management
system consisting of integrated software applications that help manage a business
and automate many back office functions related to technology, service and human
resources

TEBERAE RS — B RBIEHHEREFNERREERER  AIHE
BERIW A ZIAEM - RERANERIEENEZAEEESE

environmental, social and governance
RIE - HERES

Food Safety System Certification, a food safety management certification scheme
that consists of three components: ISO 22000, sector specific Pre-Requisite Programs
and additional requirements. Besides these three components there is a FSSC
22000-Quiality option based on the additional requirements of ISO 9001
EmEZTEFERE  —HESZAEAXKTINRMET 2 EERRFEE - BISO
22000 ~ FrEATERAIR T RMMMNER « RZF=(HEAKIT D SHEER
1SO900 1Mt NZESKHIFSSC 22000 — B E3EIH



Definitions &

"Group” or “our Group” or
“we" or “us”

[ A= B Ikl F A

"HACCP”

[HACCP]

“HH Global Capital”
[FIFZIRER ]

"HH Green Philosophy”
[FOMAR IR R

“HH Innovation Group”
[ FnAnEEE R

“Hong Kong” or "HK"
(&%)

"Hong Kong Listing Rules” or
“Listing Rules”

[(FEEMRAD IS ETAR A

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange” or
“Stock Exchange”

[ 2578 B S P Bl Bt 52 |

"IFRS(s)"
(BB 15 S 2RI |

“Initial Public Offering” or “IPO”
[BRAREE]

"ISO”

[1so]

"Latest Practicable Date”
[ &% AT7 H A
“Latiao”

[ 2RI |

“Listing”
[ £

"Listing Date”

[ HE]

our Company and its subsidiaries (or our Company and any one or more of its
subsidiaries, as the context may require)

ARBREMBAR (R EME - ARRREEA—FKRERMEAF)

a quality management system which identifies and evaluates points during production
in order to set up measures and control hazards to ensure product safety
—BESEERE  BEIRNFAEEREPNERLY - SITSEERITIENE
= RMERERLD

HH Global Capital Ltd
M ZIRERGR LA

HH Green Philosophy Ltd
MR EIRRERAF

HH Innovation Group Ltd
FMEEEIFERAR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEB R ATERR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

EEBMARZMBERARER EMARR - K PRER] -~ FFEsAE M ES
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBARXHMBRAA

International Financial Reporting Standards

(BB B5E2ER])

the Hong Kong public offering and the international offering

BEELHBRENBRRE

an International Organization for Standardization, a non-governmental organization
based in Geneva, Switzerland, for assessing the quality system of business
organizations

BIF S LA, - —[EANERNIm T AARMIEBUNAL - Bat b2 AMN

GERA

April 23, 2025, being the latest practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining
certain information contained in this annual report prior to its publication

202554 H23 R » BIARERA DRI REE N ERAEE TERHRKEA TS

a type of seasoned flour product, which is a popular spicy snack food in China made
from wheat flour and chili

—IEERAE R G - — /N BRI AR A P BRI TR A B

listing of the shares on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

MR BB PAEIR LT

Thursday, December 15, 2022, the date on which our shares are listed and from
which dealings therein are permitted to take place on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
RRRAD R E BB AT B R ERREEN RS - /2022512 4158 (281)
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2024 F#



Definitions &3

“Luohe Pingping Plant”
2R ¢ T |

"Luohe Weidao Plant”
(2R &S T

“Luohe Weilai Plant”
[ VR0 127 2R Tk

“Luohe Xinglin Plant”
DR TR

“Model Code”
[{EZEZE=FAID]

“Nomination Committee”

[IRERELEZ
“OEM”
[OEM ]

"Ping Ping Foods”
[‘FFRm

“Previous Year” or “2023"

[ EFE]

"“Prospectus”

[HBRE ]
“province”
[&]

"R&D"
[Fh3

4

“Remuneration Committee’
[FEES ]

"Reporting Period”
[ ¥ 5

“RMB" or “Renminbi”
[ARE]

"RSU Scheme”

[ 52 B8 1B f B s =t &) |

"SFO"
[(FExHLHAGED)]

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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one of our production plants located in Luohe, Henan Province

A — KA R T A A EE TR

one of our production plants located in Luohe, Henan Province

B —FKALRA R RIA A A TR

one of our production plants located in Luohe, Henan Province

HA—RALR B E R T A A EE TR

one of our production plants located in Luohe, Henan Province

I —FKALRA R RIA A A TR

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers under
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
CETRADMIERCIK EHEITAERETE AR ZNFLESFAD

the nomination committee of the Company

ARAREEER

original equipment manufacturer

[REEEIER

Luohe Ping Ping Foods Co., Ltd.
BN EFREmMAREEAT

the year ended December 31, 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

the prospectus of the Company dated December 5, 2022
HEA20224 12 ASAM AR R BREHAZ

a province or, where the context requires, a provincial level autonomous region or
municipality, under the direct supervision of the central government of the PRC

B RONEME - ARERIPEPABNEREENEED

research and development
I E R

the remuneration committee of the Company

AREHNERS

the period from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024
20241 A1BZE2024F12 A31HEE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

FEEEEB AR

the restricted share unit scheme which was approved and adopted by the Company
on January 1, 2021 to motivate and reward the Directors, senior management
members and other employees who contributed to the development of the Group
202161 A1 BARR AW ERKE Z R B ETE] - BRME R R RS
ERRFLERNES SREREREMES

The Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(BHLEEBROINEBENFEST1E)



Definitions &

“subsidiary(ies)”
[FHE AR ]

"Weilong Biotechnology”
[ DR

“Weilong Commerce”

[DrmE]

"WL Delicious” or “the Company”

or "our Company”

[PREWK IR ARF

“Zhumadian Weilai Plant”

[ 5 55 /5 &5 T |

has the meaning ascribed to it in Schedule 1 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
HBEBBENIE622BC ARG R IFTERE

Luohe Weilong Biotechnology Co., Ltd.
BN D YR A R AT

Luohe Weilong Commerce Co., Ltd.

BRI E AR AR

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd (I Jr Jbk 4 BRiZAE AR A F)), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on July 6, 2018
DRERSIKIZRARNE - —KN2018F7 A6 B EREFHSTMA LR ER

27

our production plant located in Zhumadian, Henan Province

HAILFOA R A B S B T A A TR

ERERSRERERAT
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Corporate Information
NEER

SHARE LISTING
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Stock Code: 9985)

LISTING DATE
December 15, 2022

REGISTERED OFFICE
PO Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman

KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN PRC

Southwest Corner

Intersection of Dongfanghong Road and Zhongshan Road
Shaoling District

Luohe, Henan

PRC

TB-East Building, MIXC Park
No. 6, Lane 206, Haojing Road
Minhang District

Shanghai

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 701, 7/F

Tower 2, Silvercord

No. 30 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

COMPANY'S WEBSITE

www.weilongshipin.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Mr. LIU Weiping (Chairman)
Mr. LIU Fuping (Vice Chairman)
(will be appointed as the Chief Executive Officer on 30 April 2025)
Mr. SUN Yinong (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned as an executive Director on March 27, 2025;
will resign as the Chief Executive Officer on April 30, 2025)
Mr. PENG Hongzhi
Mr. LIU Zhongsi
Mr. YU Feng (appointed on April 25, 2024)
Mr. CHEN Lin (resigned on April 25, 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. XU Lili

Mr. ZHANG Bihong

Ms. XING Dongmei
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Ms. SHEN Xiaochun
Mr. LI Kin Wai

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. ZHANG Bihong (Chairman)
Ms. XU Lili

Ms. XING Dongmei

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. LIU Weiping (Chairman)

Ms. XU Lili

Mr. ZHANG Bihong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. XING Dongmei (Chairladly)

Ms. XU Lili

Mr. YU Feng (appointed on April 25, 2024)
Mr. CHEN Lin (resigned on April 25, 2024)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Luohe Wuyi Road Branch
China CITIC Bank Zhengzhou Beilong Lake Branch
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
Zhengzhou Zhenggang Six Road Branch

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISOR
Clifford Chance

27/F, Jardine House

One Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

PRC LEGAL ADVISOR
Commerce & Finance Law Offices
12-14th Floor, China World Office 2
No. 1 Jianguomenwai Avenue
Beijing

PRC

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER AGENT

Maples Fund Services Limited

P.O. Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong
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Financial Overview

IEHE

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

20205 20214 20225 20235 20244

(RMB in million) ~ (RMB in million) ~ (RMB in million) ~ (RMB in million) (RMB in million)

(AREBERL) (AREBERT) (AR%EER) (ARBEET) (AR%AER)

Revenue WA 4,120.4 4,800.2 4,632.2 4,871.7 6,266.3

Gross profit e 1,565.7 1,793.0 1,959.6 2,322.7 3,016.1

Profit for the year ERFIE 818.8 8267 151.3 880.4 1,068.1

Adjusted net profit for the year' 4 A FARSEAIE! 8212 907.8 9131 970.3 1,104.3
Adjusted basic earnings per share GRS HBE AT

(RMB) (AR 041 045 0.42 042 0.48

Note: e
1. Equals profit for the year plus share-based payment expenses and listing 1.  ERFRFEMNEARG AEROSRASL L ETH
expenses. X o
As at December 31,
MW12A31H

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2020 20214 2022 2023F 20245

(RMB in million) ~ (RMB in million) ~ (RMB in million) ~ (RMB in million) (RMB in million)

(AR¥BET) (AR¥AET) (AR¥EET) (AR¥EERT) (AR¥EER)

Current assets RBEE 1,860.1 2,986.3 3,557.2 2,874.7 3,519.7

Non-current assets EREEE 1,080.4 2,204.3 3,373.1 41789 4,662.7

Total assets BERSE 2,940.5 5,190.6 6,930.3 7.053.6 8,182.4

Current liabilities nBEE 1,168.0 1,255.5 1,000.2 908.0 1,700.0

Non-current liabilities FRBEE 140.2 265.2 405.7 4397 476.0

Total liabilities BEAE 1,308.2 1,520.7 1,405.9 13477 2,176.0

Net assets FEE 16323 3,669.9 5,524.4 5,705.9 6,006.4

Working capital BEEXK 692.1 1,730.8 2,557.0 1,966.7 1,819.7

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd

Annual Report 2024



Financial Overview Ef &t &

SUMMARY OF KEY FINANCIAL METRICS

FRMEERES

2024 2023 Change

2024F 20234 23

Gross margin FEF= 48.1% 47.7% 0.4 pp
EBITDA margin’ BRITEBEmMAER 27.5% 29.3% -1.8 pp
Net profit margin? FE R &2 17.0% 18.1% -1.1pp
Return on assets? BEE R 14.0% 12.6% 1.4 pp
Return on equity* P25 O] R R 18.2% 15.7% 2.5 pp
Inventory turnover days GFERABRE 72.9 days X 73.0 days & -0.1 days X
Trade receivables turnover days B 5 W R KB E R E 3.0 days X 4.4 days X ~1.4 days X
Trade payables turnover days B SN RREERE 21.2 days X 25.2 days & -4.0 days X
Gearing ratio® BRBELRS 6.5% 3.2% 3.3pp
The liability-to-asset ratio® BEBEL R 26.6% 19.1% 7.5 pp
Cash flow ratio of operating activities’ £&%&)E&)IR &R 2 Ly X7 1.2 1.3 0.1

Notes:

1.

Equals net profit for the year plus depreciation and amortization expenses,
interest expenses and income tax expense, divided by revenue and multiplied
by 100%

Equals net profit for the year divided by revenue and multiplied by 100%

Equals net profit for the year divided by the average of the beginning and
ending balance of total assets for that period and multiplied by 100%

Equals net profit for the year divided by the average of the beginning and
ending balance of total equity for that period and multiplied by 100%

Equals total interest-bearing borrowings divided by total equity and multiplied
by 100%

Equals total liabilities divided by total assets and multiplied by 100%

Equals cash amount from operating activities divided by net profit for the year

fia

1. SERFEFMNEMELFESREER  FSER MG

FER  BBRUA - BFEIA100%

2. ERFEEFFERRAA - BILA100%

v+

3. ERFEFNERAZBEBYEAREELENT

HfEsR - BFERLA100%

4. FERFEFFERIAZ ARSI RS REREENT

Bk - BERIA100%

5. SR EEEEERUEREE - BRIA100%

6. FRABERFERINEERT  BENA100%

7. SEREEEDAERSSTERAFEFMNE

DRERERERARDF

2024 F#

11



Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

“We specialize in turning authentic Chinese gourmet into casual snack food that consumers can enjoy anywhere and
anytime. We are committed to adhering to the core value of “Integrity, Innovation, Customer First, Employee Oriented”
and the vision of “making authentic Chinese gourmet more entertaining, casual, convenient, affordable, data-enabled
and automated, ultimately build a great business that brings joy and happiness to people for 123 years” that continuously
provides better products and pleasant consumption experience for consumers.”

[HRAIFERN K BEERERITEMHEE A RN ZEANARB R - LARAAD - 8% - BPF—  BEIAKINZ
DEEBNERERRLE L - KREML - B BRI BB B8t LE23FHNERTA INEREFRS K8
B A HEE R E A ERM B AR R R -

1 2 WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2024



Chairman’s Statement EfERE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of WL Delicious, | hereby submit to all shareholders the annual
results of the Group for the Current Year.

The year of 2024, for WL Delicious, was a year of perseverance, effectively
implementing various business development strategies and achieving
growth. As domestic consumers have become more cautious and
rational in their consumption, high-quality products, reasonable pricing,
continuous brand innovation, precise and effective marketing and efficient
service have continued to drive the unique resilience and vitality of the
domestic snack food industry.

Under such a background, the Group remained strong confidence
and actively expanded its market presence, and the overall business
operations and financial performance demonstrated a positive growth
trend. The overall revenue of the Group for the year was RMB6,266.3
million, representing an increase of 28.6% as compared with the Previous
Year; gross profit margin was 48.1%, representing an increase of 0.4
percentage points as compared with 47.7% in the Previous Year; net
profit was RMB1,068.1 million, representing an increase of 21.3% as
compared with the Previous Year.
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Chairman’s Statement /&R 5

During the Current Year, the Group continued to deeply understand
consumer needs and launched a variety of new products that are deeply
loved by consumers based on their current taste preferences, consumption
scenarios and consumption habits, further enriching the Group's Product
matrix.

During the Current Year, the Group continued to expand and optimize
its sales channels, advancing its omni-channel strategy across online and
offline. Offline, we further strengthened cooperation with traditional
channels such as chained supermarkets and convenience stores, while
also actively exploring emerging channels such as snack specialty retailers,
warehouse membership stores to better meet consumer needs. Online,
in addition to strengthening partnerships with mainstream e-commerce
platforms and optimizing store operations and marketing strategies, we
also actively explored new models such as content-driven e-commerce
and social e-commerce to build closer connections with consumers.
Concurrently, the Company actively pursued expansion into overseas
markets.

During the Current Year, through continuously innovative marketing
strategies and brand initiatives, the Group actively cultivated a youthful,
personalized, and fun brand image to resonate more deeply with young
consumers, integrate into their lifestyles, and enhance their affinity and
loyalty towards the Group. Brand marketing initiatives such as “Durian
flavored Latiao (##E ER15)" generated positive responses among young
consumer groups. Simultaneously, the Group emphasized the “humanistic
core” of the brand, actively fulfilling its social responsibilities, focusing on
giant panda conservation, and supporting public welfare undertakings,
comprehensively strengthening the Group's brand image.

During the Current Year, we remained committed to “employee-oriented”
values, optimizing its talent management mechanisms and fostering
efficient organizational growth. Concurrently, the Group actively pursued
“data-enabled” and “automated” initiatives to comprehensively drive
improvements in operational and management efficiency.

Looking forward to the New Year, we will continue to monitor industry
and consumer trends, strengthen product innovation and brand
building, expand sales channels, prioritize sustainable and high-quality
development, embrace change with agility, and enhance the supply chain,
data-enabled capabilities, and organizational team construction. Through
these efforts, the Group strives to continuously improve operational
efficiency and create values for its shareholders and customers.

LIU Weiping
Chairman of the Board
Hong Kong, China
March 27, 2025
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

MACRO AND INDUSTRY ENVIRONMENT

Looking back at 2024, in the face of a complex and challenging domestic
and international environment, China’s economy maintained overall
stability, achieving 5% growth for the year. This fully demonstrated the
resilience and potential of the domestic economy amidst both internal and
external challenges. The steady economic recovery and gradual rebound
in consumer confidence have injected new vitality into the market.

China’s consumer market, with its vast scale and dynamic growth,
continues to play a central role in driving economic growth. Shaped by
the global economic landscape and China’s own economic development,
the Chinese consumer market is constantly evolving with new and rapid
changes. Consumer needs, preferences, and behaviour patterns are
becoming increasingly fragmented. This “era of fragmented needs'”
sees a growing number of consumers embracing a “rational” and “self-
indulgent” approach to consumption. They prioritize the purchase of
high-quality and reliable products. In particular, the younger generation,
as key influencers and trendsetters in the consumer market, are especially
focused on sophisticated lifestyles, exceptional consumer experiences
and personalized consumption. Their brand awareness is also gradually
strengthening. These emerging trends are creating more new structural
business opportunities for consumer brands and driving continuous
innovation, enabling brands to respond quickly to market and consumer
changes.

On July 30, 2024, a meeting of the Political Bureau of the CPC Central
Committee emphasized shifting the focus of economic policy more
towards improving people’s livelihoods and boosting consumption.
Against this backdrop, the food and beverage industry was showing
a robust recovery. The “Food is Paramount: 2024 Chinese Food and
Beverage Industry White Paper?,” a joint publication by Frost & Sullivan
and Foodaily, indicates that China’s casual snack food market, driven
by the leisure needs of young consumers, is experiencing steady growth
through continuous innovation and targeted marketing strategies.
Meanwhile, emerging retail formats for snack foods, such as snack
specialty retailers, and online content-driven e-commerce, are experiencing
rapid expansion and high-growth rates due to their advantages in offering
a wide range of brands, diverse product selections, and excellent value for
money, accelerating the evolution of sales channels. Facing such a rapidly
evolving market landscape, consumer brands must actively embrace
changes and accelerate the innovation of products and services so as to
gain a competitive edge in the market.

l Major Release | The Era of Fragmented Needs: Unlocking Brand Opportunities
— Social Touch

Z Frost & Sullivan and Foodaily Jointly Release ‘Food is the First Necessity: 2024
China Food and Beverage Industry White Paper’ — FrostSullivan.com
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2024, the Group remains committed to turning authentic Chinese
gourmet into casual snack foods that consumers can enjoy anytime and
anywhere. We have continued to enhance our corporate culture. While
maintaining our original mission of “letting the world fall in love with
Chinese flavours”, we have further updated our vision to “make authentic
Chinese gourmet more entertaining, casual, convenient, affordable, data-
enabled and automated, and ultimately build a great business that brings
joy and happiness to people for 123 years”, we have also refined our
core values to be “integrity, innovation, customer first, and employee-
oriented.” This is aimed at fostering a highly efficient, pragmatic,
open and innovative work environment that focuses on the quality of
customer service and prioritizes employee experience and growth, thereby
continuously driving the sustainable and healthy development of the
enterprise and, in turn, providing better services and experiences for our
clients and consumers.

During the Current Year, the Group has been committed to continuous
innovation. By leveraging deep consumer insights to identify market
needs and strengthening its research and development capabilities, the
Group firmly believes that product competitiveness is the foundation
of its development. It is the fundamental element for establishing
connections and trust with consumers, ultimately building long-term
loyalty. During the Current Year, the Group continued to adhere to its
multi-category product strategy, further expanding its product portfolio
and continuously improving product quality and innovation capabilities.
We have consistently upgraded and innovated in areas such as product
flavour, product technology, and product packaging, remaining dedicated
to crafting quality products with dedication, improving product quality,
and meeting the diversified and personalized needs of the market and
consumers.

During the Current Year, the Group further aligned itself with the lifestyles
and consumption habits of younger consumers through a diverse portfolio
of online and offline marketing campaigns. By strengthening consumer
engagement, we propelled continuous brand rejuvenation and market
penetration, thereby further enhancing overall brand dynamism. Focusing
on brand communication for the Group’s large single product, “Konjac
Shuang,” we consistently launched innovative marketing strategies.
Through creative campaigns and digital promotions, we further increased
market penetration within the konjac snack category. Simultaneously,
the “XIAO MO NV” IP became a significant driver for brand rejuvenation.
The Group implemented various marketing activities centered around this
image, further enhancing brand interactivity and dynamism.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Furthermore, cross-brand collaborations and pop-up events also became
significant formats for the Group’s brand promotion in 2024. For example,
the Group collaborated with the mobile game “Eggy Party,” launching a
co-branded “Kiss Burn” product. The “Durian flavored Latiao” themed
pop-up store marketing campaign, among others, also garnered extensive
social media attention, further boosting brand buzz.

During the Current Year, the diversification of China’s retail channels
accelerated. While traditional channels continued to experience
consumer attrition, small-sized retail models such as convenience stores
and community supermarkets exhibited growth resilience due to their
immediacy and convenience. Concurrently, a variety of emerging channels,
including snack specialty retailers, content e-commerce platforms,
warehouse membership stores and others, experienced rapid proliferation,
accelerated changes in the snack food industry. The Group actively
embraces changes, capitalizes on the trend of channel diversification,
and continuously implements its omni-channel strategy to build stronger
connections with consumers. Simultaneously, we proactively drive
innovative marketing approaches and refine user operations to further
enhance the experience for both clients and consumers.

During the Current Year, the Group recorded a total revenue of
RMB6,266.3 million, representing an increase of 28.6% as compared with
RMB4,871.7 million in the Previous Year, primarily driven by the Group’s
effective implementation of various business development strategies
throughout the Current Year, particularly the proactive advancement of
omni-channel development and brand building. As a result, both online
and offline revenues demonstrated steady growth. The Group’s gross
profit increased by 29.9% from RMB2,322.7 million in the Previous Year
to RMB3,016.1 million in the Current Year, and the Group’s gross profit
margin increased from 47.7% in the Previous Year to 48.1% in the
Current Year, mainly due to an increase in capacity utilization rate. The
Group's net profit increased by 21.3% from RMB880.4 million in the
Previous Year to RMB1,068.1 million in the Current Year primarily due
to the increase of the Group’s revenue. The Group’s net profit margin
decreased from 18.1% in the Previous Year to 17.0% in the Current Year.
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OUR PRODUCTS

The Group is a leader and pioneer in the spicy snack food industry in
China. The Group adheres to the strategy of multiple categories with
its products covering seasoned flour products, vegetable products, and
bean-based and other product categories. Seasoned flour products, also
commonly known as Latiao (3{£), primarily comprise Big Latiao (K#a%5),
Mini Latiao (/NEEAR), Spicy Hot Stick (JifiR#E), Mini Hot Stick (/)NREE),
Kiss Burn (#i#&), Mala Mala (i i) and others. Vegetable products
primarily comprise Konjac Shuang (BE33%), Fengchi Kelp ([E1Z/8%5) and
XIAO MO NV (/NEE%Z). Bean-based and other products primarily comprise
Spicy Tofu Skin (B#kZ ) and others.

During the Current Year, the Group continued to drive product
innovation, launching a series of new products that further broadened its
product portfolio and strengthened its leading position in the spicy snack
market.

Within the “Mala Mala” and “Konjac Shuang”
unleashed explosively spicy Mala Mala and explosively spicy vegetarian
tripe konjac Shuang, which crafted with carefully selected new-generation
chili peppers, premium Wudu Sichuan peppercorns, and others. This multi-
chili blend delivers an intense aroma of peppers and an unforgettably fiery
and numbing Mala sensation.

series, the Group

Within the
barbecue-flavored Latiao, which crafted with carefully selected Xinjiang
cumin, Wudu Dahongpao peppercorns, and traditional Chinese spices like
cinnamon and licorice. Experience the sizzling aroma of BBQ meat and
irresistible satisfaction in every bite.

"Big Latiao” series, the Group launched Finger-Licking

Within the “XIAO MO NV" series, the Group launched “XIAO MO NV”
spicy barbecue-flavored konjac vegetarian tendon, “XIAO MO NV” hot
and sour hotpot-flavored konjac vegetarian tripe. Among which, spicy
barbecue-flavored konjac vegetarian tendon are expertly crafted with
Wudu Sichuan peppercorns and Xinjiang cumin to recreate authentic
barbecue flavour. Combined with an upgraded cutting technique, they
deliver a chewy yet delightfully crisp texture, while also being rich in
dietary fibre, perfectly balancing delicious taste and health. Meanwhile,
the hot and sour hotpot-flavored konjac vegetarian tripe features a large-
slice design and a crisp, bouncy texture, catering to consumers’ dual
desires for novel flavours and healthy food.
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Within the “Fengchi Kelp” series, the Group launched extra spicy braised
flavour Fengchi Kelp which is building upon the classic spicy flavour.
Carefully selected from pristine sea areas, only the tender 25% middle
section is used as the prime ingredient. Naturally infused with herbs
and prepared using a secret braising technique, it boasts a rich, braised
aroma, a soft and chewy texture, and a delightful sweetness. Experience
authentic Chinese braised flavour and indulge guilt-free with its low-
calorie goodness.

These new products not only catered to consumers’ pursuit of diverse
and unique flavours but also demonstrate the Group’s keen insight into
market trends. They infused the brand with fresh vitality and lasting
appeal, further enhanced the brand’s competitiveness and market
influence.

During the Current Year, our revenue was primarily derived from the sales
of seasoned flour products and vegetable products. The following table
sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by product categories for the years
indicated:
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Year ended December 31,

BZ12A318LEE
Product category EmER 2024 2023
20245 2023%F
% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
ARMTT EHEKA% ARETT (E8EA%
Seasoned flour products S A S R 2,667,081 42.6 2,549,244 52.3
Vegetable products AR m 3,370,552 53.8 2,118,519 435
Bean-based and other products IREREMER 228,693 3.6 203,903 4.2
Total &5t 6,266,326 100.0 4,871,666 100.0
DREGRESRIZRERD A

2024 F#

19



20

Management Discussion and Analysis & I & 5 5m B2 2547

Revenue generated from our seasoned flour products increased by
4.6% from RMB2,549.2 million in 2023 to RMB2,667.1 million in 2024,
primarily due to omni-channel construction. Revenue from our seasoned
flour products as a percentage of total revenue decreased from 52.3% in
2023 to 42.6% in 2024, reflecting the solid growth momentum for our
vegetable products.

Revenue from our vegetable products increased by 59.1% from
RMB2,118.5 million in 2023 to RMB3,370.6 million in 2024 and its
percentage to our total revenue increased from 43.5% in 2023 to 53.8%
in 2024, mainly due to (i) the Group continued to strengthen its omni-
channel construction and brand building; (i) our continuous expansion of
the production capacity for such products during the Current Year.

Revenue from our bean-based and other products increased by 12.2%
from RMB203.9 million in 2023 to RMB228.7 million in 2024 and its
percentage to our total revenue slightly decreased from 4.2% in 2023
to 3.6% in 2024, primarily due to the planning changes of the Group’s
braised eggs.

OUR CUSTOMERS AND SALES CHANNELS

Customers of the Group are primarily offline and online distributors,
and to a lesser extent, direct sales customers and individual consumers
who purchase from our self-operated online stores. Through in-depth
channel building over years, we have a nationwide distribution network
that deeply penetrates the Chinese market. As of December 31, 2024,
we cooperated with 1,879 offline distributors and served for the key
main national or regional supermarkets, snack specialty retailers, chained
convenience stores and other points of sale (the “POS").

In 2024, emerging retail channels in China experienced rapid growth.
Snack specialty retailers, with their good-value-for-money proposition and
regional characteristics, expanded rapidly, gaining significant popularity
among younger consumers. Warehouse membership stores, on the other
hand, attracted the middle class with high-quality goods, imported snacks,
and membership services, enhancing the overall consumer shopping
experience.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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We are improving the sales team’s capabilities of serving different kinds
of channels. While empowering our distributors to improve the service
capabilities of the points of sale (the “POS"”), we continued to enhance
the execution capabilities of POS to strengthen the selling power of each
POS. During the Current Year, we continued to deepen our engagement
with traditional offline channels and proactively seized development
opportunities presented by emerging channels. By flexibly adapting to
market demands, we effectively boosted sales performance at our offline
POS.

The Group has proactively expanded its presence across major e
commerce platforms, implementing multiple initiatives to grow its
online business and create strategic synergy with offline channels. On
mainstream e-commerce platforms, the Group has established official
flagship stores on Tmall, JD.com, and Pinduoduo, ensuring product
visibility and seamless purchasing channels across platforms. Meanwhile,
on emerging content-driven platforms such as Douyin, Kuaishou, and
Xiaohongshu, the Company actively leverages short videos, live streaming,
and interactive content to engage younger consumer demographics.
These efforts enhance brand interaction and amplify market influence
through innovative digital touchpoints.
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The table below sets out a breakdown of our revenue by sales channels  T~ERS 7| RTREAR R FIZHEERES DU AR
for the years indicated: 4 -
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A318LFEE
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
ARMTT (EEBA% ARETT (EHEKA%
Offline channels® FTEED 5,561,595 88.8 4,361,222 89.5
Online channels R ERBE 704,731 11.2 510,444 10.5
— Online distribution@ — iR FHeiEe 280,386 4.5 195,932 4.0
— Online direct sales® — 4R FEHEe 424,345 6.7 314,512 6.5
Total A5t 6,266,326 100.0 4,871,666 100.0

m Offline channels mainly include distribution through our offline distributors
and direct sales through some emerging channels.

@ Online distribution refers to the sales model under which we distribute goods
to online retailers such as Tmall Supermarket and JD Supermarket, or other
online distributors, who then sell our products to consumers.

e Online direct sales refer to the sales model under which we sell products
directly to consumers through our self-operated online stores on multiple
third-party online platforms, such as Tmall, JD.com, Pinduoduo, Douyin and
Kuaishou.
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Our revenue from offline channels increased by 27.5% from RMB4,361.2
million in the Previous Year to RMB5,561.6 million in the Current Year,
reflecting our achievements in our offline omni-channel construction
and brand building during the Current Year. Our revenue from offline
channels as a percentage of our total revenue slightly decreased from
89.5% in the Previous Year to 88.8% in the Current Year, remaining
stable.

Revenue from online channels increased by 38.1% from RMB510.4 million
in the Previous Year to RMB704.7 million in the Current Year, of which
our revenue from online distribution increased by 43.1% from RMB195.9
million in the Previous Year to RMB280.4 million in the Current Year and
our revenue from online direct sales increased by 34.9% from RMB314.5
million in the Previous Year to RMB424.3 million in the Current Year,
reflecting the Group’s proactive efforts in advancing online omni-channel
development, particularly its active embrace of growth opportunities
brought by emerging online channels.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of revenue contribution as a
percentage of our total revenue from offline distributors by geographic
locations of the offline distributors’ registered offices during the years
indicated:

AEEN GTIREELENRARLEFENARE
4361 2B B TIEIN27.5% % ARHS5,561.6 B8 T
RELT ARFEAREBG T 2 REERANRR RS
HEERS SRR - R T RBEEMRAGEFIRKA
B D EEERI89.5% S HUR L £88.8% « 1hEL
RISETE o

REERN BERBEEHORABHEFEOARE
51048 &L MN38. 1% EAFEARNMARE704.78
B EFREGLEHENBARLEFEOARE
19598 BT RA3 1% ERNFENMNAREK 28047
B RERLEHENBAREFENARE3145
BETLENMI%ERFERANMARKI243EE
T RETAEERBGEEG ERRERER  BRIR
TEIRE IS5 AR R BT RAIE RIS o

TREIINFR ARG T HE R0 BEREN
AE E R PRI E D AR BAA - LAME TR
RTHRMABBE D HSIR

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A3181LFE
2024 2023
202445 20234
% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
ARBTT (HBBA% ARBTT 1H8KA%
Eastern China FEH 1,313,111 23.6 967,111 22.2
Central China e 875,412 15.7 749,874 17.2
Northern China b 763,600 13.7 643,350 14.8
Southern China R 1,094,525 19.7 781,126 17.9
Southwestern China Bl PE R 737,132 13.3 548,759 12.6
Northwestern China AR P b s 698,599 12.6 573,379 13.1
Overseas?¥ N 79,216 1.4 97,623 2.2
Total &5t 5,561,595 100.0 4,361,222 100.0

We generated relatively balanced revenue from offline distributors in
different geographic areas in China. The geographic distribution of our
domestic revenue is generally in line with the economic development and
population of different regions in China. During the Current Year, revenue
generated overseas was immaterial.

@ Revenue contributed overseas is from offline distributors registered overseas.
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OUR PRODUCTION FACILITIES AND CAPACITIES
During the Current Year, the Group continued to drive automation
upgrades of our production facilities, ensuring efficient production and
consistent product quality. Leveraging our five major production bases, we
have a dedicated team of professional electrical control and mechanical
design engineers who are responsible for the in-house research and
development of automated production equipment and systems, tailored
to our specific process requirements. Most of our automated equipment
is developed in-house. Concurrently, we established partnerships with
equipment manufacturers to further automate our production processes
and upgrade our production facilities.

Meanwhile, to maximize production efficiency and broaden our product
portfolio, the Group also cooperates with reliable OEM suppliers for the
production of products that we sell in relatively smaller volumes.

As of December 31, 2024, the Group had five plants in Henan Province,
namely Luohe Pingping Plant, Luohe Weilai Plant, Zhumadian Weilai Plant,
Luohe Weidao Plant and Luohe Xinglin Plant, of which Luohe Xinglin Plant
continues to expand and part of the production lines of the plant have
already been put into operation.

The tables below set out the details of our designed production capacity,

BMNEERERER
AEER  AEERERPEERENECAEL

BREVEENERMERTE - AEBKTAREE
Eith - BMEE FEN BT R B - BB
M ITEEX - EEEEEREBENREOFE
BMRES BBMERED RANILFRE - R - HfIHE
RERERELAERENSEERFEEL - Wi
BB EERE ©

R SERLERESAECERARERMANERE
& REETRER] SEHNOEMBERSEEERFIEE
RS EmR °

HZE2024F12A83108 ' AEEEAEEHAERET
B ARIARATFIR ORAGKIE - 55
RIRR - SEARE TRISE AR IR - HRas
MIEEEERET  ZIHOT D ERCIRE -

TRESIHAIR AR EIEIRE BRI R TRREI 2 1R

actual production, and utilization rates for the periods indicated, by 3t Eft - BRESE KA AREE -
product types and by plants:
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HLEE
2024 2023
20245 2023F
Designed Designed
Production Actual Utilization  Production Actual  Utilization
Type of Products EmER Capacity Production Rate Capacity  Production Rate
RTER BREE ERAAE HiER  BRES ERFIRE
(ton) (ton) (ton) (ton)
(W) (1) (1) (1)
Seasoned flour products ARG 202,065.0  132,113.9 65.4%  237,722.4  114,7916 48.3%
Vegetable products ARG 129,986.0  125,116.3 96.3% 96,228.0 69,309.0 72.0%
Bean-based and other products ~ FHG R EMER 6,124.4 5,439.7 88.8% 5,934.4 3,893.4 65.6%
Total et 338,175.4  262,669.9 77.7%  339,884.8  187,994.0 55.3%
DREGRESRIZRERD A

2024 F#
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Our designed production capacity for seasoned flour products in the
Current Year decreased compared with the Previous Year, primarily due
to the planning adjustment of production lines for some products. Our
designed production capacity for vegetable products increased compared
with the Previous Year, primarily due to the addition of new production
lines in Luohe Xinglin Plant. Our designed production capacity for bean-
based and other products remained stable compared with the Previous
Year. Our overall utilization rate increased compared with the Previous
Year, primarily attributable to the increase in sales volume of the Group
during the Current Year.

AEFER - RAFRER M E RFTEER EFER
D TRZHNIOERAR - BB MAORFTERE
REFEEFA T2RA/EMT BY EmA)HE
R SERREMERNRETERST - BRERT
RERLFERMET  TEROANAEEERFE
MIHERIER -

Year ended December 31,

BZE12A31BLEE
2024 2023
20245 2023F

Designed Actual Utilization  Designed Actual  Utilization
Production Plants EEIR Capacity Production Rate Capacity  Production Rate
RTERE BREE ERFAX RtER BRES ERNAX

(ton) (ton) (ton) (ton)

(Wg) (g) (148) (158)
Luohe Pingping Plant BRI TR 71,757.5 56,663.3 79.0% 95,168.2 46,707.7 49.1%
Luohe Weilai Plant SR RT PR TR 60,999.7 41,945.2 68.8% 57,4622 31,984.8 55.7%
Zhumadian Weilai Plant B IS @R IR 48,125.0 31,442.8 65.3% 67,4351 24,502.5 36.3%
Luohe Weidao Plant BN &R TR 105,450.6 83,539.2 79.2% 89,892.0 56,787.5 63.2%
Luohe Xinglin Plant SRR 51,842.6 49,079.4 94.7% 29,927.3 28,0115 93.6%
Total @at 338,175.4 262,669.9 77.7% 339,884.8 187,994.0 55.3%

During the Current Year, the changes for the annualized designed
production capacity among our plants were mainly attributable to (i)
the shift of some production lines to Luohe Xinglin Plant and Luohe
Weidao Plant with higher efficiency; (ii) the adjustment of some product
specifications; and (iii) the adjustment of some production lines for some
products. Overall utilization rate in 2024 increased compared with 2023,
primarily attributable to the increase in sales volume of the Group during
the Current Year.
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OUR FOOD SAFETY AND QUALITY CONTROL

As one of China’s leading snack food enterprises, we always take quality
as our core and regard food safety as the “lifeline” of our enterprise. We
continuously improve and upgrade our food safety management system.
We adhere to product quality and strictly control every aspect from raw
material selection to the entire production process to ensure that we
provide consumers with safe and reliable products. At the same time,
we actively promote innovation and research and development, and aim
to meet consumers’ increasingly diverse needs with healthier and more
delicious snack foods. We are committed to winning the trust and support
of the market with high-quality products.

The Group established a sound food safety and quality assurance
system of the whole chain and the whole product life cycle. The system
covering the whole process of production, covering R&D, procurement,
manufacturing, storage, distribution to sales and other links. Throughout
the production process, the entire production process can be controllable
by using the HACCP hazard analysis and critical control points. In terms of
product inspection and release, “Product Inspection and Release Control
Procedures” are strictly implemented; in terms of detection capacity,
HPLC-MS, GC-MS, ICP-MS and other high-end detection equipments
are applied to strictly monitor the food additives, heavy metals and other
indicators; in terms of risk management, advance prevention is carried
out through the “Food Safety Information Collection and Early Warning”,
“Food Safety Monitoring and Risk Assessment Norms”, “Food Safety
Self-inspection Management System” and other systems. In terms of risk
management of new products, risk assessment is carried out under “New
Product Quality Inspection Standards”.

The Group has also set up a quality management department, which
is mainly responsible for raw materials and packaging materials
management, production process management and product testing
management, OEM and customer service management and food safety
and quality assurance, and strives to build a closed-loop management
system of source control, production control, strict certification control
and after-sales control, so as to provide consumers with the best quality
products.
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OUR R&D CAPABILITIES

The Group consistently implements the product R&D philosophy
of “maximizing the intrinsic value of nature with an industrialized
approach,” continuously building core competitiveness in the field of food
technology. Based on a systematic R&D framework, we have established
a modular innovation system covering the entire industry chain. R&D
teams are set up in areas such as food basic research, flavour research,
process technology, industrialized production technology, and packaging
freshness preservation technology. These teams are staffed with technical
experts to conduct in-depth specialized research. Through collaboration
among professional teams, the technologies from each segment are
integrated into the development stage of seasoned flour products,
vegetable products, bean-based products, and other snack food products,
significantly improving the Group's success rate in upgrading existing
products and launching new products.

The Group has also established long-term cooperative relationships
with leading domestic food science universities, jointly building an
industrialization demonstration base for food engineering technology
research centres. We conduct joint research on forward-looking and
critical technologies within the industry to achieve resource sharing and
complementary strengths, and are committed to nurturing reserve talent,
continuously strengthening our product and technology R&D advantages.
As of December 31, 2024, the Group has established a basic and applied
R&D centre in Shanghai, with a professional research team covering fields
such as food engineering, food safety and nutrition, polymer chemistry,
biology, and testing and inspection. Through diverse R&D initiatives,
by continuously upgrading, innovating, and researching emerging
technologies, we aim to meet constantly changing consumer preferences
and drive sustainable sales growth.

OUR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Group continues to strengthen its digitalization strategy, actively
advancing the development of “WL Delicious Digitalization”, dedicated
to enhancing quality and efficiency for our business units, ultimately
achieving our strategic goals of “automation and data-enablement.”
Leveraging a robust IT foundation, the Group effectively monitors
and optimizes our management systems, spanning multiple processes
including procurement, sales, and R&D.
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Our information systems are built upon four core infrastructure
foundations: laaS/PaaS Platform, three-tier network architecture, data
center, and hybrid cloud platform. Building on this foundation, and
integrated with the seamless collaboration of various systems, we have
comprehensive coverage including ERP, Sales Management System,
"One-item-one-code” System (product traceability), Warehouse and
Transportation System, Supplier Relationship Management (SRM)
System, Quality Management System, Enterprise Asset Management
(EAM) System, 5G+ Industrial loT, Equipment Management System,
Manufacturing Execution System (MES), OA Workflow Approval
System, and Expense Control & Reimbursement System. This achieves
comprehensive support for core functions such as product operations and
enterprise management.

During the Current Year, we continued to advance the development
of our Sales Management System, aiming to accelerate market
expansion, enhance the points of sale (the “POS") coverage and
operational efficiency, and strengthen the quality of POS management.
Simultaneously, we have been persistently striving to build an agile and
rapid-response supply chain system. By implementing a Supply Chain
Planning System, Order Dispatch System, and fully automated intelligent
Warehouse System, we ensure that market demand can be promptly
fulfilled and warehousing and logistics costs are effectively reduced.

Furthermore, by launching and continuously optimizing the Quality
Control System, R&D Project Management System, Human Resources
Management System, and Bl Analysis Platform, we have further enhanced
the overall corporate operational efficiency. We also persistently
advanced process standardization initiatives, particularly conducting a
comprehensive review and implementation of production floor operation
standardization. Throughout the construction of all information systems,
we adhered to the principle of process standardization and system
embedding, streamlining unnecessary process steps and increasing risk
control points to improve business operational efficiency.

Simultaneously, the Group is continuously driving optimization of the
ERP system, Supplier Collaboration Management System, E-commerce
platform middle tier system, and Industrial Internet initiatives, among
others. This comprehensively empowers business development and further
enhances corporate operating efficiency.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The following financial results are extracted from the financial report of
the Group prepared in accordance with the IFRS during the Reporting
Period:

Revenue and Gross Profit

The Group recorded a revenue of RMB6,266.3 million in the Current Year,
representing an increase of 28.6% compared with RMB4,871.7 million in
the Previous Year, primarily due to the active promotion of omni-channel
construction and brand building by the Group in the Current Year.

Gross profit of the Group increased by 29.9% from RMB2,322.7 million in
the Previous Year to RMB3,016.1 million in the Current Year. Gross profit
margin of the Group increased by 0.4 percentage points from 47.7% in
the Previous Year to 48.1% in the Current Year, mainly due to an increase
in the capacity utilization.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses of the Group amounted to RMB1,026.3
million in the Current Year, representing an increase of 27.2% compared
with RMB806.7 million in the Previous Year. In the Current Year,
distribution and selling expenses of the Group accounted for 16.4% of
the total revenue, representing a decrease of 0.2 percentage points as
compared with 16.6% in the Previous Year. The increase in the Group's
distribution and selling expenses was mainly due to an increase in the
employee benefit expenses, promotion and advertising expenses as well
transportation expenses in the Current Year.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by 7.0% from RMB458.9
million in the Previous Year to RMB491.0 million in the Current Year. The
proportion of administrative expenses to total revenue decreased from
9.4% in the Previous Year to 7.8% in the Current Year.

Other Income, Net
Other income, net, of the Group increased by 77.0% from RMB43.5
million in the Previous Year to RMB77.0 million in the Current Year.
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Other Gains/(Losses), Net

The Group recorded RMB174.8 million in other losses (2023: RMB2.8
million in other gains), which was primarily due to the combined effect
of fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
foreign exchange losses and impairment of property, plant and equipment
in the Current Year. The fair value losses on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss was mainly in relation to fair value changes of the
Group's investment in a wealth management fund (the “Fund”), namely
“Enhanced Fixed Income SP”, through a reputable financial institution
since 2021. In October 2024, the Group was notified by the financial
institution that the Fund is undergoing its voluntary winding up petition
and the joint provisional liquidators (“JPLs") are appointed to formulate
a viable restructuring plan. The Directors considered the JPLs’ assessment
reports that fair value of the Group’s investments in the Fund is less likely
than not that it could possibly be fully realisable as of December 31, 2024,
and the decline in fair value of RMB125,488,000 was recognised in profit
or loss during the year ended December 31, 2024.

The Group is exploring appropriate remedial actions in recovering the
fair value loss of the Group's investments in the wealth management
fund through a reputable financial institution, which amongst others,
maintaining communication with the financial institution and JPLs on
formulating a viable restructuring plan, seeking professional legal support
and contemplating possible legal actions for the purpose of protecting the
interests of the Company.

Finance Income, Net

Net finance income of the Group decreased by 8.8% from RMB175.6
million in the Previous Year to RMB160.2 million in the Current Year,
primarily due to a decrease in interests from banks.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense of the Group increased by 23.6% from RMB398.9
million in the Previous Year to RMB493.1 million in the Current Year,
primarily due to an increase of the taxable income of the Group in the
Current Year.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year of the Group increased by
21.3% from RMB880.4 million in the Previous Year to RMB1,068.1 million
in the Current Year.
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Dividends

Based on the Group’s overall performance, having accounted for,
including but not limited to, surplus, overall financial conditions, capital
expenditures of the Group in the Current Year, the Board will propose
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to declare a
final dividend (the “Final Dividend”) of RMBO.11 per share as of the end
of Current Year (inclusive of tax, amounting to a total Final Dividend of
approximately RMB258.6 million), representing approximately 24% of
the net profit of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2024. The
proposed Final Dividend and the Interim Dividend declared by the Board at
the board meeting held on August 15, 2024, totaled RMB634.8 million,
representing approximately 59% of the net profit of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2024. Besides the Board will propose to declare
a special dividend (the “Special Dividend”) of RMBO0.18 per share (inclusive
of tax, amounting to a total Special Dividend of approximately RMB423.2
million), representing approximately 40% of the net profit of the Group
for the year ended December 31, 2024. However, the implementation of
the Final Dividend and the Special Dividend is subject to the approval of
the annual general meeting. The Final Dividend and the Special Dividend
are expected to be paid on or about June 30, 2025.

Term Deposits with Initial Term over Three Months,
Restricted Cash, Cash and Cash Equivalents and
Borrowings

As of the end of Current Year, the sum of term deposits with initial term
over three months, restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to RMB5,267.5 million, representing an increase of
12.3% as compared with RMB4,690.5 million as of the end of Previous
Year, mainly attributable to the cash generated from operating activities,
which was partially offset by the cash used in the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment and the payment of dividends during the Current
Year. Borrowings of the Group were RMB180.9 million and RMB389.0
million as of the end of Previous Year and Current Year, respectively.
Borrowings of the Group were bank loans which the Group obtain for the
construction of plants and purchase of machinery and equipment.

Inventories

Inventories of the Group increased by 109.2% from RMB419.9 million as
of the end of Previous Year to RMB878.3 million as of the end of Current
Year, primarily due to the increased reserve of certain raw materials.
Inventory turnover days of the Group remained relatively stable at 73 days
in the Current Year and the Previous Year.
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Trade, Other Receivables and Prepayments

Trade receivables of the Group increased by 2.3% from RMB51.6 million as
of the end of Previous Year to RMB52.8 million as of the end of Current
Year. The turnover days of trade receivables decreased from 4.4 days in
the Previous Year to 3.0 days in the Current Year.

Other receivables of the Group decreased by 77.5% from RMB38.7
million as of the end of Previous Year to RMB8.7 million as of the end of
Current Year.

Prepayments of the Group increased by 58.3% from RMB121.2 million as
of the end of Previous Year to RMB191.8 million as of the end of Current
Year, primarily due to an increase in prepayments for raw materials.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of the Group were
RMB122.8 million and nil as of the end of Previous Year and Current Year,
respectively.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables of the Group increased by 29.1% from RMB164.7 million
as of the end of Previous Year to RMB212.6 million as of the end of
Current Year, primarily due to an increase in payables for purchasing raw
materials. The turnover days of trade payables decreased from 25 days in
the Previous Year to 21 days in the Current Year.

Other payables of the Group increased by 23.3% from RMB498.0 million
as of the end of Previous Year to RMB614.0 million as of the end of
Current Year.

Contract Liabilities and Refund Liabilities

Contract liabilities and refund liabilities of the Group increased by 189.5%
from RMB206.3 million as of the end of Previous Year to RMB597.3
million as of the end of Current Year, primarily due to increased orders for
the upcoming Chinese New Year at the end of Current Year.

Gearing Ratio

As of the end of Current Year, the gearing ratio of the Group, which is
calculated as total interest-bearing borrowings divided by total equity, was
6.5%, compared with 3.2% as of the end of Previous Year.

B 5 kEMBEWRFIER AN RIE
AEENESERFERHE LFERHAREST6
BETEINI%EHEAFERANARKES28EE
Lo BESEWRERERSN LFRENIARBRLE
RNEEH3Z.0K »

REBNEMERREREE LFERMNARE3ST
BEILRLTIIS%HEHEAFERNARKSTIES

JC °

AEBNBNRBEREE LFERNARE12128
BILIEMS8 3% EHEARAFEARANARKI1918EHE
TT 0 EBRAREMETERFIEE N -

UARBEFEERS
MERE
AEEFAOLDR EEE AL FB AL SRS
MEMEEBE LFREARAFERS A BARS
1228BBTRE -

SFAEHERENE

EZREMENTIE
AEBHNESRNRBERBEELFERNARE
1647 BB LN 1%EHEAFERNARE
2126 B ETT + B BN ERE RN B R 581
e BERMARERASREN FFENBR[ADER
FEH21K o

AEBNEMENRBEHBEE LFERNARE
4980 BB LEM2IINEHEARAFERMNARKE
614088 7T °

EREBERERRAE
AEBENARABEMNERFABHEE LFERHAR
#206 38 &L IN189.5% EHERFERNARE
597 3B BT TEHNANFEREEFTELM -

NS

BEAFER  AKEENBEL R (R EBHRE
BRARGRAETHE) R65%  MBZE FFERAR
3.2% °

DR ERSRIZERERD A
2024 F#

31



32

Treasury policy

The Group adopts a conservative financial management approach for
its treasury policy to ensure a sustainable working capital management
that the Group’s liquidity structure comprising assets, liabilities and
other commitments that fulfilling the Group operations requirements
and its capital commitments. In addition, the Group reviews the treasury
management policies on a regular basis so as to strengthen its investment
portfolio strategy, particularly in relation with the fund management
products to minimize the investment risk and protect the interests of the
Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group mainly operates in China with most of the transactions settled
in RMB. The functional currency of the subsidiaries in mainland is RMB,
while the functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries outside
mainland of China is HKD, USD or IDR. Both the entities in and outside
mainland of China have assets and liabilities, like cash at bank and other
major licensed payment institutions, restricted cash, term deposits with
initial term over three months which are denominated in USD, HKD and
IDR. Foreign exchange risk arises from the fluctuations in exchange rates.
The Group has continued to closely track and manage its exposure to
fluctuation in foreign exchange rates confronted by the majority of the
Group's deposits denominated in foreign currencies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As of the end of Previous Year and Current Year, the Group did not have
any significant contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As of the end of Current Year, the Group had capital commitments for
the construction of property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB169.4 million (Previous Year: RMB49.4 million).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As of the end of Current Year, the Group has pledged land use right
amounting to RMB89.8 million (Previous Year: RMB91.8 million).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITION
AND DISPOSAL

The Group did not have any significant investment held, or any material
acquisition or disposal of any relevant subsidiary, associate and joint
venture during the Reporting Period.
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FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

As of the Latest Practicable Date, save for the “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group did not have any
existing plans for acquiring other material investments or capital assets.

GOING CONCERN

On the basis of current financial projections and financing available,
the Group has adequate financial resources to continue its operation in
the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

OUTLOOK

In line with the mission of “letting the world fall in love with Chinese
flavors”, the vision of “making authentic Chinese gourmet more
entertaining, casual, convenient, affordable, data-enabled, automated
and ultimately building a great business that brings joy and happiness to
people for 123 years”, and the value of “Integrity, Innovation, Customer
First, Employee Oriented”, the Group continues to build a leading
company in the spicy snack food industry, thus providing more value to its
customers, employees, and consumers.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to deepen our multi-category
product strategy. We will gain insights into evolving consumer
preferences, develop more innovative products, and actively drive the
iteration of our existing products, thereby satisfying the diversified
and individualized consumer demands. Simultaneously, the Group will
further increase investment and strengthen management of our supply
chain, upgrade our quality control system, enhance product quality, and
continuously optimize the user experience.

In terms of brand strategy, the Group believes that continuous innovation
is the core driver of our growth. We will actively engage with younger
consumers through their preferred marketing approaches to create more
interaction and emotional connections, continuously enhancing our
influence within the younger consumer demographic. We firmly believe
that in a rapidly changing industry environment, only precise insight and
constant innovation can continuously invigorate brand vitality.

AREAREREFEE T

BERKATEY  [RBRETFEEN AR E R

FISERR SN AEEMRERAHEMERME
ABREREREE -
SRS

RIBRITMBRAN AT RORE - AEREERAK
KA RWMBERERRL - AUt EREMBHREER
ERAFECEEERE -

KERE
REE—BERAFEERAAT EHERK IOEBIAK
[ERERREL - KEL - Eil - BRI - 2
£~ B8 SEE123FNERTE INER - B
[R5 &I BFE— EIRKINEESR  #HE
TEREP RBET  REBEERHEZEENERK
REIRmMEERLE -

REARE  ARERHERCEMNS RERE - 7
EHRBEEFRNE L FRESRIFESR  LHESH
BEAEMAER - KM HEEEZ T REMEL
TR SR ¢ BRSNS B IR 45 B INK S R SR Y IR AN
EIE ARESEERE  RBAERME  TEEL
RFgs -

HERERETE - AEBAGHERERMIEAE
RHSIZE - RAISERRERFEERESENEHT
X BERHBLEELTZNEHNBEREE - 58
RARMEFEEERBTOTEN - HPBHRE
& EREECHITERED  HABERENTE
BIFT > A RESEABEREIE T o

DR ERSRIZERERD A
2024 F#

33



34

Management Discussion and Analysis & I & 5 5m B2 2547

In terms of channel strategy, the Group will continue to advance our
omni-channel presence, enhancing consumer accessibility. Regarding
offline channels, we will further optimize the structure of our traditional
channels, explore business opportunities in emerging channels, expand our
offline points of sale, and strengthen the execution capabilities of these
points of sale, thereby continuously improving our market penetration.
For online channels, we will continue to deepen the refined operation of
traditional e-commerce platforms, capture growth opportunities in new
channels such as content e-commerce and social e-commerce, strengthen
the deep integration of online and offline channels, and enhance the
consumer experience across all channels and in all scenarios.

Furthermore, adhering to improving supply chain quality and efficiency
is also a key development strategy for the Group. The Group actively
focuses on all aspects of the supply chain, continuously monitoring the
improvement of automation levels at each stage. This ensures product
quality while comprehensively enhancing the efficiency of the supply
chain.

The Group also emphasizes the advancement of digital construction,
continuously leveraging emerging technologies to enhance operational
efficiency and drive ongoing business innovation. Concurrently, the
development of organizational talent also plays a crucial role in corporate
operations. The Group will continue to optimize our organizational
structure, strengthen team building, and enhance talent development, to
provide talent assurance for business growth.

Finally, the Group will continue to stay true to our original aspiration and
keep our mission in mind, focusing on the creation of long-term corporate
value, actively practicing social responsibility, and promoting the long-
term sustainable development of the enterprise. We are committed to
creating more value for consumers, customers, shareholders, investors,
employees, and society as a whole.
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The Company attaches great importance to corporate governance,
especially the establishment of a diligent and conscientious Board of
Directors, and a sound risk management and internal control system. The
Company believes that this is very important for its development and the
protection of the interests of its shareholders. The Company has adopted
good governance and disclosure practices, and will continuously optimize
and improve the practices, and gradually establish a corporate culture
with high integrity.

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to strengthen the
implementation of the Company’s corporate culture through a number of
measures, details of which are set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
in the report.
For further information of the Company’s corporate culture, please refer
to the Group’s 2024 Sustainability Report (ESG Report) issued with the
report.

Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to the best practices in corporate governance,
and had complied with all the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2024.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and management of the
Company and is primarily responsible for formulating the overall strategy
of the Company, setting performance and management objectives,
evaluating business performance and monitoring management
performance. The Board assumes the responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the
business of the Group by directing and supervising the Group'’s affairs. All
the Directors should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company. The main duties of the Board are as follows:

a) Formulate long-term and short-term strategic direction of the
Company, including development strategy, major investment,
acquisition and disposal of significant assets;

b)  Approve the Company’s annual budget and business plan;

C)  Supervise the management of the Company;

d)  Approve financial reports, annual reports and interim reports.
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The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
the Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise
its powers in an informed manner, management provides monthly
management report and updates to the Board for the management
report, to provide detailed data on the Company’s performance, financial
position and prospects, supported by the most up-to-date financial data,
in order to ensure the Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information and may take independent professional advice if necessary.

The authorization granted by the Group’s Board to the management
mainly includes:

a) Decision-making rights of daily production, management and
operations (including purchasing raw materials, selling goods and
other transactions related to daily operations);

b) To implement annual production plans, investment plans, financial
budget and final accounts plans and capital expenditure matters
within the scope approved by the general meeting of shareholders
and the Board;

¢)  Appointment or dismissal of employees such as heads of various
departments and branches of the Company and other employees
excluding those who should be appointed or dismissed by the Board;

d)  Other matters authorized by the Articles of Association or the Board.

As for the matters that should be decided by the Board according to
laws and regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company, as
well as the matters that need to be decided by the Board, such as major
decisions, important personnel appointment and removal, key projects
arrangement and major capital operations, as well as the matters that
need to be decided by the general meeting of shareholders, shall not be
granted to the management to execute. The management shall faithfully
and diligently perform their duties in strict accordance with the scope
authorized by the Board.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for
Directors to buy and sell the Company’s securities.

After making specific inquiries to all Directors, they confirmed that they
complied with the provisions of the Model Code for the year ended
December 31, 2024.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Board and
independence in decision-making.

As of December 31, 2024, the Board of the Company comprises nine
Directors, including six executive Directors, namely Mr. LIU Weiping
(Chairman), Mr. LIU Fuping, Mr. SUN Yinong, Mr. PENG Hongzhi, Mr. LIU
Zhongsi and Mr. YU Feng, and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. XU Lili, Mr. ZHANG Bihong and Ms. XING Dongmei. The
Board is required to review periodically the contribution of the Directors in
discharging their responsibilities to the Company and whether they have
devoted sufficient time to discharge their responsibilities to the Company.

Mr. YU Feng has been appointed as an executive Director of the Company
with effect from April 25, 2024. Mr. YU Feng has obtained the legal
advice as stated in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on March 21, 2024
and confirmed that he understood his obligations as a Director of the
Company.

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationship among the Board
members are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report.

The Board has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules for the Current Year relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
and at least one independent non-executive Director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has also complied with the requirement under Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules that at least one-third of the members of the Board
must be appointed as independent non-executive Directors. The Board has
received from each of them a confirmation of independence according to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As each of the independent non-executive
Directors has confirmed their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, the Company considers them to be independent.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships among the members of the Board (including Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer), except as disclosed in the “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report.
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INSURANCES FOR DIRECTORS
The Company has made appropriate insurance arrangements with regard
to any legal proceedings against its Directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the Year, the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer were
separated and held by different individuals to ensure a balance of power
and authority. The Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company
is Mr. LIU Weiping and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company is Mr.
SUN Yinong (both are the executive Directors of the Company).

After the Reporting Period, Mr. SUN Yinong will resign from his position as
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect on April 30, 2025.
Mr. LIU Fuping has been appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, and his appointment will take effect on April 30, 2025. Please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated March 27, 2025 for details.

The relationship between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer is
set out in the section “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
of this annual report.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

We have adopted the Board diversity policy, which sets forth the means
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board. Under the Board diversity
policy, candidates for the Board will be selected based on a number of
diversity indicators, including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, industry experience, technical ability,
professional qualifications and skills, knowledge, length of service and
other relevant factors. We will also consider our own business model and
special needs. The final selection of Director candidates will be based on
the value and contribution that the candidates will bring to the Board.
As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Board comprises professionals
from different professional backgrounds in economics, finance,
accounting, law and management with different gender, age stages and
industry experience, which provide favorable support and protection to
ensure the good functioning of the Board. Meanwhile, there are two
female members on the Board of Directors, accounting for 22.22% of
the total number of Directors. The composition of the Board of Directors
complies with the provisions of the Listing Rules on the gender diversity
of Board members and the Company’s Board diversity policy. So the
Board does not make any measurable objectives. The Company values the
importance and benefits of gender diversity of Board members, and the
Board diversity policy of the Company can ensure that the Board will have
potential alternative successors to continue the existing gender diversity of
the Board.

Our Nomination Committee is responsible for the implementation of the
Board diversity policy. The Nomination Committee will review the Board
diversity policy from time to time to ensure its ongoing effectiveness and
we will disclose the implementation of the Board diversity policy annually
in our Corporate Governance Report.
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EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY

As at December 31, 2024, the proportion of the Company’s male and
female employees (including executive Directors and senior management)
was 52.37% and 47.63% respectively, therefore, the Company’s
employees (including executive Directors and senior management) has
achieved gender diversity. The Company will continue to consider the
view of diversity when hiring, which includes gender diversity.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
with its written terms of reference as set out below:

a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

d)  toreview the Company’'s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance practices and compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board made a lot of efforts in improving the
corporate governance system of the Company and enhancing the
corporate governance standards, including developing and amending
relevant internal management rules in accordance with the requirements
of relevant laws, regulations and regulatory rules as amended from
time to time, as well as the practice of the Company; monitoring and
organizing corresponding training courses for Directors and company
secretaries; regularly reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
domestic and overseas regulatory requirements and its implementation of
various internal corporate governance rules and policies, and reviewing
the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
the disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report. We will periodically
review and improve our corporate governance practices with reference to
the latest corporate governance developments.
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TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable training
for the Directors. The office of the Board has provided all Directors with
relevant guideline materials regarding the roles, duties and responsibilities
of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable to them,
duty of disclosure of interests and business of the Company. They have
also made timely updates on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and enhance all Directors’ awareness of good corporate governance
practices. The Company has mechanisms in place to allow the Directors
of the Company to seek independent professional advice in the discharge
of their duties and responsibilities to ensure that the Board has access
to independent views and opinions. The Board adopted a policy on
the seeking of independent professional advice by Directors on March
23, 2023 and will review the implementation status and effectiveness
of these mechanisms on an annual basis. The Directors confirmed that
they have complied with Code Provision C.1.4 under Section Il of the
Corporate Governance Code on Directors’ training. During the Year, all
of the Directors have participated in training courses or reading materials
on corporate governance and related topics to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills and provided relevant records of training to the
Company.

EEEI
AARBELHEAEENEIILBENEHRES - &
FERAEARESREEHESTAR BERE
T BEANEEMEEEER  EXEEETRA
NEVEBIES| AR I REREEECETHEIAD
MEGERESREONERORTIEE  BRER
WIRAZBESTHRITPEETATEHRNRH - A2
RIEHE AFAAREERETEBELEIMSK
BUEEER  MRAESCUEAIBUEINESR
BEEE0MN2023F3A23BRMNABEEEIBELE
¥BRZEE  UBBFRTZERS 2 BEiEin &
R - EEERC B EEERTANE—BHEH
BEFINTREXC14 - REE - 2HEECZ20
SRR MESECEE ARG ARENM AR
SR B EABARRE - WRAR RIS
ﬁ-o

Training
Participated in
during the
Reporting Period
(Note)
WEHRA
Name of Directors BEEHS Fr & EREE 3 (BiEE)
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. LIU Weiping BIBITEE a.b.c
Mr. LIU Fuping 2T & a.b.c
Mr. SUN Yinong BRIRR I ED ab.c
Mr. PENG Hongzhi TRERE a.b.c
Mr. LIU Zhongsi B BEA a.b.c
Mr. YU Feng? RESER a.b.c
Mr. CHEN Lin® BRI a.b.c
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Ms. XU Lili BERE L+ a.b.c
Mr. ZHANG Bihong R 3FasASEAE ab.c
Ms. XING Dongmei IS syt ab.c
Notes: PEE -
a:  Law firm training a. EENEREE
b:  Internal training and/or seminars and/or conferences and/or forums b.  REEIIRHEER S REER LB
¢ Reading or watching documents or information regarding Directors’ ¢, BIESEEEEEMER, S EE AR EMIEHEE

responsibilities and/or corporate governance and other related topics

(1) Mr. SUN Yinong has resigned as an executive Director of the Company with
effect from March 27, 2025.

(2)  Mr. YU Feng has been appointed as an executive Director of the Company
with effect from April 25, 2024.

(3)  Mr. CHEN Lin has resigned as an executive Director of the Company with
effect from April 25, 2024.
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POSITIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for providing leadership and control of the
Company, overseeing the Company’s business, investment and strategic
decisions, maintaining an effective risk management and internal control
system of the Company and monitoring the performance of the Company.
The Board currently has three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Each
Committee has its own terms of reference and reports to the Board on a
regular basis.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company held five Board
meetings and a general meeting. During the Reporting Period, the
attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings and general
meeting is as follows:

ESENBURER

EFESERRERERFART  BEARFES &K
B MEBORE - R R B]A A E b E TR K A AP
HELG  REARTNKRE - EEGRA TR=ZEZ
8g AEZZ8e REAZESNFMZEE-%
ZEENAEBERE  YEHPAEFSHRE -

EEgeEkREAE

HE2024F12A31BEFE - ARRIEHRITTHK

BEeed —AREARZ {EHRN SEERNE
CERNRIASHLFLENT

Attendance/No. of Meetings held

HERE BITERRH

Board Meetings General meetings
Directors = EEEER REXE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. LIU Weiping BT E 5/5 ”n
Mr. LIU Fuping gL 5/5 11
Mr. SUN Yinong** RIMR G~ 5/5 171
Mr. PENG Hongzhi TRELE 5/5 11
Mr. LIU Zhongsi 2B B 5/5 11
Mr. CHEN Lin* FRAR S A * 2/5 171
Mr. YU Feng* RAEE A 3/5 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES
Ms. XU Lili RBR LT 5/5 11
Mr. ZHANG Bihong SREsAEE 5/5 11
Ms. XING Dongmei MRt 5/5 11

* On April 25, 2024, Mr. CHEN Lin has resigned as an executive Director of the
Company and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board. On
April 25, 2024, Mr. YU Feng has been appointed as an executive Director of
the Company and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board.

**  Mr. SUN Yinong has resigned as an executive Director of the Company with
effect from March 27, 2025.

At Board meetings, the senior management of the Company reported
the information regarding business activities and development of the
Company to all Directors on a timely basis. The executive Directors also
often communicate with the non-executive Directors for their opinions on
the Company’s business development and operations. If any Director has
conflict of interests in any proposed resolution to be considered by the
Board, such Director shall abstain from voting on such resolution.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Chairman of the Company
held one meeting with independent non-executive Directors without the
attendance of other Directors.

* R2024F4F258  RMREABTARFRITES R
EE2HFMNEE K ERT - W2024F48258 @ &
BAEEEAARNARNTEERESSHINEES

o RNMBAEEBTAARWMITES - B20259F3/27H

REEFSEZRDHE  ARFSRERERERELE
ERUAFNEBZDMBROER - RITEETE
BHIFITEERN - WEBRRSFHAREGERMN
RESZZENER - MENEZEEZEHTUZE
MEMREPFENRER  MZESBAREEZ

HARMIEE

HE2024F12A3MBHLEFE  ARRIEETERE
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L
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

As of December 31, 2024 and up to the Latest Practicable Date, the Audit
Committee of the Company comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. ZHANG Bihong, Ms. XU Lili and Ms. XING Dongmei.
Mr. ZHANG Bihong currently serves as the chairman of the Audit
Committee. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

a) to review significant financial policies of the Company and their
implementation, and supervise the financial activities of the
Company;

b)  to review the financial information and relevant disclosures of the
Company;

) to consider and approve the risk management and internal control
evaluation proposal of the Company, and supervise and evaluate the
risk management and internal control of the Company;

d) to consider and approve the audit budget, remuneration of staff
and appointment and dismissal of major officers of the Company,
supervise and evaluate the work of internal audit of the Company
and formulate the medium- to long-term audit plan, annual working
plan and internal audit system setting plan of the Company as
authorized by the Board, and report to the Board;

e) to propose the appointment or dismissal of an external accounting
firm, supervise the work of the external accounting firm, and
evaluate the report of the external accounting firm to ensure that
the external accounting firm undertakes its audit responsibilities;

f)  to facilitate communications and monitor the relationship between
the internal audit department and the external accounting firm;

g) to monitor the non-compliance of the Company in respect of the
financial reports and the risk management and internal control; and

h)  other matters required by laws, regulations, regulatory documents,
the rules of the securities regulatory authority of the place where
the shares of the Company are listed and the requirements of the
Memorandum and the Articles of Association, and as authorized by
the Board.
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The Corporate Governance Code stipulates that the Audit Committee
shall at least meet twice a year. The Audit Committee held four meetings
for the year ended December 31, 2024.

(EBARTINDRE  BRZEQREVTFRITN
K& BE2024F 128310 IEFE EZEEE

BITTHRER

Attendance/No. of Meetings held

Directors BE HERYBITEERE
Mr. ZHANG Bihong (Chairman) SRFEAE(FE) 4/4
Ms. XU Lili R+ 4/4
Ms. XING Dongmei IS S g 4/4

As of the Latest Practicable Date, the Audit Committee has reviewed
the annual results announcement of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2024 and the interim results announcement of the
Company for the six months ended June 30, 2024, and believes that
the Company has complied with all applicable accounting standards
and regulations and made sufficient disclosures. The Audit Committee
has reviewed all material internal control rules, including the financial
and operational and compliance controls, as well as risk management
of the Company in 2024. The Audit Committee was satisfied with the
effectiveness and sufficiency of the internal control mechanism in its
operations. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the adequacy of
the Company’s resources, staff qualifications and experience in the
accounting and financial reporting function and the training programmes
and budgets received by its staff.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration of the auditors for
2024 and recommended the Board to re-appoint Ernst & Young, Certified
Public Accountants, as the auditors of the Company for 2025, subject to
the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As of December 31, 2024 and up to the Latest Practicable Date, the
Nomination Committee of the Company comprises the Chairman of the
Board and executive Director (Mr. LIU Weiping) and two independent
non-executive Directors (Ms. XU Lili and Mr. ZHANG Bihong). Mr. LIU
Weiping currently serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

a) to formulate procedures and standards for the election of Directors
and senior management and make recommendations to the Board
on the proposed procedures and standards;

b) to make recommendations to the Board on the nomination of
candidates for Directors, Presidents and secretary of the Board;

¢)  to preliminarily examine the eligibility of candidates for Directors and
senior management;

d) to make recommendations to the Board on the nomination of
candidates for chairmen and members of the Board committees; and
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e)  other matters required by laws, regulations, regulatory documents,
the rules of the securities regulatory authority of the place where
the shares of the Company are listed and the requirements of the
Memorandum and the Articles of Association, and as authorized by

e) AR RS REUXXM - ARBR EHiE
HFEETIRRIERMEMEIERA R SERMA
BREMNNARESTERENEMEE -

the Board.
The Corporate Governance Code stipulates that the Nomination (B ATANET @ IREEE QR LV BFELET—
Committee shall meet at least once a year. The Nomination Committee R &3 - B ZE2024F 128310 ILFE » 22ZE &
held one meeting for the year ended December 31, 2024. BITT—RSH -
Attendance/No. of Meetings held
Directors BE= HERY BITEERE
Mr. LIU Weiping (Chairman) RIBEFERE(FE) 7
Mr. ZHANG Bihong aR3RIBASEAE ”n
Ms. XU Lili BRI+ I7Al
DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY ESERAEE

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authorities for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a Director nomination policy, which sets out
the Company's criteria, procedures and processes for the nomination
and appointment of Directors, as well as relevant considerations for the
check and review of the composition of the Board. The aim is to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience, knowledge and diverse
perspectives to meet the requirements of the Company’s business.

The Director nomination policy sets out the factors used to assess
candidates for the proposed appointment of Directors and the

re-appointment of retired Directors, including but not limited to:

a) To evaluate, screen and recommend Director candidates to the
Board

Reputation for character and integrity;

ii.  Achievements, experience and other professional qualifications
in relevant industries involved in the Company's business;

iii.  Available time and related benefits to be invested in the duties
implementation of the Board;

iv.  Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,

skills, knowledge and years of service;

v.  The potential contributions that the candidate can bring to the
Board; and

vi.  Plans for Board succession in order.
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To assess and recommend to the Board the re-appointment of one
or more retiring Directors

The overall contributions and service of the retiring Director
to the Company, including but not limited to attendance
at Board meetings and/or committee meetings and general
meetings, if applicable, other than the level of participation
and performance at the Board and/or its committees;

ii.  Period of service for the retiring Director; and

ii.  Whether the retiring Director continues to comply with the
criteria.

The Nomination Committee will give due considerations to a number
of factors, including but not limited to, the Listing Rules, as amended
from time to time

The Nomination Committee will make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment of Directors in accordance with the following procedures
and processes:

The Nomination Committee may consult any sources (such as
referrals by the current Directors, advertising, recommendations
from third parties and shareholders of the Company) that it thinks
appropriate in the search or selection of suitable candidates and take
due account of the criteria;

The Nomination Committee may adopt any procedure, such as
interviews, background checks, presentations and third party
reference checks, that it deems appropriate in assessing the
suitability of candidates;

The proposed candidates will be asked to submit the required
personal data for consideration by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee may request additional information and
documentation from candidates if necessary;

After considering suitable candidates for the position of Director,
the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by a written
resolution, if deemed appropriate, to approve a recommendation for
appointment to the Board;

The Nomination Committee will provide the Remuneration
Committee of the Company with relevant information about the
selected candidate for consideration of the remuneration package of
the selected candidate;
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. Thereafter, the Nomination Committee will make recommendations
to the Board on recommended appointments and, in the case of
non-executive Directors, the Remuneration Committee will make
recommendations to the Board on recommended remuneration
packages;

e  The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be interviewed
by a member of the Board who is not a member of the Nomination
Committee before the Board considers and decides on the
appointment (as the case may be); and

e All appointments of Directors will be confirmed by filing with the
Companies Registry of Hong Kong the relevant Directors’ consent
to be Directors (or any other similar document requiring the relevant
Directors to confirm or accept their appointment as Directors, as
the case may be) for filing and updating the Register of Directors
of the Company. A Director shall agree to publicly disclose his or
her personal information in any document or relevant website in
connection with his or her appointment as Director.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director nomination policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company consists of two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. XING Dongmei and
Ms. XU Lili, and one executive Director, namely Mr. YU Feng. Ms.
XING Dongmei currently serves as the chairlady of the Remuneration
Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are as
follows:

a) to organize and formulate the remuneration policy and plan of
Directors and senior management and submit to the Board for
approval, and propose the remuneration distribution plan according
to the performance evaluation of Directors and senior management
and submit to the Board for approval; and

b)  other matters required by laws, regulations, regulatory documents,
the rules of the securities regulatory authority of the place where
the shares of the Company are listed and the requirements of the
Memorandum and the Articles of Association, and as authorized by
the Board.

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee of the Company
stipulates that the Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a
year. The Remuneration Committee held two meetings for the year ended
December 31, 2024.
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As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Remuneration Committee has
formulated the Directors’ remuneration policy and determined the
Directors’ remuneration policy in relation to the performance of the
executive Directors of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2024, evaluated the performance of the executive Directors, and
considered and approved matters relating to the existing share-based
share scheme, including the approval and adoption of the 2024 share
Incentive Scheme.

HEREATHRE  FHEESCHTESHMECE
NEFARREE2024F 12 A31B L FEHRTES
WERIRETEZOFIECR @ FTHERITEEHRE -
B RIDENRERG AERARGTEIRAESEERS
FEHE A K SR AN 2024 IR 10 B 5T 2

Attendance/No. of Meetings held

Directors 2x HERE EITEBRH
Ms. XING Dongmei (Chairlady) L (EmE) 212
Mr. CHEN Lin* [BR AR 4 A * 1/2
Mr. YU Feng* A 172
Ms. XU Lili BRI+ 2/2

* On 25 April 2024, Mr. CHEN Lin has resigned as an executive Director of the
Company and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board. On
25 April 2024, Mr. YU Feng has been appointed as an executive Director of
the Company and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board.

* 202448258  BMEEBEARTNITEER
EFEFTHNEZESKNERS - W2024F4A258 + &
BAEEEETARNARNTEERESEHWNEES
B B HLTS ©

TERM OF OFFICE OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS EHITESHER

Starting Date Expiry Date

Name i BR H J&im B HA
Ms. XU Lili GRRT+ May 10, 2024 May 9, 2027
2024458 10H 202745 89H

Mr. ZHANG Bihong RBATE May 10, 2024 May 9, 2027
2024957108 20274%5H9H

Ms. XING Dongmei MEMgz+ May 10, 2024 May 9, 2027
202453108 202745 H9H

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS IN RELATION TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors confirm their responsibility to prepare the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2024.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company in relation
to its reporting responsibility for financial statements is set out in the
independent auditor’s report on pages 98 to 104.

EEEENKHRROVES
EERAHGEARNREE20245 128318 IHFE
AP RERHET -
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REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditor, Ernst & Young, for audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended December 31, 2024 is set out below:

¥ BB Y 7 B

B E2024% 12 A31 B IEFENBZIRG MIEEZ
RIS MR R RIINEZ R LK SRR BB ER
FERTE BN D AT EF AN T

Fees Paid/Payable

e ENER
Service Category PR %8 5 (RMBAR¥)
Annual Audit Services FEEZRE 4,000,000
Non-audit Services (tax and ESG-related consultancy) LIRS (B MESGHEREFERA) 1,556,956
Total Bt 5,556,956

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors are responsible for supervising the preparation of annual
accounts in order to give a true and fair view of the financial position,
operating results and cash flow of the Company during the year. For
the purpose of the preparation of the financial statements for the
Reporting Period, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting
policies, adopted applicable accounting principles, made judgments and
assessments that are prudent and reasonable and ensured the financial
statements were prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors have
confirmed that the Company’s financial statements were prepared in
accordance with the requirements of laws and applicable accounting
principles.

The Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company. The review covered all the material aspects of its
internal controls, including the supervision of the financial and operational
and compliance affairs, as well as risk management.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast doubt upon the ability of the Company
to operate as a going concern. The statement of auditors about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this report.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. SHEN Xiaochun was appointed as the joint company secretary of the
Company on April 27, 2021. She joined the Company in October 2020
and has been responsible for investor relations management since then.
In July 2021, she was appointed as the investor relations director of the
Company. Since March 2024, she was appointed as the person-in-charge
of the capital market department of the Company.

Mr. LI Kin Wai was appointed as the joint company secretary of the
Company on April 27, 2021. Mr. Li is a senior manager of Corporate
Services of Tricor Services Limited, a global professional services provider
specializing in integrated business corporate and investor services. He has
over 11 years of experience in the corporate secretarial field.

The Company will ensure that Ms. SHEN Xiaochun and Mr. LI Kin Wai
continuously receive relevant training and support in relation to the Listing
Rules and the duties required to be performed by the company secretaries
of issuers listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Ms. SHEN Xiaochun
and Mr. LI Kin Wai received at least 15 hours of relevant professional
training in the Current Year, which complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules. The primary contact person of Mr. LI Kin Wai at the Company is Ms.
SHEN Xiaochun.

WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY

The Company has put in place whistleblowing policy which applies to
all the Directors and employees (including but not limited to permanent,
full-time, part-time and contract employees, etc.) of the Group and any
parties who deal with the Group (including but not limited to investors,
customers, contractors, suppliers, creditors and debtors, etc.). The policy
is designed to provide the employees and any external parties with
confidential whistleblowing channels to report to the Group the actual
or suspected illegal activities and misconducts in corporate financial
reporting, internal control or other areas. For the year ended December
31, 2024, the Company was not aware of any illegal activities and
misconduct.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Group does not tolerate any corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud or
money laundering during the course of its business activities. As such,
it has formulated an anti-corruption policy which prohibits all forms
of corruption practice by making reference to the relevant laws and
regulations. The anti-corruption policy forms an integral part of the
Group's corporate governance framework, which sets out the specific
behavioural guidelines that the employees of the Group must follow to
combat corruption. The anti-corruption policy is reviewed and updated on
a regular basis to align with the applicable laws and regulations as well as
the industry best practices.
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BOARD INDEPENDENCE ASSESSMENT MECHANISM
The Company has established a mechanism to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board. This is achieved by giving
Directors access to external independent professional advice from legal
advisers and auditor, as well as the full attendance of all independent
Directors at all the meetings of the Board and its relevant committees
held during the Reporting Period. The Board reviews the implementation
and effectiveness of the aforementioned mechanisms on an annual basis.
The Board Independence Assessment Letter has been sent to all Directors
for assessment and the Directors are satisfied with the structure, size,
composition and independence of the Board of Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company shall convene an extraordinary general meeting at the
request of shareholders who individually or collectively hold more than
10% of the Company’s shares. However, prior to the announcement
of the resolutions approved at the general meeting, the number of the
Company’s shares individually or jointly held by the above shareholders
shall not be lower than 10% of the total number of the Company’s shares
with voting rights and the Members' requisition must state the objects of
the meeting and the resolution proposed to be included in the agenda of
the meeting; should the shareholding is less than 10%, resolutions passed
at the extraordinary general meeting would become invalid.

The Directors may call general meetings, and they shall on a Members’
requisition forthwith proceed to convene an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company. If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of
the submission of the Members’ requisition duly proceed to convene a
general meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionists, or
any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of the requisitionists, may themselves convene a general meeting, but
any meeting so convened shall be held no later than the day which falls
three months after the expiration of the said 21-day period. A general
meeting convened as aforesaid by requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner as nearly as possible as that in which general meetings are
to be convened by Directors.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the period from January 1, 2024 to the Latest Practicable Date, the
Company did not make any changes to its Articles. The latest version of
the Articles is available on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited.
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PUT ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company
will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries. The
shareholders may put enquiries to the investor relations working team
of the Company or the Office of the Board via email (ir@wlspjt.com) as
stated in this annual report.

CORPORATE TRANSPARENCY AND INVESTOR
RELATIONSHIPS

The Company always endeavors to improve transparency and
accountability to its shareholders in the best possible way. The senior
management of the Company participates in various investor relations
activities including investors and analysts meetings from time to time.
These provide the investors with an opportunity to further understand
the business of the Company. The Company actively liaises and carries
out high-quality communication with shareholders and investors via
diversified communication channels. In the future, the Company will
also hold press conferences and investor presentations/conference calls
where the financial performance, business review and prospect of the
Company are presented. This also sets an open communication platform
for the Company’s senior management to address any questions that
the investment community and the media may have. The Company
issues press releases and announcements where appropriate to provide
updated information about the Company’s business development in a
timely manner. The Company also updates its website regularly to ensure
information about its latest development disseminated promptly.

The Group had made effective implementation of work in investor
relations in the Current Year under the leadership and support of the
Board and management. After issuing the interim results announcement
and annual results announcement, the Group will hold a performance
presentation meeting to fully communicate with investors and analysts. In
addition, we also maintain continuous and effective communication with
shareholders and investors by holding Investor Day activities, exchange
meetings, attending investor forums and investment summits, etc.

During the Current Year, the Group’s management team attended over
200 investor meetings. This provided the investment community with an
opportunity to understand the business of the Group better. As a result
of various investor relations activities undertaken, as at the end of the
Current Year, 22 securities companies provided research coverage on the
Group.

SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy after
Listing to ensure its implementation status and effectiveness. With the
implementation of the following measures, the Company believes that the
shareholders’ communication policy is now effectively implemented.
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Purpose

The shareholders’ communication policy provides shareholders of the
Company and investors (including potential investors) with equal and
timely access to information about the Company, in order to enable
the shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to
allow them to actively participate in the affairs of the Company, where
appropriate, and to facilitate the effective communication between
shareholders and investors and the Company.

General Policy and Principle

The Board of the Company shall maintain ongoing communication with
shareholders and investors, and shall regularly review the policy to ensure
its effectiveness. The Company follows the basic principles of fair and
timely communication to and open communication with shareholders and
investors, and discloses information of the Company to shareholders and
investors and communicates with them in accordance with the Listing
Rules and other applicable laws, regulations and rules.

Corporate Communications

Any documents issued or to be issued by the Company for reference or
action of any holders of its securities, including (but not limited to): (i)
annual report (including the Directors’ report, annual account together
with the auditors’ report and the environmental, social and governance
report) and interim report; and (ii) notice of the general meeting,
circular and proxy form, etc. Corporate communications provided to the
shareholders are prepared in plain language in both Chinese and English
versions to facilitate the shareholders’ understanding.

Shareholders have the right to choose the language (either English or
Chinese) or means (in printed copy or through electronic means) of
receipt of the corporate communications. Shareholders should access the
Company’s corporate communications through the Company’s website
(https://www.weilongshipin.com) or the Stock Exchange’s website
(https://www.hkexnews.hk).

Communication Channels

The Company has set up its website, https://www.weilongshipin.com.
Information disclosed by the Company on the website of the Stock
Exchange will also be published on the Company’s website immediately.
Shareholders may also obtain the press releases and other information
published by the Company from time to time from its website.
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Shareholders’ and Investors’ Enquiries

Shareholders should direct their enquiries in respect of their shares held
in the Company (such as share transfer, change of address, replacement
of share certificate, etc.) to the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong. Shareholders and investors who have any
query in respect of the Company should contact the investor relations
department of the Company by email to ir@wlspjt.com.

General Meetings

The Board strives to maintain an ongoing dialogue with the shareholders
and, in particular, to communicate with the shareholders directly
through annual general meetings or other general meetings (including
extraordinary general meetings) of the Company. Board members, key
senior management (or their appointed proxies) and external auditors will
attend the annual general meetings to receive shareholders’ opinions and
answer their questions.

Communications with Investors

The Company welcomes institutional investors for continual discussions
and communications on matters of the Company’s development and
will organize various activities such as results presentation, roadshow,
media interview and investors or analysts meetings at the appropriate
time in order to facilitate the communications between the Company and
investors.

The Company also contacts or communicates with investors, analysts,
media or other external related persons through emails and individual
contacts.

Shareholders’ Privacy

The Company recognizes the importance of protecting the shareholders’
privacy. The Company will not disclose the shareholders’ information
without their consents, unless otherwise required by relevant laws,
regulations and rules.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is aware of its responsibility for risk management and internal
control systems and reviews their effectiveness at least once annually.
The system is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, to promote effective and efficient
operations, to reasonably guarantee the reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and to safeguard
the assets of the Company, and the system only to provide a reasonable,
but not absolute, guarantee against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has overall responsibility for assessing and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Company's strategic objectives and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

Characteristics of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Organization System

In accordance with the requirements of Code Provision D.2.2 under
Section Il of the Corporate Governance Code, the Company has established
a sound risk management and internal control organization system which
includes the Board, the Audit Committee, the office of the Board, the
audit center, the internal control department, the legal department and
other departments to ensure that the Company has sufficient resources,
qualified and experienced staffs, training courses and related budget for
risk management and internal audit.

The Board of Directors, as the risk management supreme leading organ
of the Company, undertakes ultimate responsibility for establishing,
improvement and effective operation of the overall risk management
system, takes charge of the building, improvement and efficient operation
of the overall risk management system and has the discretion to delegate
senior management and operational division of each department in the
risk management system.

The Board of Directors is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks the Company is willing to take in achieving
its strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The Board has established the Audit Committee, which
is responsible for monitoring the confirmation of the appropriateness
of the risk management system and internal control procedures and the
effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Company, and providing
a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems.
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IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has been reviewed the comprehensive risk management policy
adopted by the Company which sets out a risk management framework
to assess all significant control aspects, including financial control,
operational control and compliance control, based on internal control
elements such as internal environment, risk assessment, control activities,
information and communication and internal oversight, to continuously
identify, assess, analyze and monitor key risks related to our strategic
objectives. The Company’s senior management and even the Directors
oversee the implementation of the risk management policy. The identified
risks will be analyzed based on their likelihood and scope of impact, the
management will properly follow up, make corrections, and report to the
Board of Directors.

The Company’s internal control and internal audit departments regularly
review and discuss the Company’s annual risk assessment and monitor the
implementation of risk mitigation measures related to our business. Risk
assessment shows that the risks in 2024 mainly included operational risks.
We developed feasible solutions to effectively manage the risks according
to the actual situation of the Company:

Food safety risks: Food safety and quality are crucial to our reputation
and success, and they are also the key factors affecting the operation
and development of food enterprises. Any negligence in details during
the process from research and development and production to market
transformation, failure to inspect raw and auxiliary materials as well as
finished products in accordance with the latest laws, regulations and
regulatory requirements, or failure to standardize and effectively control
the procurement, production and quality inspection processes may all
trigger negative food safety incidents. This, in turn, may affect the Group’s
reputation and lead to economic losses.
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Measures:

a)

Maintaining consistent quality and food safety depends to a large
extent on the effectiveness of our quality assurance system, thus
we strive to enhance our core competencies in food safety and
quality controls, capitalizing on our source-to-sale product quality
management system. Our products are in compliance with the
HACCP and FSSC 22000 food safety system certifications.

We have established a stringent quality assurance system with
traceability from procurement to sales. We have a strict supplier
screening and assessment mechanism, and have set up a thorough
management system to inspect our procurement and storage
process to ensure the high quality and safety of raw materials.

Standardization and automation in production along with the
manufacture monitoring system have significantly increased the
stability of our production and product quality. We have established
a Total Quality Management Center, which participates in every link
of the entire process from research and development, production to
storage and transportation. It is responsible for the comprehensive
management and supervision of food safety and the establishment
of the quality assurance system.

Digital transformation risks: Our operations in the supply chain,
production, sales, and other aspects heavily rely on digital systems and
software. The levels of digitization, systematization, and intelligentization
of our various business activities will directly affect our operational
efficiency, product costs, and personnel efficiency. To a large extent,
our core competitiveness also depends on the outcomes of our digital

transformation. We need to continuously promote the digitalization
process, which may be fraught with risks and costly. The results of digital
transformation also need to be continuously adjusted to fit in with
business processes to continuously improve our operational efficiency.
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Measures:

a)  Continuously strengthen the construction of the digital team and
promote digital transformation to reduce manual operations and
the ineffective occupation of human resources. At the same time,
continuously analyze the efficiency of business operations and
personnel work to optimize the direction and approach of digital
transformation.

b)  Strengthen the integration and connection among different digital
systems to facilitate daily use and management, and enhance the
integrity, accuracy, and efficiency of business data transmission.

¢) Launch a process — efficiency improvement plan that involves all
employees on an ongoing basis. Identify and address any issues
that may pose risks or reduce work efficiency, and optimize them
through digital means to continuously control the operational risks
of various processes and improve their operational efficiency.

d) Improve the security of business data through various means such
as appropriate system security measures, personnel access control
requirements, and data encryption and isolation to avoid risks such as
data leakage, abuse, or tampering.

FORMATION OF LONG-TERM MECHANISM FOR RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL MONITORING

In order to actively prevent and respond to risks in production and
operation, the Company has a comprehensive risk management and
internal control system, audit, internal control and legal departments to
identify major risks that hinder the achievement of the objectives, and
control the risks to an acceptable level, so as to ensure the achievement
of business objectives, improvement in the operational efficiency, and
the reliability of financial reports and compliance with national laws and
regulations. Meanwhile, the Company regularly evaluates the effectiveness
of internal control systems and risk management, and regularly puts
forward relevant risk management suggestions to the management.
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We evaluate and check the effectiveness of our risk management and FHfRBEERE BREEERAPIERKETT - £ 8
internal control system through the management, business units in the — REFEREIE K - EETATEEERK - SNERZERED KD
risk management system, the internal control team of the Group, the  BEAFREM - AR 58 8 KT E Bz B RRE
audit and inspection team of the Group, external auditors, external — &IE K& ARSI RSB RE - TEE B S -
compliance consultants and legal consultants, and improve the risk R - ARERERERERAEETZABEN » KA E
response measures. Meanwhile, in order to ensure the effective operation 3237 T ZPIME RSB /EMS] - BEBEMT ¢
of the risk management system, the Company has an inter-departmental

risk management cooperation mechanism, with specific responsibilities as

follows:

Internal Audit Internal Control

Audit Committee

Department Department Legal Department
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Reviewing and approving
annual internal audit plans
for the year, including risk
control plans

EEMAAEFENETE
BERREHEE

RS ER P

Developing annual internal
audit plans for the year,
including risk control plans

HEFENETE 28
R E

AIRBEE I ER P

Developing annual Internal
control plans for the year,
including risk assessment
and control plans

HIEFEEAEE - B
R AT A B 5t

EIEEBP

Establishing legal
compliance policies

BIDEBERBIE

Supervising and evaluating
risk management and
internal control work of

— the Company

EBMFEARFNRR
EIERAARRES T

Implementing internal
audit and identifying risks

TR E B R 2

Identifying risks, and
recording and tracking via
Risk Control Matrix

a8 I B B 3 S5 LB
HIFERETTIRE

Providing
compliance-related training
and manage compliance
businesses

RHARAREIINLEE
BREH

Supervising and evaluating
the internal audit work of
the Company

EBMFEALRARE
BRI
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Organizing departments
to respond to risks

MBS R FLETTR R Y

Collaborating with
business functions for risk
response and control

improvement
HEIEE B FR R AR
Fapesset L

Establishing a
multi-dimensional
intellectual property
management system

BEZHENNBERS
4 ES

Implementing audit
projects and supervising
rectification measures

EHERAIAE BB W
i
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REVIEW OF RISK AND INTERNAL MONITORING
SYSTEM IN 2024

According to the authorization of the Board of Directors, the audit
and inspection team of the Company focuses on business, financial
and compliance risks, and through agile audit, it can realize more
comprehensive and accurate risk monitoring, identify hidden risks more
quickly, and promote management and system process improvement, so
as to support the realization of the Company’s medium- and long-term
vision and strategic objectives.

The Company’s financial reporting, information disclosure and other
management processes strictly comply with the Listing Rules. The Board
office has developed the Information Disclosure Management System,
which was approved by the Board of Directors. The Board office established
the control procedures for information reporting, review and disclosure,
as required. Before disclosing relevant information to the public, the
Company will ensure that the information is kept confidential properly,
and inform the persons with insider information of their obligations and
supervise them according to regulations.

According to the independent review by the internal audit department
and the legal department of the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and major internal monitoring (including financial,
operational and compliance monitoring) in 2024, the internal audit
department and the legal department reported the results to the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors, and were responsible for the
follow-up to confirm that the management implemented the rectification
measures, and put forward the proposed rectification measures and
exchanged opinions with the management.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Board of Directors and
the Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control system once, including the adequacy
of resources, employee qualifications and experience, training plan and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions.
During the review, the Board did not identify any significant concerns.
During the Year, the Company did not implement any changes to the
risk management and internal control system, except to further optimize
the implementation process of the risk management and internal control
system. The Board of Directors believed that there were no major defects
in the Company’s risk management and internal control system in terms
of completeness, rationality and effectiveness.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENGREEEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIU Weiping (2I%F), aged 47, is the Chairman and an executive
Director of the Company and holds directorships and senior management
positions at various subsidiaries within the Group, including as the
chairman of Weilong Commerce since July 2014.

Mr. Liu has over 24 years of experience in the snack foods industry. In
2001, Mr. Liu established Ping Ping Foods Factory (&)1 ¥ & )
(currently known as Ping Ping Foods) with Mr. LIU Fuping and served
as the general manager of Ping Ping Foods Factory until September
2004. Mr. Liu also served as the general manager of Ping Ping Foods
from September 2004 to November 2006 and the general manager of
Zhumadian Ping Ping Foods from November 2006 to July 2014.

In July 2017, Mr. Liu graduated from Southwest University (FERIAE2) in
Chongging, the PRC where he majored in administration management.

Mr. LIU Fuping (8/%8F), aged 44, is an executive Director and the Vice
Chairman of the Board of the Company. Mr. Liu holds directorships and
senior management positions at various subsidiaries within the Group,
including as the President of Weilong Commerce since July 2014.

Mr. Liu has over 24 years of experience in the snack foods industry. In
2001, Mr. Liu established Ping Ping Foods Factory (&AM FF & fH)
(currently known as Ping Ping Foods) with Mr. LIU Weiping and served as
the deputy general manager of Ping Ping Foods Factory until 2004. Mr.
Liu also served as the deputy general manager of Ping Ping Foods from
September 2004 to November 2006 and the deputy general manager of
Zhumadian Pingping Limited from November 2006 to December 2011.
From December 2011 to July 2014, Mr. Liu served as the general manager
of Ping Ping Foods.

In July 2017, Mr. Liu graduated from Southwest University (FEEIAE2) in
Chongging, the PRC where he majored in administration management.
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Mr. SUN Yinong (#2875 2), aged 56, is the executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Sun has over 25 years’
experience in the food and beverages industry. From July 1999 to April
2016, he served various positions in Coca-Cola (China) Beverage Co., Ltd
(AT A4 (R ER) gkl AR 2 F)) and Coca-Cola Enterprise Management
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd (ATE AT X EIR (EF) BRAF)), including the
marketing general manager from October 2012 to August 2015 and the
regional general manager from September 2015 to April 2016. Mr. Sun
joined Xiamen Yinlu Foods Group Co., Ltd (EFIiRER MEEBR A R)
in May 2016 and served as the chief commercial officer, chief operating
officer and chief executive officer consecutively till May 2021. From June
2021 to September 2021, he worked as a management consultant in
Suzhou Aizhihui Management Consulting Co., Ltd (& /1= &fEE IR %A
BABRZAF]). Mr. Sun joined our Group in September 2021 and served as
the Special Assistant to the President of the Company till his appointment
as our Chief Executive Officer in December 2021. Mr. SUN Yinong
has resigned as an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company on 27 March 2025. The resignation of Mr. Sun as an
executive Director of the Company took effect on 27 March 2025 and the
resignation of Mr. Sun as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company will
take effect on 30 April 2025.

Mr. Sun received a bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering and
automation from Zhejiang University (47T AX22) in Hangzhou, the PRC
in July 1991. He also obtained a master of business administration from
China Europe International Business School (FFEIEE TEZ67) in
September 2008.

Mr. PENG Hongzhi (2% 7%), aged 43, is an executive Director, the Chief
Financial Officer and Senior Vice-President of the Company and holds
senior management positions at various subsidiaries within the Group.

Mr. Peng has over 11 years of experience in operational management.
From March 2007 to June 2008, Mr. Peng served as an engineer in Beijing
Aoshi Sports Timing Service Co., Ltd. From October 2009 to September
2010, Mr. Peng served as an engineer in Guangdong Province Digital
Guangdong Research Institute. From October 2010 to March 2013, he
served as the assistant to the general manager of Ping Ping Foods. From
April 2013 to April 2016, he served as the deputy general manager at
Beijing Dermat Jiekang Technology Development Co., Ltd. From May
2016 to May 2019, he served as the director and general manager at the
Shenzhen Qianhai Xiangming Equity Investment Co., Ltd. From June 2019
to February 2023, he was mainly responsible for the financial center and
other management work of the Group. Since March 2023, he has been
mainly responsible for the management work of the financial center and
overseas business development center of the Group.
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Mr. Peng holds the qualification of senior project manager in information
systems awarded by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security
in May 2010. He was awarded the Changchun City Government Award
by the Changchun City Government in 2007, the Outstanding Talents of
Fangshan District in Beijing in 2013 and the Outstanding Young Talents in
Beijing in 2015.

Mr. Peng received a bachelor’s degree in geographical sciences from
Hunan University of Science and Technology (#ESRIFLAER) in Xiangtan,
the PRC in June 2005. He also received a master’s degree in cartography
and geographic information systems from Northeast Normal University (52
Jb &R E2) in Changchun, the PRC in July 2008.

Mr. LIU Zhongsi (2128./8), aged 40, is an executive Director and Senior
Vice-President of the Company and is primarily responsible for the overall
research and development management of the Group, and has served
various positions at various subsidiaries within the Group.

Mr. Liu has over 18 years of experience in the snack foods industry. From
July 2007 to October 2008, he served as a food technology officer in Ping
Ping Foods. From October 2008 to December 2009, he served as a plant
manager in production in Zhumadian Weilai Foods Co., Ltd. (5 5 /5 &2
BamABRAF]). From December 2009 to December 2013, he served as a
plant manager in production in Ping Ping Foods. From December 2013 to
June 2020, he served as the director general of the technological research
and development department at Ping Ping Foods. Since June 2020, Mr.
Liu has served as the director general of the technological research and
development department at Weilong Biotechnology.

Mr. Liu received the China Business Federation Science and Technology
Award (BB EH & R 2R iT4€) and the National Business
Technology Progress Award (& B BHE# 5 48) from the China
Business Federation in December 2017.

Mr. Liu received a bachelor’s degree in sports education from Xiangnan
University (18R £25%) in Chenzhou, the PRC in June 2007.
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Mr. YU Feng (5R[E), aged 34, is an executive Director and Senior Vice-
President of the Company and has served various positions at various
subsidiaries within the Group.

Mr. Yu has over 14 years of experience in the snack foods industry. From
October 2011 to May 2023, Mr. Yu served various roles in the Group,
including assistant designer, R&D engineer, R&D manager, general
manager of e-commerce center and head of media center. In August
2023, Mr. Yu was appointed by the Board of Directors as Vice President
of marketing center. Since November 2023, Mr. Yu was appointed as
the person-in-charge of the human resources center as well. Since March
2024, Mr. Yu was appointed as the senior vice president of the Company.
Mr. Yu is cousin of Mr. LIU Weiping, Mr. LIU Fuping and Mr. LIU Zhongsi.

Mr. Yu graduated from Hunan Vocational College of Science and
Technology (#E8RHL B 2 £67) majoring in Animation Design in June
2011. He is currently studying for a course of general manager in China
Europe International Business School. He is also a member of Shanghai
Minhang Young Entrepreneurs Association.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The changes of Directors and senior management of the Company during
the Reporting Period and as at the Latest Practicable Date, are set out
below.

Mr. CHEN Lin resigned as an executive Director of the Company and
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board due to work
arrangement adjustment with effect from April 25, 2024.

Mr. YU Feng has been appointed as an executive Director of the Company
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board with effect
from April 25, 2024.

Mr. SUN Yinong has resigned as an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 27 March 2025. The resignation of
Mr. Sun as an executive Director of the Company took effect on 27 March
2025 and the resignation of Mr. Sun as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company will take effect on 30 April 2025.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. XU Lili (#&Z£2%), aged 44, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on April 27, 2021. Ms. Xu has more
than 19 years of experience in financial leadership. She is now the chief
financial officer of Cloudr Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9955), which operates ClouDr (B Z{#), China’s
Largest SaaS-based Digital Chronic Condition Management Solution
Provider. From March 2014 to September 2020, she was appointed as the
chief financial officer and executive director for Tongdao Liepin Group ([7]
EBIEEE), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6100).
Prior to that, Ms. Xu held various positions at General Electric Company,
a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: GE),
including as the chief financial officer of GE Power Generation Services
China, from January 2005 to March 2014. Ms. Xu currently serves as a
director of MINISO Group Holding Ltd (ZEME REBIERER AR, a
company listed on both the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the New
York Stock Exchange (stock code: 9896.HK/MNSO.US) and Yalla Group
Limited, a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code:
YALA).

Ms. Xu is a public accountant certified by the Board of Accountancy of
Washington State of the United States since June 2012.

Ms. Xu received a bachelor’s degree in international business from Nanjing
University (B85 KE2) in Nanjing, the PRC in June 2003 and a master of
science degree in local economic development from the London School of
Economics and Political Science in the UK in November 2004.

Ms. Xu was a director of Nenghe (Tianjin) Enterprise Management
Consulting Co. Ltd. (B8R (RE) EEREMRBER QA since its
establishment in September 2017. It is a company established in the
PRC which principally engaged in provision of enterprise management
consultancy services before its cessation of business. As confirmed by
Ms. Xu, during her tenure, as the said company had ceased business
operation, its business license was revoked on June 17, 2021. Ms. Xu
confirmed that (i) the said company was solvent immediately prior to the
revocation of business license; (ii) there was no wrongful act on her part
leading to revocation of business license of the said company; (iii) she
is not aware of any actual or potential claim which has been or could
potentially be made against her as a result of revocation of business
license of the said company; and (iv) no misconduct or misfeasance had
been involved on her part in the revocation of business license of the said
company.
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Mr. ZHANG Bihong (5&#54), aged 50, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on April 27, 2021.

Mr. Zhang has served as the deputy general manager responsible for
the financial management of Jonjee Hi-Tech Industrial and Commercial
Holding Co., Ltd. (FRIEEFT T E %M 5 BRAF), a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600872) from June 2021 to
July 2023, and previously as the assistant to the chairman of the board
from March 2019 to June 2021. He has also served as an independent
non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee of Pujiang
International Group Limited ()L EIFE & BB R A F]), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 02060) from December 2016 to February
2024. He has also served as the investment relationship director of
Honworld Group Limited (EEAEEEHFR/AF]), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2226) from June 2016 to December 2017,
and previously as a non-executive director from December 2013 to June
2016. From January 2010 to April 2012, Mr. Zhang served as a director
and the chief financial officer of Aoxin Tianli Group, Inc., (B X H5EH
R 2 7)) (@ company currently known as Renmin Tianli Group, Inc., delisted
from Nasdaq Stock Exchange).

Mr. Zhang has more than 29 years of experience in the areas of auditing
and taxation. He served as a senior manager at Reanda Certified Public
Accountants LLP (F| & 51BN E1%FT) from October 2005 to July 2008.
Mr. Zhang also served as a partner of Zhong Cheng Xin An Rui (Beijing)
Certified Public Accountants LLP ({5 &5k (Ib ) SEHAISEEFT) from
August 2008 to October 2009. Mr. Zhang is currently a certified tax agent
in China as accredited by China Certified Tax Agents Association in June
2000. He is also a certified public accountant in China as accredited by
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants in December 2003.
He was a certified asset appraiser in China as accredited by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC in 2006.

Mr. Zhang graduated from the Forestry College of Inner Mongolia
Agricultural College (N5 & #EZ2F%) in Hohhot, the PRC with a diploma in
economics (accounting) in July 1995.
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Ms. XING Dongmei (F8%-4§), aged 54, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on April 27, 2021. Ms. Xing
joined East & Concord Partners (K3EFIARRIET%FR) in July 2004 and
currently serves as a senior partner and member of the management
committee of the firm. Ms. Xing has over 27 years of experience in legal
practice, focusing on legal service in banking and finance, securities and
capital markets and corporate compliance. Before joining East & Concord
Partners, Ms. Xing served as an associate at C&l Partners ({= Fl 280 7% F7)
(formerly known as China Legal Affairs Center (FF BIIARE L) from
June 1995 to July 2004, and as a legal assistant at China Legal Affairs
Center from July 1994 to June 1995, during which time she advised on
the first and second rounds of Chinese state-owned enterprises reform
and the listing of such state-owned enterprises on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Xing is currently an expert adviser on civil and administrative law cases
of the Supreme People’s Procuratorate of the PRC (e ARRERES
TTHER4FEAER). She has been selected for the fourth time as a legal
expert adviser by the China Banking Association (FEIIRTTE B/ AEH
KEK ).

Ms. Xing also takes an active role in terms of social responsibility. She
serves as a director of Beijing Lawyers Association (1t RHIZRH ),
and a supervisor of the Lead Foundation (At R BRI AFES ).
She was also a representative at the 12th National Women's Congress
of China (B+ZEHBRBELZAEXARE). In 2019, Ms. Xing was awarded
as an A-List elite lawyer (A-List/Af2F5 %) by China Business Law Journal,
an Outstanding Lawyer by Chambers and Partners and an Outstanding
Lawyer in banking and finance by Asialaw Profiles 2020. She was also
recognized as one of the 2015 ALB China Top 15 Female Lawyers (2015
FP 30151 22 726M) by Asian Legal Business in October 2015.

Ms. Xing received an bachelor of laws degree from China University of
Political Science and Law ({F B BUAAER) in Beijing, the PRC in July 1994,
and a master’s degree in law from Peking University (3t 5L A£2) in Beijing,
the PRC in July 2006.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the biographical details of Mr. LIU Weiping, Mr. LIU Fuping, Mr. SUN
Yinong, Mr. PENG Hongzhi, Mr. LIU Zhongsi and Mr. YU Feng, please see
the biographies of “Executive Directors” above.

Mr. CHEN Lin (FR#%), aged 39, has resigned as an executive Director
of the Company and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Board. The resignation took effect from 25 April 2024. He continues to
serve as a senior vice president of the Company after his resignation,
and continues to serve various positions at various subsidiaries within the
Group.

Mr. Chen has over 15 years of experience in the snack foods industry.
From June 2009 to March 2016, Mr. Chen served various roles in Ping
Ping Foods, including management positions in the quality control
department, research and development department, auditing department
and production and sales department. Since 2016, Mr. Chen has served
various positions in Weilong Commerce, including the production, sales
and equipment manager, the deputy director general of the general
production office and the supply chain deputy director general. From
March 2020 to January 2023, Mr. Chen has been responsible for the
management of supply chain center, procurement center and human
resource & administration center of the Group. Since January 2023, he
has been mainly responsible for the overall management of the Group’s
production and manufacturing bases. Since April 2024, he has been
mainly responsible for the management of the Group’s supply chain
center.

Mr. Chen graduated from Yueyang Foreign Trade Vocational Technical
College (EF5TINE B ZERMER) in Yueyang, the PRC in July 2005.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. SHEN Xiaochun (Jt#%), aged 39, was appointed as the person-
in-charge of the capital market department of the Company since March
2024. In July 2021, she was appointed as the investor relations director
of the Company. In April 2021, she was appointed as a Joint Company
Secretary of the Company. She joined our Group in October 2020 and has
been responsible for investor relations management since then. Prior to
joining our Group, Ms. Shen served as a senior investor relations director
of Zhejiang Panxing Information Technology Co., Ltd. T/ #& 8= 84
iR &) from October 2019 to May 2020. From December 2016 to
September 2019, she served as a senior investor relations manager of
Comba Telecom Systems Holdings Limited (FR{ZE{ERZ IR B R A7),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2342). Ms. Shen also
served as an assistant to the chairman of the board and the secretary to
the board in Aoxin Tianli Group, Inc., (B{s X h&EE B[R A 7]) (a company
currently known as Renmin Tianli Group, Inc., delisted from Nasdaqg Stock
Exchange) from January 2010 to December 2016. She also worked as
the manager for the English department in Wuhan Sense Translation &
Interpretation Co., Ltd. (BUET E L£EIREGR T2 7)) from July 2007 to
January 2010.
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Ms. Shen obtained her bachelor of arts degree from Hubei University of
Education C#it 5 —EM&32205%) in Wuhan, the PRC in June 2007, and her
master’s degree in international banking and finance, partially through
online course from the University of Salford in the UK in November 2019.

Ms. Shen received the Qualification Certificate of Board Secretary from
Shanghai Stock Exchange in May 2017.

Mr. LI Kin Wai (Z{#), was appointed as a Joint Company Secretary of
the Company on April 27, 2021. Mr. Li is a senior manager of Corporate
Services of Tricor Services Limited, a global professional services provider
specializing in integrated business corporate and investor services. He has
over 11 years of experience in the corporate secretarial field.

Mr. Li is a Chartered Secretary and an associate member of The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators). He obtained a master’s degree in corporate governance
from The Open University of Hong Kong.

Change of Directors’ Information
In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in the
directors’ information are set out as follows:

Ms. Xing Dongmei resigned during the year as an independent non-
executive director of Yinhua Fund Management Co., Ltd. (SREE S EIE
i B R /AE]), AVIC Shenyang Aircraft Company Limited (FFfiik A%
AR AT, (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600760) and Greatwall Wealth Asset Management Company (K3
HMERBREETERNERIA).

Except for the information disclosed above, there were no changes in the
directors’ information during the year that were required to be disclosed
in accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

EFEWE

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2024.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is a leading spicy snack food company in China, mainly
engaged in the production and sales of spicy snack food in China.
The Group’s major products cover seasoned flour products, vegetable
products, bean-based and other products, etc.

We focus on turning authentic Chinese gourmet into casual snack
food that consumers can enjoy anywhere and anytime. Our products
accompanied the youthhood of the millennials in China, who became
our first loyal customers. Meanwhile, under the product development
philosophy of “maximizing the intrinsic value of nature with an
industrialized approach”, and with our outstanding category development
ability, we have diversified into vegetable products and bean-based
products. Our modern and well received products have satisfied the taste
buds of generations and accumulated a broad and customer base across
various age groups.

We constantly adapt to changing purchasing behavior of consumers and
have quickly expanded to supermarkets, chained convenience stores,
e-commerce channels and snack specialty retailers and warehouse clubs,
which have wide exposure to young consumers. Meanwhile, we have
strengthened our presence on major e-commerce platforms. We use
e-commerce and social media channels to build a trendy and engaging
brand image through interactive marketing activities, turning young
consumers into our natural brand promoters.

Leveraging our strong brand recognition, product competitiveness and
channel distribution capability, we believe that we will continue to
increase our market share and capitalize on future growth opportunities
in the spicy snack food industry.

Please see the sections headed "“Chairman’s Statement”,
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and notes
to the consolidated financial statements in the annual report, for a
pertinent review of the Group’s business and analysis using financial key
performance indicators, the major risks and uncertainties facing the Group

“Management

and a discussion on the future development of the Group’s business.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's results also depend on the support of key relationships
with suppliers, customers and employees. The Company maintains good
relationships with suppliers, customers and employees to ensure smooth
business operations.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
An analysis of the results of the Group for the Current Year by business
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of operations of the Group for the Current Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 105 of the annual
report.

SHARES ISSUED
There is no change in share capital of the Company in the Current Year as
set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

Based on the Group’s overall performance for the Year, and taking
into account the Group's surplus, overall financial position and capital
expenditures, at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, the Board will propose a final cash dividend of RMB0.11 per
share as of the Current Year (inclusive of tax, totaling approximately
RMB258.6 million), and a Special Dividend of RMBO.18 per share (inclusive
of tax, totaling approximately RMB423.2 million). The distribution of Final
Dividend and Special Dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Further
details of the dividends are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Company is not liable for any claim arising from the failure to
determine in a timely manner or erroneously determine the status of the
shareholders or any dispute over the withholding mechanism. The Board
of Directors is not aware that any shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividend.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

We may pay dividends in cash or otherwise as the Board considers
appropriate. Distribution of dividends is at the discretion of the Board
and, if necessary, subject to the approval of the Shareholders. The
Board may propose future dividend distributions, in consideration of our
results of operations, financial position, operating requirements, capital
requirements, shareholders’ equity and any other conditions that the
Board may deem relevant.

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, our dividend policy is to
distribute to our shareholders no less than 25% of our distributable
profits for any particular year after the Listing. We cannot assure you
that we will be able to distribute dividends of the above amount or any
amount, or at all, in any year. The declaration and payment of dividends
may also be limited by legal restrictions and by loan or other agreements
that the Company and our subsidiaries have entered into or may enter
into in the future. Any declaration and payment as well as the amount
of dividends will be subject to our constitutional documents and the
Cayman Companies Act. We are a holding company incorporated under
the laws of the Cayman Islands. As a result, the payment and amount of
any future dividends will depend on the availability of dividends received
from our subsidiaries and other reserves lawfully available for distribution.
Our shareholders may approve any declaration of dividends in a general
meeting, which must not exceed the amount recommended by our Board.
No dividend shall be declared or payable except out of our profits and
reserves lawfully available for distribution.

DONATION

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Current
Year totaled RMB2,013,750 (2023: RMB2,347,804).

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS AND
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group’s business operations are principally conducted in China and
the Company’s shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Our
business is mainly subject to the laws of China, Hong Kong and other
relevant regions. During the year ended December 31, 2024 and up to the
Latest Practicable Date, we complied with relevant laws and regulations
in the applicable areas which had a significant impact on the Group.
Specifically, the operations of the Group as a spicy snack food producer in
China are subject to applicable food safety and environmental protection
laws and regulations of China. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not commit any material breach of these laws and regulations.

PURCHASE, DISPOSAL AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, disposed of
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities (including sale of
treasury shares) for the year ended December 31, 2024 and up to the
Latest Practicable Date. As of December 31, 2024, the Company did not
hold any of treasury shares.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on
December 15, 2022. From the Listing Date to December 31, 2024, the
Group progressively utilised the proceeds from the Initial Public Offering
according to the intended use set out in the Prospectus.

The net proceeds from the Initial Public Offering of the shares of the
Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (after deducting
underwriting fees and other related expenses) were approximately
HK$903.3 million. As of December 31, 2024, the Group utilized total
proceeds of approximately HK$656.33 million for the intended purposes
set out in the Prospectus, accounting for 72.7% of all raised funds, and
the remaining unutilized proceeds were approximately HK$247 million.

B RERAE
RABMDA2022F 12 B15BEBLTET - 8 F
TMHEEEET2024512A318 - REBEDRER
BEMEBTEARELSBAE RN RAEEMERIE -
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Expected
Net Unutilized Actual Unutilized timeline Expected
proceeds netamount netamount  netamount forfully  timeline as
from the as of utilized as of utilizing disclosed
Intended purposes of Listing December 31, for the December 31, unutilized in the
net proceeds FIERERERTAR available 2023  Current Year 2024  netamount  Prospectus
tw BE023%F BZ2024% BES
BRES 12A31H REE 127318 BAFE RREH
R I R E ERREA HRE SERES | REH
et j R k] EABE  REREEX
(HKS million) ~ (HK$ million) ~ (HK$ million)  (HK$ million)
(%) (B8#n) (B8%n) (AB%T)
Production facilities and supply EERmAMERER 514.9 4116 194.0 2176 1-2years®  3-5years®
chain system
Expanding our sales and TRBEMT RS 1355 169 - - 3-5yearsE
distribution network
Brand building miRER 90.3 139 - - 35yearsE
Product R &D activities and ERfEEH R 903 52.0 28  12years®  3-5years®
enhancement of R &D capabilities &4 138
Advancing the construction of HESE LR 723 50.8 6.6 1-2years®  3-5years
digitization and intelligence
Total Fohs 903.3 574.6 327.6 247.0 - -

Note: Due to rounding, there may be a difference between the sum of the
individual sub-values and the total amount. The balance of the proceeds
from the Initial Public Offering will continue to be utilized according to
the purposes and proportions disclosed in the Prospectus. The expected
time for the full use of the proceeds was earlier than disclosed in the
Prospectus, which was mainly due to the Group’s reassessment of the
business execution plan. In addition, taking into account of the Company’s
long-term development, the Board of Directors decided to cancel the plan
for construction of a new plant in Qujing, Yunnan Province as disclosed in
the Prospectus, and proposed to invest in establishing a new snack food
production base in Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang autonomous region.
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the name, principal place of business, country of incorporation
and issued share capital of the Group’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the changes in the reserves of the Group and the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2024 are set out in notes 26 and 38 to the
consolidated financial statements in the annual report respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
The distributable reserve of the Company as at December 31, 2024 was
RMB702.9 million (2023: RMB1,283.3 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the changes in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Current Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BORROWINGS
Details of the Group’s borrowings during the Current Year are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

During the Current Year, the Group did not issue corporate bonds.

KEY CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Current Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers and
total purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for less than
25% and 25% respectively. To the best knowledge of the Directors, save
as disclosed in the Group’s Prospectus, none of the Directors or their
associates or any shareholder who is expected to have 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company have any interest in the Group'’s five
largest suppliers and five largest customers.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has maintained Directors’ liability insurance to protect the
Directors of the Company against any potential losses arising from his/
her actual or alleged misconduct. During the Current Year and up to the
Latest Practicable Date, the permitted indemnity provision (as defined in
section 9 of the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D
of the Laws of Hong Kong)) was and is being in force for the benefit of
the Directors of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the transactions
between the Company and its connected persons (as defined under the
Listing Rules) constitute connected transactions of the Company. The
Company regulates and manages such transactions in compliance with
the Listing Rules. The followings are the non-fully exempt connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions conducted by the
Group during the Reporting Period.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION REGARDING THE
SUBSCRIPTION OF SHARES IN THE JOINT VENTURE
COMPANY

On 20 June 2024, the Company entered into the Supplemental
Investment Agreement Regarding the Joint Venture to Establish Overseas
Business Holding Company (“Supplemental Joint Venture Agreement”)
with HH Green Philosophy and HH Innovation Group, pursuant to which
the Parties agreed that each of WEILONG Investment Holdings Ltd (“Listco
SPV 1", fully owned by the Company), Yizheng Innovation Management
Ltd (“Listco SPV 2", fully owned by the Company) and He He Investment
Ltd (“Controlling Shareholders SPV”, owned as to 51% by HH Green
Philosophy and 49% by HH Innovation Group respectively) shall subscribe
for 80,999,190, 9,499,905 and 9,499,905 ordinary shares of HONGLONG
International Holdings Ltd (“Joint Venture Company”), respectively, newly
issued by the Joint Venture Company at total subscription prices of RMB81
million, RMB9.5 million and RMB9.5 million, respectively, on a pro-rata
basis in proportion to their respective existing shareholding in the Joint
Venture Company. Each such subscription is on the same terms. Pursuant
to the Supplemental Joint Venture Agreement, there are no restrictions
which apply to the subsequent sale of such subscription shares by the
Listco SPV 1 and the Listco SPV 2. Before the Share Subscription, the
Listco SPV 1, the Listco SPV 2 and the Controlling Shareholder SPV hold
81.0%, 9.5% and 9.5% equity interests in the Joint Venture Company,
respectively. After the Share Subscription, such shareholding percentages
will remain unchanged, and the Joint Venture Company will remain as
a subsidiary of the Company and its financial results will continue to be
consolidated into the financial statements of the Group.

Each of HH Green Philosophy and HH Innovation Group is a controlling
shareholder of the Company. In addition, as of the date of execution of
the Supplementary Joint Venture Agreement, HH Green Philosophy is
wholly owned by Mr. LIU Weiping and HH Innovation Group is wholly
owned by Mr. LIU Fuping. Mr. LIU Weiping and Mr. LIU Fuping are both
the executive Directors and controlling shareholders of the Company.
As such, each of HH Green Philosophy and HH Innovation Group is a
connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the Share Subscription
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, a series of connected
transactions will be aggregated and treated as if they were one
transaction if they were all conducted within a 12-month period or were
otherwise related. The Company, HH Green Philosophy and HH Innovation
Group entered into the Joint Venture Agreement on 28 March 2024 in
relation to the formation of the Joint Venture Company and the capital
contribution of US$0.081, US$0.0095 and US$0.0095 by the Listco SPV 1,
the Listco SPV 2 and the Controlling Shareholders SPV, respectively. As all
the contracting parties to the Supplemental Joint Venture Agreement and
the Joint Venture Agreement, respectively, are the Company, HH Green
Philosophy and HH Innovation Group and the aforementioned Share
Subscription and the JV Formation are similar in nature, such transactions
shall be aggregated as a series of transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.81 of the Listing Rules.

The Joint Venture Company is principally engaged in the investment
holding of businesses in respect of the manufacturing and sales of snack
food and raw ingredients outside of Mainland China. The aforementioned
Share Subscription is in line with the Group’s strategy to expand its
business coverage to overseas/international markets and to invest in snack
food and raw ingredients opportunities globally. Such expansion is in
line with the Group’s mission to “let the world fall in love with Chinese
flavors” and is essential to the future business development of the Group.
For the above reasons, the Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors, but excluding Mr. LIU Weiping and Mr. LIU Fuping
both of whom have a material interest in the Share Subscription) are of
the view that the terms of the Supplemental Joint Venture Agreement
and the Share Subscription thereunder are on normal commercial terms,
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio (as defined in Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules) in respect of the Supplemental Joint Venture Agreement and
the Share Subscription thereunder (both on a standalone basis and upon
aggregation with the Joint Venture Agreement and the JV Formation
thereunder) exceeds 0.1% but is less than 5%, the Supplemental Joint
Venture Agreement and the Share Subscription thereunder are subject
to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but are
exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 20
June, 2024.
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NON-FULLY EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

As of December 31, 2024, the following transactions are conducted in
the ordinary and usual course of business of our Group and on normal
commercial terms or better, where the highest relevant percentage ratios
(except for the profits ratio) for the three years ending December 31, 2024
calculated for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules will, as the
Company expect, be more than 5% on an annual basis. Pursuant to Rules
14A.49, 14A.71, 14A.35 and 14A.36 of the Listing Rules, the transactions
will be subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

The following table sets out the proposed annual cap for such transactions
and actual transaction amounts:

TEXERESERERS

HZE2024F 1283181 WX G HEREEN—
MRIEFEKBRERE MR EEREGRET &
NEITEAEE2024F12 A31BIL=EFE - BE(E
THRADFETHAZHEN G EEE D LR (BFL
TERIN IR FEEETIETR5% o BB EMHRAD
F14A.49 ~ 14A.71 ~ 14A35FN14A 3615 @ :ZER 5

EESTERR - FEEN  AERBRELERT ©

ATRBIIE T HER SRR FEX S SR RN

ERRZEHE

Actual transaction
amount for the

year ended

Proposed annual December 31,
cap for 2024 2024
%2024

#i520245F 12A31HLLEE
FEELR BRRXSRER

(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AREBE&ET) (ARBBEET)
Total expenses paid by the Group to Luohe ZAEE A& T iEEE R 246 84
Delong Color Printing Development BRAT([1EEEFREN
Co., Ltd (“Delong Color Printing”)® R B m R AR
for the purchase of packing materials BENERERE
Total EEt 246 84
(1) A company owned as to 30% by Mr. LIU Fuping and therefore an associate (1) — KB ZIETF L EHBI0%BERN AR+ Eitk BFEAM

of our Controlling Shareholder.
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PACKAGING MATERIALS SUPPLY FRAMEWORK
AGREEMENT

We entered into a framework agreement on supply of packaging materials
with Delong Color Printing (the “Packaging Materials Supply Framework
Agreement”) on November 29, 2022, pursuant to which Delong Color
Printing will provide food packaging materials to our Group.

The initial term of the Packaging Materials Supply Framework Agreement
commenced on the Listing Date and end on December 31, 2024, and can
be renewed upon its expiry as agreed by the parties to the agreement.

Given that the Packaging Materials Supply Framework Agreement will
expire on 31 December 2024, the Company entered into the New
Packaging Materials Supply Framework Agreement with Delong Color
Printing on 31 December 2024 (after trading hours) and proposed the
annual caps for 2025, 2026 and 2027 under the New Packaging Materials
Supply Framework Agreement. Pursuant to which, Delong Color Printing
will continue to supply food packaging materials to the Group in the
usual and ordinary course of business of the Group. The New Packaging
Materials Supply Framework Agreement is for a term of three years
commencing effect from 1 January 2025 and expiring on 31 December
2027.

Separate underlying agreements will be entered into which will set out
the details of materials, purchase price, payment method and other details
of the materials supply arrangements in the manner provided in the
Packaging Materials Supply Framework Agreement. The definitive terms
of each of such agreements will be determined on a case-by-case basis
and on fair and reasonable basis after arm’s length negotiation between
the parties.

Delong Color Printing has historically supplied packaging materials to
members of the Group due to its satisfactory products, favorable prices,
and geographical advantage. In addition, our Group and Delong Color
Printing have a long term, stable relationship and Delong Color Printing is
familiar with our business needs and requirements. Based on our previous
experience in business dealing with Delong Color Printing, we believe
Delong Color Printing is capable of effectively satisfying our demands for
the relevant products and services in a stable and reliable manner.

The purchase price payable by us to Delong Color Printing under the
Packaging Materials Supply Framework Agreement will be determined
through a bidding process according to the internal rules and procedures
of the Group. We will send bidding documents to selected suppliers,
collect and compare quotes offered by at least two Independent Third
Parties for products of the same or similar quality. The Group will also
take into consideration the cost of materials provided, the quality of the
materials, as well as the production scale and capacity of the supplier.
The winning bidder and the purchase price of packaging materials will be
subject to approval of our procurement departments.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the proposed annual cap
for transactions contemplated under the Packaging Materials Supply
Framework Agreement was RMB246 million, while the actual amount
incurred was RMB84.1 million.

BEMBHABERT R
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors had reviewed the above non-fully exempt continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that these transactions had been
entered into:

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
ii. either on normal commercial terms or on better terms; and

iii. in accordance with relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Group as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditors of the Group to perform work in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and report whether anything has come to their attention.

In a letter to the Board, the Group’s auditor confirmed that with regard to
the above continuing connected transactions entered into during the year
ended December 31, 2024:

nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board of the Company.

ii. nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions.

iii. for the aggregate amount of the continuing connected transactions
as set out above, nothing has come to their attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the amount of the transactions exceeds
the annual cap for the Group.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended December 31, 2024, there
are no other related party transactions or continuing related party
transactions set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements
which constitute discloseable connected transactions or discloseable
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules. In respect of
the connected transactions and the continuing connected transactions,
the Group has complied with the disclosure requirements of the Listing
Rules (as amended from time to time).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT
The biographies of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of the annual report.

The list of Directors during the Reporting Period and as at the Latest
Practicable Date (unless otherwise stated) is set out below:

Name

%
Mr. LIU Weiping

BETEs

Mr. LIU Fuping*
R e

Mr. SUN Yinong*
BlRELr
Mr. PENG Hongzhi

Mr. LIU Zhongsi

%‘J /ELE\ E\ % E

Mr. YU Feng**
REFE

Mr. CHEN Lin**
FRAE AL

Ms. XU Lil
HRENL

Mr. ZHANG Bihong
RWLEE

Ms. XING Dongmei
Baigat

Position

Rifu
Chairman and
executive Director

EZOIRANTES

Executive Director and
Vice Chairman

WTESRAESR

Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer
BAESRERUOT

Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer and
Senior Vice President
BIESRERHIET
Fedalez

Executive Director and Senior
Vice President

HITESRRREEH

Executive Director and Senior
Vice President

HITESRARAEH

Executive Director and
Senior Vice President

YEFRERELR

Independent
Non-executive Director

BUFHTES

Independent
Non-executive Director

BUFHNITES

Independent
Non-executive Director

BUFHTES

Relationship with other Directors
and segor management

HEBEER
BREEENRE
Brother of Mr. LIU Fuping; Cousin of
Mr. LIU Zhongsi and Mr. YU Feng
YRTREMTT  ARBEEMER
RELENRT

Brother of Mr. LIU Weiping; Cousin of
Mr. LIU Zhongsi and Mr. YU Feng
HETRENDS  ARBEENER

RELENRT

N/A
#

Cousin of Mr. LIU Zhongsi
HRBEENRR

Cousin of Mr. LIU Weiping and Mr. LIU Fuping;
Cousin of Mr. PENG Hongzhi,
Mr. CHEN Lin and Mr. YU Feng
HETRERARTRENES
YESTERBHEENRAS
REFERNRT

Cousin of Mr. LIU Weiping, Mr. LIU Fuping
and Mr. LIU Zhongsi

BETrt  BRTAER
FRBRANRS

Cousin of Mr. LIU Zhongsi

HRBRANRS

N/A

i

N/A

2

N/A
£

Mr. SUN Yinong resigned as an executive Director of the Company on March

27, 2025; Mr. SUN Yinong will also resign as the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company on April 30, 2025, and Mr. LIU Fuping will assume the position
of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company starting from April 30, 2025.

**  Mr. CHEN Lin resigned as an executive Director of the Company on April 25,
2024; Mr. YU Feng was appointed as an executive Director of the Company
on April 25, 2024.

ESEREREEERRFE
AEEE $ EEMERENEERRAFRESR
RAREIEERE |
HBEBALBESRRATAM(BAETRINNES
BEWMT
Commencement
date of the Expiry date of
Time of joining current term the current term
the Group of office of office
MAFEBFE AEEHRGES  AEAHERAH
Since the establishment  April 25, 2024 April 24, 2027
of the Group
E?iiﬁlﬁﬁum 202454258 2027545248
Since the establishment  April 25, 2024 April 24, 2027
of the Group
EZKEII?MLM 2024%4R25H 202754824
September 2021 April 25, 2024 April 24, 2027
2021594 20244 F25R 2027541248
October 2010 April 25,2024 April 24, 2027
20106104 2024F4F258 202741248
July 2007 April 25, 2024 April 24, 2027
2007574 2024F4F25H 2027641248
October 2011 April 25, 2024 April 24, 2027
2011510A 20244 F258 202741248
June 2009 April 27, 2021 April 25, 2024
2009664 202148278 2024548258
April 2021 May 10, 2024 May 9, 2027
2021544 202458108 202745R98
April 2021 May 10, 2024 May 9, 2027
2021541 2024558108 2027598
April 2021 May 10, 2024 May 9, 2027
2021544 202458108 2027F5A9A
o BRINEREAER2025F3 A27 BBEAR 7ﬁﬁ§$
%W%%iﬁ%ﬁm%ﬁ4ﬂmﬁ%&$ AEFY
T8 BEFREBEE2025F4A30 A RETAQF
BEHITE -
> R 202454 A5 ABFEARRNANITES + R

oA
EEAER2024F4B25BEZ T ABAR 7% TEE
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PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

AND APPOINTMENT LETTERS

(a) Executive Directors
Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with us for a term of three years pursuant to which they agreed
to act as executive Directors with effect from the date of their
appointments. The service contract may be renewed in accordance
with the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules. Either party
has the right to give not less than three months’ written notice to
terminate the agreement.

(b) Independent non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with our Company for a term of three years
which shall take effect from the date of his/her appointment. The
appointment letter may be renewed in accordance with the Articles
of Association and the Listing Rules. Each party may terminate the
appointment letter in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the appointment letter or by giving not less than one month’s prior
written notice.

None of the Directors had a service contract with the Company
which was not terminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT AND FIVE HIGHEST-PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The Company offers the executive Directors and senior management,
as its employees, with remuneration in the form of salaries, allowances,
benefits in kind, performance-related bonuses, share-based payment,
pensions, and other social insurance benefits. Independent non-executive
Directors are remunerated according to their duties (including serving as
members or chairmen of the Board committees).

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, senior management of the
Group and the five highest-paid individuals for 2024 are set out in notes 9
and 37 to the consolidated financial statements in the annual report.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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For the year ended December 31, 2024, the remuneration of members of
senior management (including executive Directors) by pay range is set out
below:

Range N

HK$0 to 1,000,000 021,000,000/ 7T
HK$1,000,001 to 1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to 2,000,000
Above HK$2,000,001 2,000,001 TbA £
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
For the year ended December 31, 2024, none of the Company’s Directors
or entities connected with them had any material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any significant transactions, arrangements or contracts to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a

party.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
For the year ended December 31, 2024, none of the Directors, the
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries or their respective associates had
any interest in a business, which competes or is likely to compete, directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Company and its subsidiaries (except
as acting as Directors and/or directors of their subsidiaries and their
respective associates), which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of
the Listing Rules.

1,000,001% 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,00122,000,000/8 7T

HZE2024F12A31HIEFE  aREEEKE(BE
WITER)RFNSHE D OFHETOT -

Number of
individuals

A

N O O O

EEHEERS  ZYHERPHFE

HZE2024F12A31BIEFE  ARAIESHERS
EAENERREARR RS ETRWER FFE KW
BARGIVMIMNEER S « THKARFTZHEM
HiEsk g E AR -

EEERFEBDPIER
HE2024F12A318LFE EF - ARAETH
BRABIZEEZHHES A 2BE AT ELFMER
NEIREMB R EBE T F AT REERFHEF (T
wEEIME) 2EBTRAEE(ERESR SE
MEBARZESREESAZHMBALRIN WA
RIECETRBNES 10 ZRTE T IARE -
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As of December 31, 2024, the interests or short positions of our Directors
and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
our Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, which will have to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which will be required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein,
or which will be required to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

EERESTRAEREQ AR EBEE
Bz~ HERG RERER ZBHER K

B

R2024F 128318 EERESTBRABRAAT
R - BERD REEETEARB(ESF RS
&BIYEXVERET R85 SBAEME ANA A KB X TR 4
wmoAR (EE B(EFRIEKRFDEXVE) (B ER
B(EH RS RN EBRIECEEERBAEERN
AR » SRECES KA EEHI)EE 352167850
SRR ZIGFTIE B MRS sk R - SIRIBC TR
BIDETECZ AT RN BRNE A A A R R AT R 3
KEWT

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in  Long position/

Number of the total issued short position/
Name Nature of interest shares held share capital (%) Lending pool
HEBITRA
HEREN HAR/ KBS
HE EEME BENRA BMABIH(%) AHEEHNRE
Mr. LIU Weiping™@® Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
(note 1,2,3)
BIf T EmRe BErEXEmA (M33E1,2,3) 0E
Mr. LIU Fuping®™@® Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
ZfEF o AEme FREXEA e
Mr. SUN Yinong® Beneficial Owner 8,003,201 0.34%  Long Position
BRIFE S BEnEAA 0E
Mr. PENG Hongzhi® Beneficial Owner 5,980,449 0.25%  Long Position
TRELES EmBaA e
Mr. LIU Zhongsi® Beneficial Owner 6,900,776 0.29%  Long Position
2R BRAES BEnEAA 0E
Mr. CHEN Lin® Beneficial Owner 5,501,073 0.23%  Long Position
BRARSEAED EmBaA e
Mr. YU Feng® Beneficial Owner 5,239,816 0.22%  Long Position
RELE® BEnEAA 0E

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Notes:

(1) The Integrity Trust is a trust established for the benefit of HH Green
Philosophy (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Weiping) and HH Innovation
Group (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Fuping), with Mr. LIU Weiping
and Mr. LIU Fuping acting as the protectors and The Core Trust Company
Limited acting as the trustee. The Integrity Trust is interested in 95% of
shareholding in HH Global Capital through two intermediary entities, namely
Amused Town Limited and Adroit Fairy Limited.

(2)  The He He Trust is a trust established for the benefit of HH Green Philosophy
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Weiping) and HH Innovation Group (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Fuping), with Mr. LIU Weiping and Mr.
LIU Fuping acting as the protectors and The Core Trust Company Limited
acting as the trustee. The He He Trust is interested in 5% of shareholding in
HH Global Capital through two intermediary entities, namely Beacon Flash
Limited and Decision Stone Limited.

(3) Immediately following the completion of the Global Offering, Mr. LIU
Weiping and Mr. LIU Fuping, through their trust vehicles and various
intermediary subsidiaries (including HH Global Capital, Amused Town
Limited, Decision Stone Limited, Adroit Fairy Limited, Beacon Flash Limited,
HH Green Philosophy and HH Innovation Group), were collectively interested
in approximately 80.99% of our enlarged issued share capital, thus they
remained as the group of our Controlling Shareholders. Accordingly, each
of Mr. LIU Weiping and Mr. LIU Fuping is deemed to be interested in the
1,904,243,183 shares held by HH Global Capital for purpose of Part XV of
the SFO.

(4)  Mr. SUN Yinong is interested in 8,003,201 underlying shares relating to the
RSUs granted to him pursuant to the RSU Scheme.

(5)  Mr. PENG Hongzhi is interested in 5,980,449 underlying shares relating to the
RSUs granted to him pursuant to the RSU Scheme.

(6)  Mr. LIU Zhongsi is interested in 6,900,776 underlying shares relating to the
RSUs granted to him pursuant to the RSU Scheme.

(7)  Mr. CHEN Lin is interested in 5,501,073 underlying shares relating to the
RSUs granted to him pursuant to the RSU Scheme.

Mr. CHEN Lin has resigned as an executive Director of the Company on April
25, 2024.

(8)  Mr. YU Feng is interested in 5,239,816 underlying shares relating to the RSUs
granted to him pursuant to the RSU Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2024, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the requirements of the Model Code.
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RIGHTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR BONDS

During the Current Year, none of the Company, its subsidiaries, its
holding company or subsidiaries of its holding company entered into
any arrangement that enables the Directors and chief executive of the
Company to obtain benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN
Details of the retirement benefit plan are set out in note 2.16 and note
9(a) to the financial statements.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at December 31, 2024, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the interests or short positions of the following persons (other than
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company) in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

EERBRERTBRARBERONER 22
il

RAFE - ARF - AEAMBAR - RERATK
EERA RMOME A R T2 - REAR
Az EFREBTHABEBREARRAREME
fto % A AR MO BRAA 55 T 1 F 2 o

BIKERIGE
ERARKSTBFHBEEHNA H S ®mKRMIFE2.16 W
9(@a) °

FERRRAQXTRG REER G ER
5879

HE2024F12A318  REEFA - LFAL(IIE
EERARRESTHAB)RARRAR RN &8 #ERK
NHREBRIB(ES MEEEN)FE3364EMETHE
ST SR I UK R

Approximate
percentage of

shareholding in  Long position/

Number of the total issued short position/

Name Nature of interest shares held share capital (%) Lending pool
EERTRABER #H8 %Ee/

A EEMtE RENRG REOBOBEI(%) TEHELHRG
HH Global Capital™® Beneficial owner 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
FAZIRE AR0@ ERBEBA 3y}
Mr. LIU Weiping@®® Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
BIE T oW EFER@mA E
HH Green Philosophy@@ Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
A4 125 0@ BrREX@mA 3y}
The Integrity Trust@® Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99% Long Position
The Integrity Trust?@ ZEE R He
Adroit Fairy Limited@®@ Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
Adroit Fairy Limited R EEER A
Amused Town Limited@@ Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position

Amused Town Limited2@ SiErE R
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Long position/

Number of the total issued short position/

Name Nature of interest shares held share capital (%) Lending pool
EERITRABER FE %8/
HE EEME FENRG REOBABES(%) THELHRG
The Core Trust Company Trustee 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
Limited®®®

[EREFEAR AR A TR
Mr. LIU Fuping@®@ Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
2R kL BREEEA HE
HH Innovation Group®® Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
AL EEIFHE@ EFEX@mA 3y}
The He He Trust®@ Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99% Long Position
The He He Trust®® Sy rEER TR
Beacon Flash Limited®@ Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
Beacon Flash Limited®@ R EEER 55
Decision Stone Limited® Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99% Long Position

Decision Stone Limited®@

Q)

@)

(©)

XEmrEER

As of December 31, 2024, HH Global Capital directly held 1,904,243,183
shares of the Company.

The Integrity Trust is a trust established for the benefit of HH Green
Philosophy (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Weiping) and HH Innovation
Group (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Fuping), with Mr. LIU Weiping
and Mr. LIU Fuping acting as the protectors and The Core Trust Company
Limited acting as the trustee. The Integrity Trust is interested in 95% of
shareholding in HH Global Capital through two intermediary entities, namely
Amused Town Limited and Adroit Fairy Limited.

The He He Trust is a trust established for the benefit of HH Green Philosophy
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Weiping) and HH Innovation Group (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Fuping), with Mr. LIU Weiping and Mr.
LIU Fuping acting as the protectors and The Core Trust Company Limited
acting as the trustee. The He He Trust is interested in 5% of shareholding in
HH Global Capital through two intermediary entities, namely Beacon Flash
Limited and Decision Stone Limited.

M

e

HE2024F12A8318 - MMEHEAEZIFBEARR]
1,904,243,1830% %17 °

The Integrity Trust 2 LA RN A1 4% 538 & (B @ F L £/
2EMBAR) RAMMEBELFH (RRTLENDENR
BAR)AZHAMBILNET  HREFFLEER
ZIEFEEARREALEREAERARAITA -
The Integrity TrustiBiBRIZR 97 & 88 (BlAmused Town
Limited &2 Adroit Fairy Limited ) 7 F Al 2 B & AN 95% H)
iR HE A RER

The He He Trust2 AFIMA EE S (RIFTLEENEE
MEBAR) RAMEBELF (ARFELENZEHRBEA
A AZHmAMBIHET - HR2AGFLEREET
SEBREABEBRETARATAZIEA © The He
He Trustif @M /1 & §2 (BBeacon Flash Limited &
Decision Stone Limited ) FAFIFI 2 BRE K5 % HY A AEE AR 1R
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(4)  As of December 31, 2024, Mr. LIU Weiping and Mr. LIU Fuping, through
their trust vehicles and various intermediary subsidiaries (including HH Global
Capital, Amused Town Limited, Decision Stone Limited, Adroit Fairy Limited,
Beacon Flash Limited, HH Green Philosophy and HH Innovation Group), were
collectively interested in approximately 80.99% of our enlarged issued share
capital, thus they remained as the group of our Controlling Shareholders.
Accordingly, each of Mr. LIU Weiping, Mr. LIU Fuping, HH Green Philosophy,
HH Innovation Group, The Integrity Trust, The He He Trust, Adroit Fairy
Limited, Beacon Flash Limited, Amused Town Limited, Decision Stone Limited,
The Core Trust Company Limited and HH Global Capital is deemed to be
interested in the 1,904,243,183 shares held by HH Global Capital for purpose
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2024, the Directors were
not aware that any other person had any interest and/or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of our Company which would fall to be
disclosed to us pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or, who is, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of
the nominal value of any class of our share capital carrying rights to vote
in all circumstances at general meetings of our Company.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” of
the Report of the Directors, (i) no significant contracts were entered into
by, and/or subsisted between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the Current
Year; and (i) there are no significant contracts in relation to the provision
of services by the Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the
Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Since the Listing Date and up to December 31, 2024, the Company had
not entered into or maintained any equity-linked agreement which would
or could result in the issuance of shares by the Company, or which would
or could require the issuance of shares by the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and the laws of the Cayman Islands which oblige the
Company to offer new shares to existing shareholders on a pro-rata basis.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions in the ordinary course of business
are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements in the
annual report. Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” above, these related party transactions are carried out in the
ordinary course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms
or better, and the Directors of the Company currently expect that each
relevant percentage ratio calculated under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules (other than the profits ratio) will be less than 0.1% on an annual
basis. Pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing Rules, the transactions
will be exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08(1) of the Listing Rules requires that there must be an open
market in the securities for which listing is sought, and a sufficient public
float of an issuer’s listed securities shall be maintained. Generally, at least
25% of an issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held
by the public. Pursuant to Rule 8.08(1)(d) of the Listing Rules, the Stock
Exchange may, subject to certain conditions and at its discretion, accept
a lower percentage of between 15% and 25% in the case of issuers with
an expected market capitalization at the time of listing of over HK$10
billion.

The Stock Exchange confirmed that it would exercise its discretion under
Rule 8.08(1)(d) of the Listing Rules, provided that the minimum public
float of the Company shall be the highest of (i) 15% of the total issued
share capital of the Company; (ii) the percentage of shares held by the
public (including pre-IPO investors) after the completion of the Global
Offering, namely 17.06%. Based on information publicly available to the
Company as of the Latest Practicable Date and to the knowledge of the
Directors, the Directors confirmed that the above minimum public float
required by the Stock Exchange was maintained by the Company from
the Listing Date to the date of the report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

There was no contract concerning the management or administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company which
was entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
During the Reporting Period, the Group was not involved in any material
legal proceedings.

LOANS AND GUARANTEES

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not directly or indirectly
provide any loans or loan guarantees to the Directors, senior management,
Controlling Shareholders or their respective connected persons of the
Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

For details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance, please
see the Group’s 2024 Sustainability Report (ESG Report) issued with the
report.

ENTRUSTED AND MATURED DEPOSITS

As of December 31, 2024, the Group did not have entrusted deposits
with financial institutions in China, or any matured deposits which were
overdue and could not be withdrawn.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION FOR HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief to which any holder of the
Company's securities is entitled as a result of holding such securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company received an annual confirmation of independence from
the independent non-executive Directors, based on which the Company
believed that all independent non-executive Directors were independent
under the Listing Rules.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at December 31, 2024, the total number of employees of the
Group was 7,628, and during the Reporting Period, the total employee
benefits (including Directors’ remuneration) amounted to approximately
RMB1,119.8 million. We always believe that the Group’s long-term
growth depends on the expertise and capability of our employees. We
proactively optimize the talent selection and cultivation mechanism in
order to improve the overall competitiveness of our employees and their
sense of belongings to the Group.

The human resources are one of the Group’s most important assets and
the key to the continuous growth of the Group’s business. The Group’s
remuneration policy is determined by the salary levels in different regions,
employee rank and performance and the market conditions. Apart from
basic remuneration, for all employees in Mainland China, the Group
makes contributions towards employee mandatory social security schemes
including pensions, unemployment compensation, work-related injury
insurance, maternity insurance and medical insurance in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations of Mainland China. The Group
also makes contributions towards housing provident fund schemes
for employees in Mainland China as required by applicable local laws
and regulations in Mainland China. For employees in Hong Kong and
other countries, the Group also makes contributions towards relevant
insurance schemes, pension schemes and provident fund as required by
applicable local laws and regulations. The pensions and unemployment
insurance belong to defined contributions schemes. The Group does not
have the right to confiscate the contributions, and therefore has no use
of the contributions for the year ended December 31, 2024. Besides,
performance bonus and other incentive systems are established to
recognize and encourage organizations and employees which have made
outstanding contributions to the Group’s business. Generally, a salary
review is conducted annually to make sure that the overall remuneration
policy is competitive.

The Group has introduced human resource management system, which
facilitates the decision makers and management team to comprehensively
and timely understand the Company’s employee structure and the
growth status of its employees, and helps human resource department
to continuously improve the organizational structure of human resources
according to business development, thus greatly improving the business
collaborative efficiency.
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At the same time, the Group systematically plans the functions of each
department, attaches importance to the complementary allocation within
the Group in the selection and appointment of talents, pays attention to
the comprehensive performance assessment of the team and individual in
the assessment of personnel ability, and supplements the introduction of
external outstanding talents on the basis of the training of internal talents
to consummate the construction of the entire talent echelon.

The Group emphasizes on employee training and development, and has
established a systematic talent training system for providing employee
development resources and platforms. Based on the Group's strategic
development needs, our training system is developed from three
aspects, namely basic general training, business professional training
and competency improvement training, with the aim of helping talents
improve their ability to achieve both organizational mission and personal
mission. At the same time, the Group has established an online unified
knowledge and information sharing platform named “Fenxiang Tang (%
ZE)", through which the knowledge and information is disseminated so
as to add value among employees.

In strict compliance with the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Group
pays labor remuneration and makes contributions to social insurance
and housing provident funds for its employees. Meanwhile, we also
provide annual check-ups, holiday benefits, etc., so as to fully protect our
employees through a variety of benefit measures.
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EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE SCHEME
In order to motivate and reward the Directors, senior management
members and other employees who contributed to the development
of the Group, the Company adopted the RSU Scheme pursuant to the
resolution of shareholders dated January 1, 2021. The main contents of
the RSU Scheme are summarized as follows:

1. Purpose
The purpose of the RSU Scheme was to provide incentives and
rewards to Directors, senior management members and other
employees who contributed to the development of the Group.

2. RSU participants in the RSU Scheme

Participants of the RSU Scheme (the “RSU Participants”) are selected
by the Board from our Directors (executive or non-executive, but
excluding independent non-executive Directors), management,
officers and existing employees of the Company or any member of
the Group.

3.  Number of shares and maximum number of shares

that each participant is eligible to receive

The number of RSUs to be granted shall be determined at the sole
and absolute discretion of the Board and may differ among selected
RSU Participants. The total number of shares which may be issued
under the RSU Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the total issued
share capital of the Company upon the approval of the general
meeting of the Company for the RSU Scheme, or 235,114,557
shares (representing 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of the report). The total number
of shares granted or to be granted to any participant shall not
exceed 1% of the total issued share capital of the Company upon
the approval of the general meeting of the Company for the RSU
Scheme namely 23,511,455 shares.

4. Vesting period
The awards to be granted will be vested and unrestricted pursuant
to the terms of the respective grant letters to the individual RSU
Participant.

5. Consideration for application for incentive shares
All awards under the RSU Scheme are granted at nil consideration.
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(1

()

Term of the scheme

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board,
the RSU Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Date of Adoption. As of 31 December 2024,
the remaining term of the RSU Scheme is 6 years. The Company
has engaged SWCS Trust Limited to administer and hold the
Company'’s shares before they are vested and transferred to the RSU
Participants. Before the Listing, the awards granted by the Company
correspond to 45,898,681 shares, accounting for 1.95% of the
total issued shares of the Company. As the RSUs in respect of all
shares under the RSU Scheme have been issued in full immediately
before Listing and no further awards will be granted under the RSU
Scheme after Listing, during the year ended December 31, 2024,
there were no further RSUs granted under the RSU Scheme, and
3,092,870 incentive shares have been vested to the corresponding
incentivised person that had met the vesting conditions, while
3,073,325 incentive shares that did not meet the vesting conditions
have become lapsed. Therefore, both the number of awards
available for grant under the RSU Scheme at the beginning and the
end of the Reporting Period, and the number of shares that may be
issued in respect of awards granted under the RSU Scheme during
the Reporting Period divided by the weighted average number of
shares of the relevant class in issue for the Reporting Period are not
applicable to the Company. As at the Latest Practicable Date, the
Board of Directors has approved the 2024 Restricted Share Unit
Scheme (the “2024 Incentive Scheme”) based on an aggregate
of 5,450,227 of all lapsed shares (including the aforesaid lapsed
incentive shares) up to the date of the Board meeting held on
March 21, 2024 (for the avoidance of doubt, existing shares of the
Company). The main contents of the 2024 Incentive Scheme are
summarized as follows:

Purpose

The purpose of the 2024 Incentive Scheme was to provide incentives
and rewards to Directors, senior management members and other
employees who contributed to the development of the Group.

Participants of the 2024 Incentive Scheme

Participants of the 2024 Incentive Scheme (the “Participant(s) of
the 2024 Incentive Scheme”) are selected by the Board from our
Directors (executive or non-executive, but excluding independent
non-executive Directors), management, senior management and
existing employees of the Company or any member of the Group.
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3)

4)

(5)

(6)

Number of shares and maximum number of shares
that each participant is eligible to receive

The number of RSUs to be granted shall be determined at the
sole and absolute discretion of the Board and may differ among
Participants of the 2024 Incentive Scheme. The total number of
shares available for grant under the 2024 Incentive Scheme is
5,450,227 (0.23% of the total issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this report). The total number of shares granted or to
be granted to any Participant of the 2024 Incentive Scheme shall not
exceed 1% of the total issued share capital of the Company upon
the approval for the 2024 Incentive Scheme by the Board, namely
23,511,455 shares. For the avoidance of doubt, the awards under
the 2024 Incentive Scheme are based on the existing shares of the
Company.

Vesting period

The awards to be granted will be vested and unrestricted pursuant to
the terms of the respective grant letters to the individual Participants
of the 2024 Incentive Scheme.

Consideration for application for incentive shares
All awards under the 2024 Incentive Scheme are granted at nil
consideration.

Term of the scheme

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board,
the 2024 Incentive Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on the date of adoption (i.e., March 21,
2024). As at the Latest Practicable Date, the remaining term of the
2024 Incentive Scheme is 10 years. The Company has engaged
SWCS Trust Limited to administer and hold the Company’s shares
before they are vested and transferred to the Participants of the
2024 Incentive Scheme.
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4

(5
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As of December 31, 2024, details of the incentive shares granted under &, Z2024412 318 - BB Z R I (5 B st 2152

the RSU Scheme and the changes were as follows: HE BB R B BN T -
Weighted
average dlosing
price of the
underlying
shares
immediately
Number before the Number
of shares Number Number dates on which Number Number  of shares
granted  of shares of shares theawards  of shares  of shares granted
but not granted vested were vested lapsed  cancelled but not
Name and vestedon  duringthe  during the duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  vested on
category of January 1, Reporting  Reporting Reporting  Reporting  Reporting December 31,
grantee Date of grant Date of vesting 2024 Period Period Period Period Period 2024
REEHR
20245 EERHE 20245
1818 SREES 128318
BRAE REEEA REEAR REdzE  MEHR  REEER BRA
ABEN Rt BEN Kne P L] N EXERE
REARAREN  RHAH BRAS Rhit#g  ROME  ReEE HWmE  RGEE  RHHE  NRGEE
Directors
g2
SUN Yinong'" October 10,2021 April 30, 2023 - April 30, 2028 6,184,387 - 476,234 HKDE.66 - - 5708153
BmgY A21F10A108 2023545308 - 2008545308 6865
December 1,202 April 30, 2025 666,062 - - - - - 666,062
0024512A18 2005547308
PENG Hongzhi January 1, 2021 January 1, 2022 - January 1, 2027 390,600 - 111,600 HKD7.10 - - 279,000
% 200151818 00051818 - 200751 A1 71087
October 10,2021 January 1, 2022 - December 30, 2030 3828812 - 426,682 HKD6.66 - - 3402130
2021510A108 20261818 - 2030612308 6.6657L
December 1,2022  April 30, 2025 509,236 - - - - - 509,236
004512A18 2005647308
LIU Zhongsi January 1, 2021 January 1, 2022 - January 1, 2027 487,900 - 139,400 HKD7.10 - - 343,500
it WIFRIB 00FIR1B-200751718 11087
October 10,2021 January 1, 2022 - December 30, 2030 4,385,944 - 455,703 HKD6.66 41332 - 3888909
21510A108 202261818 - 20306124308 6.66/7L
December 1,2022  April 30, 2025 592,969 - - - - - 592,969
002512418 202564 A308
CHEN Lin® January 1, 2021 January 1, 2022 - January 1, 2027 329,700 - 94,200 HKD7.10 - - 235,500
Fe 200151818 200251518 - 200751718 11057
October 10,2021 January 1, 2022 - December 30, 2030 3,549,356 - 350,749 HKD6.66 41,437 - 3157170
21F10A108 202281818 - 2030128307 6.6677T
December 1,2022  Apri 30, 2025 465,65 - - - - - 465,656
2022512418 200547308
YU Feng® January 1, 2021 January 1, 2022 - January 1, 2027 341,600 - 97,600 HKD7.10 - - 244,000
GREE 200151818 001 A18 - 200751 A1 71057
October 10,2021 January 1, 2022 - December 30, 2030 2895414 - 269,000 HKD6.66 27,206 - 2,599,208
1F10A108 2021518 - 2030128307 6.6657
December 1,202 April 30, 2025 972,192 - - - - - 972,192

2002512718 202554308
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Number

of shares Number
granted  of shares
but not granted

Name and vestedon  during the
category of January 1, Reporting
grantee Date of grant Date of vesting 2024 Period
20245
1A18
BREE REEER
AERN el
AREARAREN  RUAH BRAS ktigg  RHHE
Employees
(excluding Directors)
Ea(T2E3)
Employees January 1, 2021 January 1, 2022 - January 1, 2027 1,271,900 -
€& 200151818 2000F1 818 - 200751 A1

October 10,2021 January 1, 2022 - December 30, 2030 4,247 664 -
21107108 202261718 - 20305124308

May 26, 2022 April 30, 2023 - April 30, 2027 851,418 -
2022557265 2023548308 - 2027543308
December 1,2022  Apri 30, 2023 - April 30, 2027 3,929,976 -
2020512A18 2023%4A308 - 202754 4308
Total
&t 35,900,786 -
Notes:

(1) On March 27, 2025, Mr. SUN Yinong has resigned as an executive Director of
the Company.

(2)  On April 25 2024, Mr. CHEN Lin has resigned as an executive Director of the
Company and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board.

(3)  On April 25, 2024, Mr. YU Feng has been appointed as an executive Director
of the Company and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Board.

For further details of changes in RSUs during the Current Year, see Note
10 to consolidated financial information.

For details of the employee incentive scheme, see the Prospectus
published by the Company on the website of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the Company
(www.weilongshipin.com) on December 5, 2022.

Weighted
average dlosing
price of the
underlying
shares
immediately
before the Number
Number dates on which Number Number ~ of shares
of shares theawards  ofshares  of shares granted
vested were vested lapsed  cancelled but not
during the duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  vested on
Reporting Reporting  Reporting  Reporting December 31,
Period Period Period Period 2024
REESR
EBRGE 20245
SRKES 12A318
R REdzE  MEHR  REEER BRA
BEN Kne X N ERER
Ritg@ THWmE  RGEE  RHHE  NRGEE
363,400 HKD7.10 45,500 - 863,000
1108
69,719 HKD7.10 352,761 - 3825184
71087
53,951 HKD6.66 401,820 - 395,647
6667570
184,632 HKD6.66 2,163,269 - 1,582,075
66677
3,092,870 - 3073325 - 29,734,591

F5E

(1) M202543A278  BINERFLEBREIARANTNITES °

(2) M2024F4F258 MM AEEBERRRRITESR
EESHTHNEZE X BRT -

(3) 2024F4A258  RAGCEEZTAARRARMITE
EREECHNEZE GBS -

BREATFERNZRBIRMDEMEBNNE—PFE 5

L2 A HF B ERKIE0

EE BT EFBHEAEART2022912 A5A T

A E BB R AT 4908 (www.hkexnews.hk) R 2K A 7 48 04
(www.weilongshipin.com)f B % £ o
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As of December 31, 2024, details of the incentive shares granted under
the 2024 Incentive Scheme and the changes were as follows:

Number
of shares Number
granted of shares
but not granted vested
Name and vestedon  during the
Category of January 1, Reporting
grantee Date of grant Date of vesting 2024 Period Period
2024
1A18
EEEE  REREHR
AEEMH b BEN
REAREREN  RHAH FEAS JGiE 1 Rh%E
Directors
ES
SUN Yinong” May 18, 2024 April 30, 2026 - 676,518
FhEo W245R18F 20264308
PENG Hongzhi May 18, 2024 April 30, 2026 - 378,857
s 4558188 2006547308
LIU Zhongsi May 18, 2024 April 30, 2026 - 378,857
IhiE 4558188 2006547308
CHEN Lin®? May 18, 2024 April 30, 2026 - 378,857
Fe 4558188 2006547308
YU Feng® May 18, 2024 April 30, 2026 - 378,857
RED W245R18F 20264308
Employees
(excluding Directors)
[E&(T2EE)
Employees May 18, 2024 April 30, 2026 - 3,002,168
k8 W4F5F18F 2006547308
Total
it - 5194114
Notes:

(1) On March 27, 2025, Mr. SUN Yinong has resigned as an executive Director of
the Company.

(2)  On April 25 2024, Mr. CHEN Lin has resigned as an executive Director of the
Company and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board.

(3)  On April 25, 2024, Mr. YU Feng has been appointed as an executive Director
of the Company and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Board.

For the aggregate of 5,194,114 incentive shares granted on 18 May
2024, (1) the closing price of the shares of the Company on the date
immediately preceding the grant of incentive shares (being 17 May 2024)
is HK$5.80 per share; (5) each grantee shall fulfill his/her respective
appraisal targets during the vesting period, including (i) annual results
and performance of the Group; (ii) the key performance indicators of
respective department and/or business unit that the grantee belongs
to; and (iii) his/her individual position, annual appraisal result and other
factors relevant to such grantee; and (3) the fair value of relevant
incentive shares on the date of grant was HK$5.80 per share, and for the
accounting standards and policies adopted in respect thereof, please refer
to Note 2.16 to the financial statements.

For further details of changes in RSUs during the Current Year, see Note
10 to consolidated financial information.
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Number
of shares

during the
Reporting

REESA
Rt#e

HZE2024F 124318 + 1RIF2024F HEN T &1 HEY

BB REHHEOT -
Weighted average closing Number
price of the underlying Number Number of shares
shares immediately of shares of shares granted
before the dates on lapsed cancelled but not
whichtheawards ~ duringthe  during the vested on
were vested duringthe ~ Reporting  Reporting  December 31,
Reporting Period Period Period 2024
20245
12A318
REEEREERAE  REEEA  REEER BRA
FEREERAMZA R N BA5R
WiETSHE ks kfi%g  wROHE
- - - 676,518
- - - 318,857
- - - 318,857
- - - 318,857
- - - 318,857
- 906,348 - 2,095,820
- 906,348 - 4,281,766

MI3E
(1) M202543A278  BINRFEBERARFTNITES ©

(2) M2024F4F258 MM EBERRRRITESR
EESHTWEESK BT -

(3) M2024F4F258 « REGCHEEZETARNARINITE
EREECHNEZE GBS -

FLR2024F5 418 BT KA 5,194, 11415 BB A
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B) ARG W EAEZRD5.808T : 2F
ZERANBEREBHANERFESANEZEE
BEOAEENFEEERRKE () EBRAFTBIM
Ko/ ER BRI BB EIE ¢ R(iEABLL - F
EEZERNEARABENEMEE : RO)IERM
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2.16 ¢
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is fully aware of the importance of good corporate
governance in enhancing the management of the Company and
protecting the interests of shareholders as a whole. The Company has
adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
as its code for its corporate governance practices. The Directors believed
that the Company complied with relevant code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code during the Reporting Period. The Board
will continue to review and monitor the Company’s practices to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” in the annual report.

AUDITOR

During the year ended December 31, 2024, Ernst & Young acted as the
reporting accountant and independent auditor of the Company. The
financial statements set out in the annual report were audited by Ernst &
Young, who will complete its term of office at the end of 2025 Annual
General Meeting and is eligible for reappointment. A resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the 2025
AGM.

There is no disagreement between the Board of Directors and the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors regarding the selection and
appointment of independent auditor of the Company.

Since June 2023, the Company has replaced Pricewaterhousecoopers and
appointed Ernst & Young as the Company'’s auditor.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not changed its auditor since
the Listing Date.

OTHER EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no material events after December 31, 2024 that would
materially affect the Group’s operating and financial performance as at
the Latest Practicable Date.

Other sections, reports or notes to the report referred to above constitute
part of the report of the Board of Directors.

By order of the Board

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd LIU
Weiping

Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, China
March 27, 2025
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AR R SIS

EY::

To the shareholders of WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of WEILONG
Delicious Global Holdings Ltd (the “Company"”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) set out on pages 105 to 216, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”) as issued by the International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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BASIS FOR OPINION (Cont'd)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

RRHER®2)

ERESE
MRETFRERERMANERAE - RAHAHE
HUBHRRNBARAERNTIR - ELFHEITAR
METERAHM BRI ASRRETRIEN -
BMTEHELERREREBNER - #METiE
—FRAEET T RNAESNHAENESE SR -

BRMEBITARE B AFT Y EHX A7 AL e &
o BREEELHRETFRAENET - R
B ET TIEREINIT REMFENAE S ERE
BEAERRAR R MR NERF - LARITER
BEFNGER  BRES NESEMATHNERF /8
MR B RETERRE TER -

Key audit matter

HRES SR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMOEFNMEERRETSE

Revenue recognition and volume rebates

WA TR R M EIRTY

The Group is engaged in the production and sale of spicy
snack food. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group recognized revenue from sale of goods amounting
to RMB6,266.3 million. Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer.

ERENERRAB RO EERESE - 8122024512431
HIEFE @ BREWRAEHEERNHKRAARKE6266385
7T e HEEMABAREEREHEEREE P AR BEHR -

The Group also offers volume rebates (including discounts,
rebates and trade incentives) to its customers. These rebates
are accounted for as a deduction from revenue.
EEETAEPIRHAZRM(BENN - BRINRZ 5 HE)
ZEIR M ARIIEN AR, ©

Our audit procedures to assess revenue recognition and volume

rebates included:

BT RAER R 2R AN ET R FEIE

e  Evaluating the design and implementation of internal
controls and testing their operating effectiveness over
revenue recognition and volume rebates;

o FMEARENESIARETEE IR S AR LB R
HEE K

e  Reviewing customer contracts, on a sample basis, to
identify terms and conditions relating to the transfer of
control over the products sold and assessing the Group's
timing of revenue recognition with reference to the
requirements of prevailing accounting standards;

o DI RBEREFER - AT EMEE TR
EBEBO GG - W2 ERTE R EKET
it BEREWRARER

ERERSRIERERAT
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BASIS FOR OPINION (Cont'd)
Key audit matters (Cont'd)

Key audit matter

BREER

=RNE#®)
BRETEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ES N AREREESE

A large proportion of the volume rebates amounting to
RMB206.2 million had not been paid as at 31 December 2024
and the relevant accruals were included in refund liabilities.
R2024F 127318 - REHERFIARK2062H5ETHAL
- ABRAERT BB BERt ARFEE -

We identified revenue recognition and volume rebates as a
key audit matter because there was a huge volume of revenue
transactions generated in many different locations and from
various customers and the amounts of volume rebates were
significant to the Group’s gross profit and significant estimates
were involved in determining certain volume rebates granted
to major customers.

BMET AR R SR GMEBEETEE - DHERFFET
AR TRAEFPEFANAREWARS - B2 RMNGHEY
EEEEMNMEEER  UREERTEARPHE THER
S EDN

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.17, 4, 5 and 29
to the consolidated financial statements.

EREIERSIN A Gr IS RRMTE2.17 - 4 529

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2024

Comparing revenue transactions recorded during the
current year, on a sample basis, with those in invoices,
sales contracts and goods delivery notes;

ARG B A FERAR F LR EZF AR 5 8%
Z HESRARERBBEITIR

Comparing, on a sample basis, revenue transactions
recorded before and after the financial year end date with
goods delivery notes and other relevant documentation;,
VAR 75 =0 B BUFE 45 B AT 2 ABRAI AR 2 BLE it
15 R E M AR B S ET TEL R

Reviewing underlying documentation on a sample basis,
for manual journal entries relating to revenue raised
during the year;

DA A ERFE AR EEGR AN T It 5k
BRI

Reviewing the Group’s assessment of expected volume
rebates, checking the Group's historical data for volume
rebates and the subsequent settlements of rebate;

Bz BESREERRESRMEE  2Y BEEHER
M 2 85 S BE 1R B R T G

Selecting samples of volume rebates for the year and
comparing each selected item with the relevant sales
contract and customer agreement, and recalculating the
volume rebates payable by the Group; and

BE L SR AETT AR AS S IE T B EARREHE
ERREFPHBHRELR  EMitE EXEEEMELER
MK

Comparing the amounts of the subsequent actual
settlements of volume rebates with the corresponding
amounts accrued as at the year end.

AL ERME R BB A E S R EF NIRRT R SRS
TR ©



Independent Auditor's Report Y& 3/ #Z 2Bl 3R &5

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the IASB and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

FERERESNEMESR
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B AU BHRERNT RILTE Z% J‘lﬂ% B
THZEEMESEREATANE
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Independent Auditor's Report Y& 3/ #Z 2Bl 3R &5

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2024
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Independent Auditor's Report Y& 3/ #Z 2Bl 3R &5

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)
From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yin Guowei.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BOHER

Year ended 31 December 2024 & Z 202412 831 B ILFfE

2024 2023
2024F 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
o= AR®TT AREFTT
Revenue from contracts REEFERMNKBA
with customers 5 6,266,326 4,871,666
Cost of sales of goods HER A 5,8 (3,250,194) (2,548,983)
Gross profit EX 3,016,132 2,322,683
Distribution and selling expenses N HEE R 8 (1,026,306) (806,709)
Administrative expenses EIRE A 8 (491,005) (458,927)
Net impairment gains on financial assets & §i& E R {E I 25 5 58 3.1 36 386
Other income, net E MU A F R 6 76,980 43,470
Other gains/(losses), net Hablkas(E518)F5E 7 (174,820) 2,810
Operating profit RERE 1,401,017 1,103,713
Finance income BEUA 11 179,470 197,085
Finance costs & A AN 11 (19,234) (21,526)
Finance income, net BB WA FEE 11 160,236 175,559
Profit before income tax Fr 488 B R 1,561,253 1,279,272
Income tax expense FRISTE 12 (493,146) (398,918)
Profit for the year FRFE 1,068,107 880,354
Profit is attributable to: AT &S EEFIE -
— Owners of the Company R VNGIEZZ =N 1,068,512 880,354
— Non-controlling interests — IR R RS (405) -
Earnings per share for AATHEE AEERIEH
profit attributable to owners BREBA(ARYE)
of the Company (RMB)
Basic earnings per share FRREARZF) 13 0.46 0.38
Diluted earnings per share GREE A 13 0.46 0.38
ERERSRIERERAT

2024 F#f

105



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A\ AN ><
= 'Q:F :%/T = I'I&ﬁﬁ
Year ended 31 December 2024 & ZE2024F12 B31HIFEE

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Profit for the year FRFE 1,068,107 880,354
Other comprehensive income Hittir & Wz
[tems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: A EH D EEIEZFAIER
Exchange differences on translation BMEFINERFHER 25
of foreign operations 7,862 (3,755)
Items that may not be reclassified to N EHHHEEEERIER
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation HREARNRIE R 25
of the Company 34,753 46,961
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMEGENE @ HIBHIE
net of tax 42,615 43,206
Total comprehensive income for the year FR&ZEKRIEBEE 1,110,722 923,560
Total comprehensive income for the year LI T &SELEFERNGZEWE
is attributable to: e
— Owners of the Company . VNCIEZ 2 =N 1,111,143 923,560
— Non-controlling interests — JEEIR A (421) -

1 06 WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2024



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BRI R

31 December 2024 2024512 5318

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 ARET T ARBT T
Assets EE
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment LE =Y 15 1,205,219 1,100,998
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 474,100 460,829
Goodwill (SRS 17 4,269 -
Other intangible assets HEfpmp EE 18 17,219 19,980
Term deposits with initial term VRER A=A LR
over three months EHER 24 2,879,414 2,570,023
Deferred income tax assets EEFTSTHEE 31 22,224 22,683
Other non-current assets HA3ERBEE 21 60,270 4,343
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 4,662,715 4,178,856
Current assets REBEE
Trade, other receivables and prepayments 5 5 « E f & kI8 & T 1
IE 20 253,353 211,531
Inventories T8 22 878,262 419,893
Financial assets at fair value through NAREBEFEREEZHA
profit or loss EHERNEREE 33 - 122,820
Restricted cash SR HIR S 23 - 166
Term deposits with initial term over three  #JFAHAMR & =1 A LA F#Y
months TEHFR 24 1,546,366 1,594,087
Cash and cash equivalents REREEZEEY 23 841,717 526,193
Total current assets MEEELRE 3,519,698 2,874,690
Total assets EEHE 8,182,413 7,053,546
Liabilities =0
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Borrowings B 30 176,015 178,960
Lease liabilities HEaE 16 19,826 8,930
Deferred income EIEWA 27 154,324 158,407
Deferred income tax liabilities BLEFSHEaE 31 125,807 93,362
Total non-current liabilities JEMENEEETE 475,972 439,659
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMRERRIE 28 826,627 662,744
Contract liabilities and refund liabilities ARAaERERAE 29 597,310 206,343
Current income tax liabilities BNEgFTS i a & 53,510 33,258
Borrowings =5 30 212,945 1,980
Lease liabilities HEAaE 16 9,619 3,692
Total current liabilities mENEERER 1,700,011 908,017
Total liabilities EE8E 2,175,983 1,347,676
Net assets EEZFE 6,006,430 5,705,870
ERERSRIERERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & 3t B AR R R

31 December 2024 202412 A31H

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
20244 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & ARBTF T AREFT
Equity ExR

Share capital RS 25 155 155
Other reserves Hib B 26 2,009,487 2,680,382
Retained earnings BFEA 3,987,709 3,025,333

Equity attributable to owners of the NAEEE AEEER
Company 5,997,351 5,705,870
Non-controlling interests eI R R 9,079 -
Total equity R 6,006,430 5,705,870
Total equity and liabilities EERkEERERE 8,182,413 7,053,546

Mr. Liu Weiping
BETRE

Director

EF

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Mr. Peng Hongzhi
WRERE
Director

EF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SHHERBER

Year ended 31 December 2024 & Z 202412 831 B ILFfE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
AN AIRERFEE AL

Share Other Retained Total
capital reserves earnings
e H A BIFAA &5t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETT ARETT ARETE
Notes (Note 26)
BE (Fft3E£26)
Balance at 1 January 2023 M2023F1A 1A MEEER 155 3,226,009 2,298,248 5,524,412
Comprehensive income mEWE
Profit for the year FAFHE - - 880,354 880,354
Other comprehensive income HEMgEsER - 43,206 - 43,206
Total comprehensive income mekEas - 43,206 880,354 923,560
Transactions with owners in their EREFZFEAETHRS :
capacity as owners:
Profit appropriation to statutory FMEIBEETBHREE
surplus reserves 26(b) - 154,769 (154,769) -
Dividend declared and paid BEERRENHORE 14 - (831,599) - (831,599)
Share-based payments - value of AR AERA R~
employee services EERBERE 26(c) - 89,981 - 89,981
Deferred tax impact related to share- B[R/ 8 X M AI AR &
based payments to employees ERER R B R
BRI E 31 - (484) - (484)
Transfer to retained earnings — BRERTAN -
deregistration of subsidiaries Lo)=YNGEE= - (1,500) 1,500 -
Total transactions with owners HEREEAETHRS
in their capacity as owners k) - (588,833) (153,269) (742,102)
Balance at 31 December 2023 M2023512A31 A& 155 2,680,382 3,025,333 5,705,870
DREGRESRIZRERD A
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &z & FH &
Year ended 31 December 2024 & Z2024F12 A31H I FE

Balance at 1 January 2024 R202451 B1 B LR 155 2,680,382 3,025,333 5,705,870 - 5,705,870
Comprehensive income FERE
Profit/loss) for the year FRFE/ (B8) - - 1068512 1,068,512 (405) 1,068,107
Other comprehensive income  E-ftiz A - 42,631 - 42,631 (16) 42,615
Total comprehensive GakE/ (F8)

income/(loss) ] - 42,631 1068512 1,111,143 (@21 1110722
Transactions with owners in ~ SEREEARTHRS

their capacity as owners:
Profit appropriation to statutory ~ FEABE AT BHEE

surplus reserves 26(b) - 106,690 (106,690) - - -
Dividend declared and paid BERREARE 14 - (855,859) - (855,859) - (855,859)
Share-based payments - value of AR/ B E AR —

employee services EEREREE 26() - 36,197 - 36,197 - 36,197
Capital injection from non- FARRRLE

controlling shareholders - - - - 9,500 9,500
Transfer to retained eamings - EEZBERA -

deregistration of subsidiaries MBI - (554) 554 - - -
Total transactions with owners EERZEHAETHRS

in their capacity as owners 45§ - (713,526) (106,136) (819,662) 9,500 (810,162)
Balance at 31 December 2024 2024512831 Hi&8 155 2,009,487 3,987,709 5,997,351 9,079 6,006,430

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEHRETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #,Z=2024F 12 A31B L FE

2024 2023
2024%F 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR%T T ARETFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMBERERE
Cash generated from operations KBRS 33(a) 1,783,735 1,482,635
Interest paid EAFLE (20,657) (23,695)
Interest received BUFIE 24,001 55,224
Income taxes paid B ATER (478,329) (358,449)
Net cash generated from operating RETHABRESFHE
activities 1,308,750 1,155,715
Cash flows from investing activities RETHFEBHRERE
Payments for acquisition of property, BEWE - BB KRB
plant and equipment (304,070) (121,084)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEMREN
plant and equipment FriSsE 7,077 35,793
Payments for other intangible assets HAbER & ENR (735) (1,173)
Return of a deposit payment and TR (F AN
prepayment related to land-use-rights REBES KRR IENFIE 29,068 -
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BENAARBEFE8EF 5T
through profit or loss AEHEENeRMEE (1,321,000) (1,526,547)
Redemption of financial assets at fair value BE[EILAR 5t BB 2 A A& H)Et
through profit or loss ABHEBERNERIEE 1,326,427 1,808,576
Increase in term deposits with s HARR R =18 A DA LB e HifE
initial term over three months TIE A0 (2,225,722) (3,545,087)
Redemption of term deposits with FEEI VA EAR A= B M KT
initial term of over three months HFR 2,133,293 2,163,560
Payment to a third party ME=FRR (185,000) -
Received from a third party M5 = 7GR 185,000 50,000
Government grants received related FAEENDRIBITHE
to assets 27 2,603 5,184
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B Bt /8 2 ) 32 10,259 -
Net cash used in investing activities REFEFTARESTFHE (342,800) (1,130,778)
DREGSBERERA
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows SR &RER
For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z2024F12 831 B I FE

2024 2023
2024%F 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR%T T ARETTT
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHAERERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRITIERPTIS A 2,788,000 2,559,800
Repayments of bank borrowings BB IRITER (2,579,980) (2,540,160)
Capital injection from non-controlling JEERE R ERIEE
shareholders 9,500 -
Dividends paid EIARE (855,859) (831,599)
Payments for listing expenses T ETHAZHIE - (11,522)
Repayment of the principal elements of BEBESEEENEREH
lease liabilities (11,826) (5,131)
Net cash used in financing activities BEETHFARSEE (650,165) (828,612)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBESZEYWEM (BD)
cash equivalents B 315,785 (803,675)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FORE MRS EED
of year 23 526,193 1,314,453
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes  SN\FEFE R BhEy g & (261) 15,415
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRELEEY
at end of year 23 841,717 526,193
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRASEEYERDNT
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances B4 MIRTT4E 8 841,717 526,193
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in AHREREBRRSHHE
the consolidated statement of cash MRRAFIHRER
flows and consolidated statement of BHELEY
financial position 841,717 526,193

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO ERRMEE

31 December 2024 2024512 A31H

GENERAL INFORMATION

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 6 July 2018 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Company Act (Cap 22, Law
3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is the offices of Maples Corporate
Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the production and sale of spicy snack food in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC").

The ultimate holding company of the Company is HH Global Capital
Ltd. The ultimate controlling parties are Mr. Liu Weiping and his
brother Mr. Liu Fuping (the “Controlling Shareholders”), who are
also the chairman and the executive director of the board of the
directors of the Company, respectively.

The Company'’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 15 December 2022 (the
“Listing”) by way of its initial public offering (“IPO").

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of material accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

—RER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and interpretations
as issued by International Accounting Standards and Standing
Interpretations Committee applicable to companies reporting
under IFRS Accounting Standards. The financial statements
comply with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") and rounded to nearest thousand, unless otherwise
stated.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
The Group has adopted the following revised IFRS Accounting
Standards for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”)
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)
Amendments to IAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements

and IFRS 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Cont’d)
The nature and the impact of the revised IFRS Accounting

Standards are described below:

(a

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognize any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. Since the Group
has no sale and leaseback transactions with variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
occurring from the date of initial application of IFRS 16,
the amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that
a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting
period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that
only if a conversion option in a convertible liability is
itself accounted for as an equity instrument would the
terms of a liability not impact its classification. The 2022
Amendments further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with
which an entity must comply on or before the reporting
date affect the classification of that liability as current or
non-current. Additional disclosures are required for non-
current liabilities that are subject to the entity complying
with future covenants within 12 months after the
reporting period.

The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions of its
liabilities as at 1 January 2023 and 2024 and concluded
that the classification of its liabilities as current or non-
current remained unchanged upon initial application of
the amendments. Accordingly, the amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group.

BB IRR M

2. EXETHEBE®)

SRR RIEBESEEE (@)

RIS RTC BB B 75 3 o5 22 R

)& s ERIR1E

B REZENT

(a)

(b)

(EBR B IS 2RI DR 165015 7] AR
BAEFAAALTESRARZ ST
EENHESERERANESR - A
REHABRATERRLRBHOFEA
ERENTARENEESHE - AR
RNEME B IXEBCEBR RS %
AIYE 165 s BBy e B HA
BURA IR B T R M AT B E 3
ERMABR S - MZFBITANEY
REBEIT RN KRB EEF M
@,

2020F BRI REE B EAERRE
SIERBAMETE  BIEREEEERER
B2 MR IERER SRR s IR TF
%E BENDBEIRERITEERL
HEHEFONATREMNZE - 25 &R
7Ti CBEEAUREARFOERT A
HE - HEZFEREENEREE

BAGERERTAARE - BED
° 20225 (&3]

ERT T aTEHDE

TE—ZRE  EERZHELN
BERZED  REERLVANREH
kBTN RAE T EZEEY
MESIERE D LR - BRBNREH
21218 A Wiaﬁ'iﬁ;}(ﬁaﬁﬁ"ﬂﬁ/ﬁ—r :
HIERB B BEEHRIMEE -

REEDEHRTHER2023F K
202451 A1 BB EBRR RGN
WREEBED ﬁﬁw@&%mﬁﬁ
BRERZEGII N EERTE -

M'&§@ﬂ$mﬁ£$%lmwﬁ
AR RIRIBE L EMFE -

DR ERSRIZERERD A
2024 F#f

115



116

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Cont’d)

()

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 clarify the characteristics
of supplier finance arrangements and require additional
disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure
requirements in the amendments are intended to assist
users of financial statements in understanding the
effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s
liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. As the
Group does not have supplier finance arrangements, the
amendments did not have any impact on the Group’'s
financial statements.

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRS Accounting
Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRS
Accounting Standards, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements. The Group intends to
apply these new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards, if
applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements®
IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public

Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7

Accountability: Disclosures?
Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?
Contracts Referencing Nature-
dependent Electricity?

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 21
Annual Improvements

to IFRS Accounting
Standards — VVolume 11

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026

3 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2027

2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Lack of Exchangeability'

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IFRS
9, IFRS 10 and IAS 72
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)

2.3

2.4

Issued but not yet effective IFRS Accounting
Standards (Cont'd)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised standards upon
initial application. IFRS 18 introduces new requirements on
presentation within the statement of profit or loss, including
specific totals and subtotals. It also requires disclosure of
management-defined performance measures in a note
and introduces new requirements for aggregation and
disaggregation of financial information. The new requirements
are expected to impact the Group’s presentation of the
statement of profit or loss and disclosures of the Group’s
financial performance. So far, the Group considers that the
new and revised standards are unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group's results of operations and financial
position.

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(@) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations not under common control by
the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

BB IRR M

2.

2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(Cont’d)
(b) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change
in ownership interest results in an adjustment between
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in
the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of
the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognized in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control,
or significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change
in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. This
fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
IFRS Accounting Standards.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate
is reduced but joint control or significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont’d)

(0

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognized at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont’d)

(0

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont’d)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognized for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognized
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognized. An impairment
loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)
2.5 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

BB IRR M

2.

Items included in the consolidated financial statements

of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the

currency of the primary economic environment in which

the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The

Company’s functional currency is HK Dollar (“HKD"),

while the Group’s presentation is presented in Renminbi

(“RMB") as the Group mainly operates in Mainland

China.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the

functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates

of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses

resulting from the settlement of such transactions and

from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange

rates are generally recognized in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to

borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss, within “Finance income, net”

. All other

foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss on a net basis

within “Other gains/(losses), net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)
() Group companies
The results and financial position of foreign operations

(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary

economy) that have a functional currency different

from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position

income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated on the dates of the transactions), and

all resulting exchange differences are recognized
in other comprehensive income, except to the
extent that the differences are attributable to non-
controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve
relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation less impairment. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for a separate asset is derecognized when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line depreciation
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values
over their estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold
improvements and certain leased plant and equipment, the
shorter lease term as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery 10 years
Vehicles 3to 5 years
Furniture and office equipment 5 years
Electronic equipment 3 years
Building improvement and decoration 3 years

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized within
"Other gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.7 Other intangible assets

BB IRR M

2.

(a) Software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring the
specific software into usage. These costs are amortized
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives of 3 to 10 years. Costs associated with maintaining
computer software programs are recognized as expense as
incurred.

(b) Research and development
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalized and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Other intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
other intangible assets with definite life but not ready for
use are not subject to amortization and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.9 Financial assets

(a)

(b)

(9]

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income (“OCI")
or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

Recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on trade date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at financial assets at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)
() Measurement (Cont’d)

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized
directly in profit or loss and presented in “Other
gains/(losses), net” together with foreign exchange
gains or losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

e  FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognized in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognized in “Other
gains/(losses), net”. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in “Other
gains/(losses), net” and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.9 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(9]

Measurement (Cont’d)

Debt instruments (Cont’d)

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognized in
profit or loss and presented net within “Other gains/
(losses), net” in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognized in profit or loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognized in “Other gains/(losses), net” as applicable.
Impairment losses and the reversal of impairment losses,
if any, on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)
2.9 Financial assets (Cont'd)
(d) Impairment

BB IRR M

2.

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the

expected credit loss associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortized cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been

a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, impairment is measured as lifetime

expected loss.

For other receivables, impairment is measured as either
12-month expected credit loss or lifetime expected
credit loss, depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has

occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is

measured as lifetime expected credit losses.

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable

value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labor and
an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal
operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of
inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of
purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates

and discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price

in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)

2.11

2.12

2.13

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business,
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognized initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognized
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. See Note 20 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and Note
3.1 for a description of the Group's impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise of cash on hand and at banks, and short-
term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within
three months that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group's cash management.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid
within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.14 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of
financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalization of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalized. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.

2.15 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses or unused
tax credits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.15 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It makes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax liabilities are not
recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realized, or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilize those temporary differences and losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

BB IRR M

2.

2.15 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)
(b) Deferred income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognized for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

The Group considers the asset and the liability separately
for lease transactions. The Group recognizes a deferred
income tax asset (to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilized) and a
deferred income tax liability for all deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with the right-of-use
assets and the lease liabilities since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.16 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(o)

Liabilities for wages and salaries

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognized
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Pension and other obligations

The entities within the Group registered in the PRC
make employee benefit contributions based on certain
percentage of the salaries of the employees to a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan, unemployment plan,
work injury plan, maternity plan and medical benefit plan
organized by relevant government authorities in the PRC
on a monthly basis. The government authorities undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations payable to
the existing and future retired employees under these
plans and the Group has no further obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.
Assets of the plans are held and managed by government
authorities and are separate from those of the Group.

Housing provident fund

The PRC employees of the Group are also entitled to
participate in various government-sponsored housing
provident fund. The Group contributes on a monthly
basis to those funds based on a certain percentage of
the employee’s salaries. The Group’s liabilities in respect
of these funds are limited to the contributions payable in
each period.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.16 Employee benefits (Cont'd)
(d) Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via the restricted share unit scheme (“RSU
Scheme") or third parties. Information relating to the RSU
Scheme is set out in Note 10.

Restricted Share Units (“RSUs"”) of the Group

For grant of RSUs, the total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the Group’s
shares at the grant date.

The total expense is recognized over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period,
the Group revises its estimates of the number of RSUs
that are expected to vest based on service condition. It
recognizes the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment
to equity.

Share-based payment transaction among group entities

The grant by the Company of share incentive plan
over its equity instruments to the employees of
subsidiaries undertakings in the Group is treated as a
capital contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognized over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiaries undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in separate financial
statements of the Company.

Modifications and Cancellations

The Group may modify the terms and conditions on which
share incentive awards were granted. If a modification
increases the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
the incremental fair value granted is included in the
measurement of the amount recognized for the services
received over the remainder of the vesting year. A grant
of share incentive awards, that is cancelled or settled
during the vesting year, is treated as an acceleration of
vesting. The Group immediately recognizes the amount
that otherwise would have been recognized for services
received over the remainder of the vesting year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXEHBEMER)
POLICIES (Contd)
2.17 Revenue recognition 2.17 WATRR
Revenue from contracts with customers REEZEFEEMNBA

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when
control of goods is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognized will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. No significant element of financing is deemed present
as the sales are made with a prepayment or a credit term up to
90 days.

(@) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally upon the acceptance of the goods.
The costs of transporting finished goods to a customer
are recognized in distribution and selling expenses when
occurred.

Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers
with rights of return and volume rebate. The rights of
return, volume discounts and trade incentive give rise to
variable consideration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.17 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont’d)

(b)

©

(d)

(e

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right of
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will
not be returned because this method best predicts the
amount of variable consideration to which the Group will
be entitled. The requirements in IFRS 15 on constraining
estimates of variable consideration are applied in order
to determine the amount of variable consideration that
can be included in the transaction price. For goods
that are expected to be returned, instead of revenue,
a liability is recognized. A right-of-return asset (and
the corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) is also
recognized for the right to recover products from a
customer.

Variable consideration: volume discounts

The goods are often sold with retrospective volume
discounts based on aggregate sales over a 12-month
period. Revenue from these sales is recognized based on
the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated
volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used
to estimate and provide for the discounts, using the
expected value method, and revenue is only recognized
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal will not occur.

Trade incentive — co-advertising services

The Group may enter into agreements with its customers
in relation to product advertising and promotion, under
which the customers are to be entitled to an advertising
allowance. If no distinct service can be identified, the
amounts due by the Group to its customers would be
deducted from revenue.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognized when a payment is
received, or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods.
Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the
Group satisfied the performance obligation under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods to the
customer).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.17 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont’d)

(f)  Refund liabilities
A refund liability is recognized for the obligation to
refund some or all of the consideration received (or
receivable) from a customer and is measured at the
amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to
return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates
of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the
transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

2.18 Leases

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-
lease components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.18 Leases (Cont'd)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases of the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the company, which does not have recent third-party
financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g., term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the
right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)

2.18

2.19

Leases (Cont'd)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

e any initial direct costs, and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying
asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognized on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value assets comprise equipment and small items of office
furniture.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorized and no longer at the discretion
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.20 Government grants

2.21

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grants
will be received, and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognized in profit or loss over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant
and equipment and other non-current assets are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are recognized
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives
of the related assets. Note 27 provides further information on
how the Group accounts for government grants.

Interest income
Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in the
net fair value gains or losses on these assets, see Note 7 below.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets, see Note 11.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.22 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i

(i)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.23 Fair value measurement

The Group measures certain of its financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs, see Note
3.3 below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 202412 A31H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall

risk management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
regularly monitors its exposure and currently has not used any
derivative financial instruments to hedge any of these financial

risks.

(@) Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk primarily arises from
recognized assets and liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities. The Group manages its
foreign exchange risk by minimizing non-functional
currency transactions.

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most
of the transaction settled in RMB. The functional
currency of the subsidiaries in Mainland China
is RMB, while the functional currencies of the
Company and subsidiaries outside Mainland China
are HKD and United States Dollar (“USD"). Both the
entities in and outside Mainland China have assets
and liabilities like cash at bank, restricted cash, term
deposits with initial term over three months are
denominated in USD and HKD. Foreign exchange
risk arises from the fluctuation in exchange rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 202412 A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3. MEEERE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 3.1 BIKREEZE)
(a) Market risk (Cont'd) (a) WERAE)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd) (0 57/‘5/7 % (&)

The Group has continued to closely track and LHRE - AEBEERBERY)
manage its exposure to fluctuation in foreign Lm&gﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬂ D LAGNEE
exchange rates confronted by the majority of the =HE Y 1F T E Ba &9 7 N B RO
Group's deposits denominated in foreign currencies A -

during the reporting period.

The Group is primarily exposed to changes in USD/ AEETEMmMERET AREE
RMB exchange rates. The sensitivity of profit or loss R E) o 1B YE RE B
to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from RREEFBREAETENE R
USD denominated financial instruments. THR-

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
2024 2023F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBT T
Impact on post tax profit HBE R ENE
USD/RMB exchange rate — weaken 5% 35710,/ ARMEX —§7{E5% (5,508) (4,573)
USD/RMB exchange rate - strengthen 5% 27T,/ AREER —FHE5% 5,508 4,573
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2024 202412 A31H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(@) Market risk (Cont’d)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent from changes in market
interest rate. Borrowings carried at floating rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk,
which is partially offset by cash held at variable
rates, whereas borrowings carried at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

None of the Group's borrowings are at variable rate
at the end of the reporting period. An analysis by
maturity is provided in Note 30.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, if the interest
rates of borrowing, cash and cash equivalents
restricted cash and term deposits with initial term
over three months had been increased/decreased
by 50 basis points with all other variables held
constant, the change of the post-tax profit would
be disclosed as follows:
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31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBTFT
Net profit increase/(decrease) SEREG N, CRd)
increase in interest rate EsS i 18,295 16,911
decrease in interest rate Tl == > (18,295) (16,911)
The majority of the Group’s borrowings carried at REBRBHEEEHEZRIT
fixed rates is either close to current market rates or HAERESN AR —FEANEE -
repayable within one year and hence the group is it R E I E PR AT E AR
not subject to any significant fair value interest rate BEFERE
risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 202412 A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(b) Credit risk

()

(ii)

Risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group's exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary
course of its operations.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The credit
risk of the Group’s financial assets, which mainly
comprise cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
term deposits with initial term over three months,
trade receivables, other receivables and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, arises
from potential default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts
of these instruments.

All of the Group’s trade receivables and other
receivables have no collateral.

The Group assessed the credit quality of the
counterparties by taking into account their financial
position, credit history, forward-looking information
and other factors. Management also regularly
reviews the recoverability of these receivables and
follow up the disputes or amounts overdue, if any.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has the following types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit losses:

o Cash and cash equivalents

. Restricted cash

e  Term deposits with initial term over three
months

. Trade and other receivables
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 202412 A31H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and term
deposits with initial term over three months

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, all of the
Group's cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash
and term deposits with initial term over three
months were held in state-owned or reputable
commercial banks, which management believes
are of high credit quality. Management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by these
counterparties.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables mainly represents the trade
receivables from direct sale customers and several
distributors for sale of spicy snack food. The Group
applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables. As at 31
December 2024, the expected loss rate of trade
receivables was 0.01% (2023: 0.08%). Thus, the
loss allowance for trade receivables was not material
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Other receivables

Other receivables at the end of each reporting
period were mainly deposits from third parties and
loans to third parties. The Group applies the IFRS
9 general approach to measuring expected credit
losses for all other receivables. The directors of the
Company consider the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has
been significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares risk of a
default occurring on the assets as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 202412 A31H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Other receivables (Cont'd)

o actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change
to the counterparty’s ability to meet its
obligations;

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the counterparty;

o significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the counterparty,
including changes in the payment status of the
counterparty.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group. Where other receivables have been written
off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement
activity to attempt to recover the receivable due.
Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in
profit or loss.

The Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount
of each individual receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Over the term of the financial assets, the
Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely
basis.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the expected
loss rate of other receivables carried at amortized
cost was minimal. Thus, the loss allowance for
other receivables carried at amortized cost as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 was not material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on past
due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts

for financial assets.

31 December 2024

3.

BRRREREZ)
3.1 IEBREZEE)
(b) EEREE)
(i) SEEEREE)

i R K F AR B

TRETREAEBEEEBRD
FEEERREAREERB O
(HEZREBTaIER (BRIE
HAERHBAN BT U ER A
BHENAI IS ) E T ) IR 2024
FN2023F 12 A31 B FE LR
L okE - 2SS ATREE

HBREAR(E

2024%12A31H
Trade receivables* B 5 I IE - - - 52,843 52,843
Other receivables Hith FEGE

- Normal** —EE** 8,695 - - - 8,695

- Doubtful** — AR - - 200 - 200
Cash and cash equivalents 34 R4 %EY

- Not yet past due — K@ 841,717 - - - 841,717
Term deposits with initial ~ TIAEIR A=1875 F

term over three months MR

— Not yet past due — R 4,425,780 - - - 4,825,780

5,276,192 - 200 52,843 5,329,235
DREERSRIZRBR D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 202412 A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Cont'd)

BERERER )
3.1 MKREREEZE)
(b) EERK(E)
(i) LEEERE (&)
e B N F LR (E)

12-month
31 December 2023 ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 A 7B
2023F 124318 FEER PHEREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E1PEER FE2RER E3MRER ol apz a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®ETR
Trade receivables* ) LY - - - 51,659 51,659
Other receivables Hi EUGRIE
- Normal** —EE** 38,689 - - - 38,689
- Doubtful** — AR ** - - 200 - 200
Cash and cash equivalents 54 RE £ %EY
—Not yet past due — RAREER 526,193 - - - 526,193
Restricted cash XREEE
— Not yet past due — AR 166 - - - 166
Term deposits with initial 1A EAR A =18 A A £
term over three months HEHER
— Not yet past due — HAREH 4,164,110 - - - 4,164,110
4,729,158 - 200 51,659 4,781,017

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in
other receivables is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 202412 A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(ii)

3. BIREREE 2
3.1 BiEBEEE)

Impairment losses on financial assets are recognized

in profit or loss.

During the reporting period, the movements in the
loss allowance for impairment of financial assets are

as follows:

(b) FERRGE)

(i) &REERE ()
SEAENBERBER BN R
WIS - SRAREREER
EREB LT

For the year ended 31 December

Net impairment losses on financial
assets at the beginning of
the year (Note 20)

Movement in loss allowance for
trade receivables

Movement in loss allowance for
other receivables

FHNESREERERE
F28 (F7E20)

5 U UR R
£8)
H 4 R AHUB SR
28

Net impairment losses on financial
assets at the end of the year
(Note 20)

FROESRHEERERE
HEA (M13E20)

BE12A3181LEE

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
241 627
(36) (83)
- (303)

205 241

(iii)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The entity is also exposed to credit risk in relation
to the investment in wealth management products,
structured deposit and fund management products
issued by reputable banks and other financial
service institutions that are measured at fair
value through profit or loss. As at 31 December
2024, the maximum exposure was nil (2023:

RMB122,820,000).

(i) ULA (BB EAREEEGAE
HijEas iy A& E
ZEENEERAEEERITN
$R1T R E & Bh AR S LA 3R 1T
MU AREEE B EEET
AEHBEEMETER &8
MEZRESEREREBNE
ERER - B20245128318 -
BAMOABZ(2023F : AR
122,820,0007T) °

ERERSRIERERAT
2024 F#f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 202412 A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(c) Liquidity risk

()

Maturities of financial liabilities

To manage the liquidity risk, the Company monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Company’s operation and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations cash flows. The Company expects to
fund its future cash flow needs through internally
generated cash flows from operations.

The maturity analysis of borrowings that shows
the remaining contractual maturities is disclosed in
Note 30. Generally, there is no specific credit period
granted by the suppliers but the related payables
are normally expected to be settled within one year
after receipt of goods or services.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had cash and
cash equivalents, term deposits with initial term
of over three months, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and trade receivables of
RMBS5,320,335,000 (2023: RMB4,864,741,000),
that can be used for fulfillment obligation or used in
operation to generate cash inflows.

The directors of the Company closely monitor
the Group’s cash flow projections, which cover
a period of not less than twelve months from 31
December 2024, to enable it to meet its liabilities
and obligations as of the date of this report.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 202412 A31H

3.

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(9]

()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3. MBEREE®
3.1 BiBEREZEE)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) () FEBELEARE)
Maturities of financial liabilities (Cont'd) () ZFEEmFIRIER (&)
The table below analyzes the Group’s financial TRIEBHEHARESRAEIEA
liabilities by relevant maturity groupings based on TSR - SAEBNSRIA
the remaining period at the end of the reporting B B ETOEDHT o
period to the contractual maturity date. The TRATHEZ &5 AR HREHE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual MNAERIKRERRERE ©
undiscounted cash flows during the reporting
period.
Lessthan  Between1  Between 2 Over
1year and2years and 3 years 3 years Total
PREF 1225 2Z3F 3EHUE At
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT ARBTR AR%TRT ARETRT ARETR
31 December 2024 2024F12A31H
Borrowings L 219,951 177,621 - - 397,572
Trade and other payables & 5 & E t JERTZIE
(excluding non-financial ~ (TBHEFERARE)
liabilities) 463,779 - - - 463,779
Refund liabilities RyAEE 206,173 - - - 206,173
Lease liabilities HEERE 10,454 8,163 4,515 8,512 31,644
900,357 185,784 4,515 8,512 1,099,168
31 December 2023 2023F12A31H
Borrowings N 9,097 9,951 177,621 - 196,669
Trade and other payables % 5 Jx Lt fE 7B
(excluding non-financial ~ (TBHEFERERE)
liabilities) 360,633 - - - 360,633
Refund liabilities RRERE 99,918 - - - 99,918
Lease liabilities HEaE 4,238 4,144 2,600 2,765 13,747
473,886 14,095 180,221 2,765 670,967
DREERSRIZRBR D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 202412 A31H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)
3.2 Capital management

The capital structure of the Group consists of net cash, which
includes cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, restricted cash, term deposits with initial
term over three months, borrowings and lease liabilities.

The directors review the capital structure on a continuous basis
taking into account the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through raising new debts as well as redemption of the existing
debts. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of liability-
to-asset ratio, which is calculated as total liabilities divided by
total assets.

The liability-to-asset ratios of the Group as at 31 December
2024 and 2023 were as follows:

3.

E\jﬁ%@ [@’;%ii‘ Z)
3.2 BEAXREE

AEENEANERAR S FEMANK - HF
BRASIREEED  UAR(EEFFE
BEZFFAERERNESREE  XR
HIRE - MHRBRA=EAN LN EHF
oo EREEERE -

EERHERTBELRER Wit REAXRKAR
RERERMPIRORAR - RIBESFHNE
FASEBBREETEBAREBELEIR
BEBM L EEREERERS - AEET
SN B E AR Z KPR & - B=
2024 2202312 A31HIEFE - &
AHEE - BRSIEFHEELEE) o

AEBRBEEABREEEENERE
BEABXLABERERNEERERE -

REEMN20244F %2023 12 A31 BRI &&=
BEZRMOT :

31 December

12H31H
2024 2023
20244F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Total liabilities BERRE 2,175,983 1,347,676
Total assets BEBE 8,182,413 7,053,546
The liability-to-asset ratio EEEER 26.6% 19.1%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024%12A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd) 3. BIREREE 2
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AREEME
(a) Fair value hierarchy (a) AAEBEEER

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs
used in determining fair value, the Group has classified
its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards. An explanation of each
follows the table below.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximize the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs are
not based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity
securities.

Recurring fair value

REHEREEAABEMBEAR
B A ENER - AREDREE
ARERESRIAS R=ABRK -
TRBHBERNGHA -

F-ER: EAEMSEENSRT
AWM AREENITETAREAR
BHR)NAABERBEREHROT
BREVR - AEERENSREE
FrERMTISRERRFERE - %
ETAFAE—ER -

uEo\

FoER AFNERTISEENS
BT AEMDISIMTETR)NAAE
B ERGERNEE - ZFHER
MEENBABRTSEIE - WEA
R AIKFE B BRAS E VLT o METE
TARABEMBNMBEEABAR
BEOBAEER  RBTAFAS-E

FZER W ERZEERNBAR
B IR A BEMISERS L - Al
TAFAF=ZER - JELTIRAES
ERZERR

measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
REEALEETE E-EBfk E-BR H=EBR =i
Notes = RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
iz AR®TR AR¥STR ARBTR AR%TxR
31 December 2024 2024%12A31H
Financial assets at fair value ~ LARABETEREE
through profit or loss T ABHERNS
A E 19 - - - -
31 December 2023 2023%F12A31H
Financial assets at fair value ~ LARABETEREE
through profit or loss T AEHERNS
BMEE 19 - - 122,820 122,820
DREERSRIZRBR D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3. MERER®)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd) 3.3 AREEMETE)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd) (a) DREEEBHR(E)

The fair value of the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is estimated by discounting the future cash
flows using the expected yield rate with reference to the
benchmark yield rate of the financial investment products
of banks.

AnEEE8 HE8 AEHE
HHNEREENARBE  DHE2E
FITERMIREEMMEEREXE -
BARAEARSEERRBEERE
EATHREET MG ©

There were no transfers among levels 1, level 2 and level HE2024F 2023F 12831 HIFE
B B—EH F_ELAKEZER
ZHWELEE AR EBETENE
% o

3 for recurring fair value measurements during the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

(b) Fair value measurements using significant (b)

EREATIERGABBNAAE

unobservable inputs (level 3)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 items
for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023:

B E(E=EBH)
TREMNNEHZE2024F K 2023F12 A
3MALFEE=EHIBENED) :

Opening balance as at 2024F1 B1B ENES

1 January 2024 - - 122,820 122,820
Additions hE 441,000 880,000 - 1,321,000
Settlements # (441,165) (885,262) - (1,326,427)
Fair value gains/(losses) on AR EETEAAEY

financial assets at fair value HAEHBRENEREE

through profit or loss MR EEkE/ (BR) 165 5,262 (125,488) (120,061)
Exchange difference B ERE - - 2,668 2,668
Closing balance as at 2024128318 ER

31 December 2024 ek - - - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 202412 A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3.

3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d)
(b) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Cont’d)

Eﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁ‘“ﬁ (48)
3 DAEEME)
(b) EREAFTABRBHABMBHNQAE
B B(E=ER) (&)

Financial products

SRED
Investments
in fund
Structured management
deposits products Total
HEOER
EREER EmRE CH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Opening balance as at 2023F1 1B FNEE
1 January 2023 120,149 262,291 382,440
Additions AE 1,040,000 486,547 1,526,547
Settlements #E (1,166,220) (642,356) (1,808,576)
Fair value gains on financial assets at WA/ BfEEEEEEEA
fair value through profit or loss EHBRNEREENAA
EBERE 6,071 13,306 19,377
Exchange difference fERZERE - 3,032 3,032
Closing balance as at 2023F12A31BER
31 December 2023 g - 122,820 122,820
DREERSRIZRBR D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 202412 A31H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

(9]

The Group’s valuation processes

For the financial assets, including level 3 fair values, the
Group's finance department performs the valuations. The
finance department reports directly to the chief financial
officer (“CFO"). Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the CFO and finance department
annually, in line with the end of the Group’s reporting
period.

The valuation technique is discounted cash flows. Future
cash flows are estimated and discounted using the
expected yield rate with reference to the benchmark yield
rate of the financial investment products of banks.

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
measured at amortized cost
The fair values of the following financial assets and liabilities

approximate their carrying amount amounts as at the end of

the reporting period:

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Term deposits with initial term over three months

Restricted cash

Trade and other payables

Refund liabilities

Borrowings
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2024 202412 A31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses and
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred income tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred income tax
assets relating to recognized tax losses and deductible temporary
differences at 31 December 2024 was RMB99,610,000 (2023:
RMB102,294,000). Further details are contained in Note 31 to the
financial statements.

Variable consideration for volume rebates
The Group estimates variable consideration to be included in the
transaction price for the sales of products with volume rebates.

The Group’s volume rebates are analysed on a per customer basis for
contracts that are subject to a single volume threshold. Determining
whether a customer is likely to be entitled to a rebate depends
on the customer’s historical rebate entitlement and accumulated
purchases to date.

The Group updates its assessment of expected volume rebates yearly
and the refund liabilities are adjusted accordingly. Estimates of
expected volume rebates are sensitive to changes in circumstances
and the Group's past experience regarding rebate entitlements may
not be representative of a customer’s actual rebate entitlements in
the future.

BB IRR M
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2024 202412 A31H

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the production and sale of spicy
snack food. Majority of the Group’s revenue and business activities
are conducted in the PRC.

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business
units based on their products and has three reportable operating
segments as follows:

By product type:

e Seasoned flour products, primarily comprising Big Latiao, Mini
Latiao, Spicy Hot Stick, Mini Hot Stick, Kiss Burn and Mala Mala

e  Vegetable products, primarily comprising Konjac Shuang,
Fengchi Kelp and XIAO MO NV

e  Bean-based and other products, primarily comprising Spicy
Tofu Skin and others

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") monitors the results
of the Group’s operating segments separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on gross
profit. No analysis of segment operating profit is presented as
CODM does not regularly review such information for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment assets
and liabilities are not presented as CODM reviews the assets and
liabilities on a central basis. Therefore, only segment revenue and
segment gross profit are presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5. ZEER@

Segment revenue and results DEBUIA R L&

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by LA RIZAT RS D EfE A EUR A B ZEE R
reportable segments. pax il

For the year ended BE2024F12A318
31 December 2024 IEFE
Revenue A 2,667,081 3,370,552 228,693 6,266,326
Cost of sales SHEMKA (1,401,552) (1,701,283) (147,359)  (3,250,194)
Gross profit EX 1,265,529 1,669,269 81,334 3,016,132
Seasoned Bean-based
flour Vegetable and other
products products products Total
Z®mR
FARAERL B m HAihEm At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARBTRT ARBTT ARETET
For the year ended B £2023F12A31H
31 December 2023 LttFE
Revenue A 2,549,244 2,118,519 203,903 4,871,666
Cost of sales SHEMKA (1,379,477)  (1,032,501) (137,005)  (2,548,983)
Gross profit EF 1,169,767 1,086,018 66,898 2,322,683

PRERESRERERAF 1 61
2024 Fik



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2024 202412 A31H

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)
Segment revenue and results (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

(o)

162

Geographical information

ORISR

5.

DEBER
]_j\:l;lz l‘l&A&%lu\(jﬁ/
(a) EBFEHR

Revenue from external customers by location of the customers is BEEEPMNBZIDHINTERP B A N T %
shown in the table below: PR -

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
PRC i 6,187,110 4,774,043
Overseas RSN 79,216 97,623
6,266,326 4,871,666

Majority of the Group’s identifiable assets and liabilities were
located in the PRC.

AEBNKSEDAIHRBNEERBESN
PR o

Information about major customers (b) BEAXEEFHER
No revenue from the Group's sales to a single customer RS R AEEREEE -TPaH
amounted to 10% or more of the Group's total revenue during EWAMEREBBWABI10%TA E -
the reporting period.
An analysis of revenue is as follows: (0 WAZHWT :
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTFT
Revenue from contracts with REEFERMBBA
customers
Sale of goods HESEMm 6,266,326 4,871,666

The timing of the above revenue recognition is when the
performance obligations of sales and delivery of goods are
satisfied at a point in time.

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
goods and payment in advance is normally required, except
for customers with credit terms up to 90 days. Some contracts
provide customers with a right of return and volume rebates
which give rise to variable consideration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 202412 A31H

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5.
Segment revenue and results (Cont'd)
() An analysis of revenue is as follows: (Cont’d)
All contract liability balances at the beginning of the year were
recognized as revenue in the reporting period, see Note 29 for
further information.

The Group has no revenue contract that has an original
expected duration of more than one year, thus management
has applied the practical expedient under IFRS 15 and is not
required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction
prices allocated to the performance obligations that are
unsatisfied or partially satisfied as of the end of the reporting

D EE R (&)

D ERAR A ()

© WADHFMT : (4)
FONFEE R B EEBSRRE HR®
RAWA S ERBSHME29 -

AEBERERIE BRES —FORA
AR FAEEEREB(ERMBREE
ANDFISHRENEREET L BEER
SR ARWESE T RBITRALDET
MBREFHIR ZERBEE

period.
6. OTHER INCOME, NET 6. HRARE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Government grants B B
Related to income (a) WA () 49,436 19,857
Related to assets (b) (Note 27) B EARDb)(FiEE27) 6,686 5,983
Sale of scraps and raw materials SHE BERL SRR M
Proceeds income related to scraps and g EER K R RHEREHY
raw materials Frisizs 28,933 20,308
Cost related to scraps and raw materials BARER] K B M EHRREHI AR AN (9,422) (4,684)
VAT reduction BETRE 1,347 2,006
76,980 43,470

The government grants represent subsidy income received from
various government authorities as incentives to certain subsidiaries
of the Group in the PRC.

(@) The government grants and subsidies related to income
have been received to reward for the contribution to the
local economic growth. These grants related to income were
recognized in profit or loss upon receipt of these rewards and
the related conditions associated with the rewards, if any, are
being met. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these grants.

(b) The Group has received certain government grants related to
the investments in production plants. The grants related to
assets were recognized in profit or loss over the useful lives of
relevant assets. Details of these grants related to assets are set
out in Note 27.

BB E (e S BT RIPIE SRR - 1ER
UAREBEEPENETHBARNEE -

(a) ZRE[EIT W) BEU AR BE H U 78 B K 8
B MEREHEMEERREMEFRERM
2E - ZFRBEABENMBELTZE
B2 DA Ko /2 2 52 B B B M AR B 1R (e
BEERET R - ZEMEEY RME
A RER G HBEE -

(b) AEBECWIEAETHREMBENET
AT - BE EARR W E BN EARR B E
MEMRFHARNBETHR - REERH
% ERE B R IE ENBIRE27 ©

ERERSRIERERAT
2024 F#f

163



164

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2024 202412 A31H

7. OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

BB IRR M

7. Httiz (B8 FHE

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREETTT
Fair value gains/(losses) on AR BEAEEEZESHTA
financial assets at fair value through BEHEZNEREEN
profit or loss (a) AR EEKE(EE)) (120,061) 19,377
Net foreign exchange losses i 5 B8 35 (26,540) (8,906)
Impairment of property, plant and M - BB REERE(HES)
equipment (Note 15) (21,970) (4,896)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEDE - BE L& EBE
equipment (6,109) (245)
Donation B (2,014) (2,348)
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets ~ HEEMEF & EEE (1,417) -
Others Hit 3,291 (172)
(174,820) 2,810
(@) Included in fair value loss for the year was mainly fair value changes of (@) FEAAABEEBEXrEBIEAEEBF2021FE

the Group’s investment in a wealth management fund (the “Fund”),
namely “Enhanced Fixed Income SP”, through a reputable financial
institution since 2021. In October 2024, the Group was notified by the
financial institution that the Fund is undergoing its voluntary winding
up petition and the joint provisional liquidators (“JPLs") are appointed
to formulate a viable restructuring plan. The Directors considered the
JPLs" assessment reports that fair value of the Group’s investments in
the Fund is less likely than not that it could possibly be fully realisable as
of 31 December 2024, and the decline in fair value of RMB125,488,000
was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2024.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024%12A31H

8. EXPENSES BY NATURE 8. BEMEIEIMNER
2024 2023
20244 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR¥F T AREETTT
Consumption of raw materials R ELERE 22 2,581,344 1,922,757
Changes in inventories of finished i~ FRmRTEERED
goods, semi-finished goods, and FERNES)
goods in transit (65,432) 36,607
Employee benefit expenses EEETNEA 9 1,119,817 985,388
Transportation expenses ERER 200,812 150,667
Utilities KERRER 148,255 99,995
Promotion and advertising expenses HENESE D 280,456 213,970
Other tax expenses HinfimEE A 64,432 50,242
Depreciation and amortization HEE B Y 15,16,18 142,091 128,450
Travelling expenses ZiEH 54,448 45,188
Repairs and maintenance HERRE 50,900 35,529
Office expenses N 74,529 56,252
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN BN &
— Audit services — Bt R 4,000 3,800
— Non-audit services —IEEE RS 1,557 980
Expense relating to short-term leases 4G HATE E 18RI E 16 17,853 17,833
Professional fees BXEH 43,288 36,129
Others Hitb 49,155 30,832
Total of cost of sales of goods, HERAE - K#ER
distribution and selling expenses, $SEERREEERHEE
and administrative expenses 4,767,505 3,814,619
DREERSRIZRBR D

2024 F#f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024%12A31H

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9. EEEFNER

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T AREETTT

Wages and salaries ITE NS 811,567 628,207

Discretionary bonuses BIBIEAT 54,003 41,120

Pension costs — defined contribution plans (a) RS A — B ks 2l(a) 92,324 83,647

Welfare and other expenses & T K2 EoAth B A 125,726 142,433

Share-based payment expenses (Note 10)  LARRAD AEHE N 71 BFA s2 (FiF5E10) 36,197 89,981

1,119,817 985,388

Employee benefit expenses charged to profit or loss are as follow: REZPIROESRMNERIINNT

2024 2023

20245 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREETTT

Cost of sales of goods $HERA 394,746 327,776

Distribution and selling expenses S LI EEH 425,124 346,337

Administrative expenses EIREH 299,947 311,275

1,119,817 985,388

(a) Defined contribution plans (a) REMIKEE
The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of a REBERTENES AT BRETEENH
state-managed pension obligations operated by the PRC REBRKEETHOKE - KEBBILHE
government. The Group is required to contribute a specified B T BT EEE TN TERANE TR
percentage of payroll costs as determined by respective local SHmERESEEHE - LIEHBENE
government authority to the pension obligations to fund ® o AREBEHERREFNGFENE—FEA
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect mEtEERIEEH -

to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contributions under the scheme.

1 66 WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 202412 A31H

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Cont'd) 9.
(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 include four
directors (2023: four) whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 39. Details of the emoluments of the
remaining highest paid non-director individual during the year
are set out as below:

EBEEENER 2

(b) EEESFMAL
HE2024F12A31BILFE - A%£ENTR
ZEmFTHNALTBRENZES (20235 ¢
) EBE SR FE3RTRONTA « &
HIIEEEERTHMALTRERNOMHSFE
E Iy N

2024 2023

20245 20234

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Wages and salaries TERFS 1,088 1,741
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 5,592 660
Pension costs — defined contribution plans E{k& Ak A& — RE 2 58 69
Welfare and other expenses BN REME R 58 67
Share-based payment expenses AR D BB R 6,694 11,196
13,490 13,733

The emoluments fell within the following band:

BERATHEANZEFALTZHE -

Number of individuals

AH
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
HKD 14,500,001 to HKD15,000,000 14,500,001 L% 15,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HKD15,000,001 to HKD15,500,000 15,000,001 L% 15,500,000/ 7T - 1
1 1
DRERSRRBRERA A

2024 F#f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

10. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TO EMPLOYEES 10. BEEEHNURGBEBNAR

168

During the year ended 31 December 2021, to incentivize directors,
senior management and employees, the RSU Scheme was approved
and adopted by the Company. Shares of 41,389 were allotted and
issued to for the purpose of the RSU Scheme.

On 1 January 2021, in exchange for employee services to the Group,
4,764 RSUs were granted to certain eligible persons selected by
the Company (the “January 2021 Awards”). On and subject to the
limitations and conditions of the RSU Scheme and the terms and
conditions of the respective grant letter, the RSUs shall be vested
as to 15%, 15%, 20%, 20%, 20% and 10% on 1 January 2022,
2023, 2024, 2025, 2026 and 2027 respectively.

On 31 March 2021, the Company effected a 1,000 for 1 share split
of its shares. Accordingly, the shares allotted and granted under
the RSU Scheme were then equivalent to 41,389,000 shares and
4,764,000 shares, respectively.

On 10 October 2021, the Company granted an aggregate of
32,295,893 RSUs under the RSU Scheme to selected eligible
participants with performance and service conditions at a
nil consideration to incentivize them for the Group’s future
development (the “October 2021 Awards”). On and subject to the
limitations and conditions of the RSU Scheme and the terms and
conditions of the respective grant letter, the RSUs shall be vested in
different proportions from 2022 to 2030.

On 27 April 2022, pursuant to a shareholder resolution, additional
shares of 4,509,681 were issued for the purpose of the RSU Scheme.
After the issuance, the aggregate number of ordinary shares under
the RSU Scheme was 45,898,681.

On 26 May 2022, the Company granted an aggregate of 2,135,376
RSUs under the RSU Scheme to selected eligible participants
with performance and service conditions at a nil consideration to
incentivize them for the Group’s future development (the “May
2022 Awards”). On and subject to the limitations and conditions
of the RSU Scheme and the terms and conditions of the respective
grant letter, the RSUs shall be vested in different proportions from
2023 to 2027.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

10. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TO EMPLOYEES (Contd) 10. F{EEEHHNUR A EERNAR &)

On 1 December 2022, the Company granted an aggregate of
10,254,671 RSUs under the RSU Scheme to selected eligible
participants with performance and service conditions at a
nil consideration to incentivize them for the Group’s future
development (the “December 2022 Awards”). On and subject to
the limitations and conditions of the RSU Scheme and the terms and
conditions of the respective grant letter, the RSUs shall be vested in
different proportions from 2023 to 2027.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, to incentivize directors,
senior management and employees, a restricted share unit scheme
("2024 Incentive Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the
Company. Shares of 5,450,227 were allotted and issued to for the
purpose of the 2024 Incentive Scheme.

On 18 May 2024, the Company granted an aggregate of 5,194,114
RSUs under the 2024 Incentive Scheme to selected eligible
participants with performance conditions at a nil consideration to
incentivize them for the Group’s future development (the “May
2024 Awards”). On and subject to the limitations and conditions
of the 2024 Incentive Scheme and the terms and conditions of the
respective grant letter, the RSUs shall be vested in 2026.

Share-based payment expense relating to awards granted to
employees is determined based on the grant date fair value of
the RSUs and is recognized on a straight-line basis over the entire
vesting period for each batch. For January 2021 Awards, October
2021 Awards, May 2022 Awards and December 2022 Awards,
the fair value of each RSUs at the grant dates are determined by
reference to the fair value of the underlying ordinary shares of
the Company on the date of grant. The fair value of each RSUs
at the grant dates are determined by reference to the fair value
of the underlying ordinary shares of the Company on the date of
grant. The grant date fair value of the underlying ordinary shares
was determined with the assistance of an independent valuer. The
discounted cash flow method under the income approach has been
applied in the determination of the fair value of the equity interest
of the Company. The discounted cash flow derived by management
considered the Group’s future business plan, specific business and
financial risks, the stage of development of the Group’s operations
and economic and competitive elements affecting the Group’s
business, industry and market. For the May 2024 Awards, the grant
date fair value of the underlying ordinary shares was determined by
the closing price of the Company's shares as quoted on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at grant date.

R2022F 12 A1H » AR EIREZBR IR 9 B L
SRS HERTAEEERBRBIEGRETE?
M2 EEHA LR H 10,254,671 18R I i B
7 - BUSKEN R 5 AN S B R R R E R EDL 5B
([2022F 12 A 82E) ]) < WRIZZ R IR0 BEALET
0 BR il B2 (1R DA R AR T BR B9 R R S AR 1
MEEBRRT « ZRHIEGELEEH2023FE
2027 F AR BISHE -

HZE2024F12A31HLEFE  AEBESE - =
TERABRIEE @ AR AP ER AN Z PR HI %
D EAIEHEI([2024F BB ETEl]) - AEIE2024
FHEET S - AN E)ECE R B1T 75,450,227 1%
B&n o

202457188 » RAGIRIE2024F B E T
SINTHERFEEERENETEERSME
A 4£5,194, 114E X R BIRK D AL - LUSED
HBEANEBERARREERIEL TR (202455 A
HEED ) o IR IE2024F BB+ B KPR HI R A4 LA
KABRAR T A R Rt RTEERR T » SR
FBIRRD BB 2026F 558 -

ER(A)E B AT 42 A BRI LARR (5 A E R R 3R
T TRIE R AIR G B A A BENZE L B
MET  ESHYENEEEBHNNERE
TR o BL202141 A 58y - 2021410 A 28 -
202265 ABEIR2022FE 12 A BEIME » &%
PRHIRMDEMARE RO ARBEILBAR
AR BB SRR AR EETUERE
B R HIRG BAAFR L BN AR BETZR
RATREL AHOREERRAEETNE
TE o AR BRMEE R A A BETIRBE
BB BB TEE - TETARRRENRAE
B RATRAETRIREREIIE - A%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

10. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TO EMPLOYEES (Cont'd)

The table below sets forth share-based payments expenses for RSUs

during the reporting period:

RSUs

SR IR A7 B AL

10. AESFHBURDHERNTR @D

NREFIN IR E B IR BIA ) BEALH AR ) A

REEY 1 B 52

2024
2024
RMB’000
AR¥TT

36,197

2023
20234
RMB’000
ARETFT
89,981

Movements in the number of RSUs granted and the respective

ERTOXRIMRMDELE R BT R E B8

weighted average grant date fair values are as follows: FHEELBEBAAREBEET ¢
Weighted average
Number of grant date fair
RSUs value per RSU
EEZRE
RAP B
ZRERG EFIEEEAEH
BugAE AREE
RMB
AR
Outstanding as at 1 January 2023 M2023F 1 B1HKRITE 45,871,502 7.25t0 11.01
Granted during the year RERNERT (5,223,518) 7.2510 11.01
Forfeited during the year RERNT LUK (4,747,198) 7.2510 11.01
Outstanding as at 31 December 2023 M2023F12A31H RI1THE 35,900,786 7.25t0 11.01
Outstanding as at 1 January 2024 R2024F 1 B1BR1TE 35,900,786 7.25 to 11.01
Granted during the year RERNEET 5,194,114 5.28
Forfeited during the year RERNE LU (3,979,673) 5.28 to 11.01
Exercised during the year RERNDITE (3.092,870) 7.25 to 11.01
Outstanding as at 31 December 2024 R2024F 128318 KT 34,022,357 5.28 to 11.01
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

11. FINANCE INCOME, NET

1. EWAFERE

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Finance income mMERA
Interests from bank RITFE 179,470 197,085
Finance costs BE KA
Interest expenses on borrowings BFRFEFHX (19,938) (22,398)
Finance costs on lease liabilities (Note 16) HEBENRERA(MFE16) (719) (648)
Less: borrowing costs capitalized in property, & : ¥% - BE RREHEREH
plant and equipment (Note 15) BN (MIFE15) 1,423 1,520
(19,234) (21,526)
Finance income, net MEWAFEE 160,236 175,559

(a) Capitalized borrowing costs

The capitalization rate used to determine the amount of

borrowing costs to be capitalized is 3.97%, which was

(a) BAMEEREAR

HE2024F12A31BILFE - EEH TN
BREMERKACERFERANESNMEE

applicable to the Group’s borrowings during the year ended 31 £3.97%(2023%F : 3.97%) ' ZEFERb
December 2024 (2023: 3.97%). EEARAEENER
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FREBLER
2024 2023
2024F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFTT
Current tax RIEFR TE
Current tax on profits for the year FEAFE BN 18 404,398 306,394
Deferred income tax BT/
Decrease in deferred income tax assets FRIEFTSTHEER L 2,684 32,380
Increase in deferred income tax liabilities EEFTEF A EL M 86,064 60,144
Total deferred tax expense BRI E AERE 88,748 92,524
Income tax expense FrBHiE A 493,146 398,918
ERERSRIERERAT

2024 F#f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd) 12. FRIEHEM®E)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at BARNTIREKRZHWB ATIFAER, SR EHT
the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and the ERERER /A E R R E BR T AT & 7 898 B
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled and/or operate to the tax BIER S IR B R E BB X A SR -
expense at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the statutory MARSEE R R AERRFRAEBRMT ¢

tax rate to the effective tax rate are as follows:

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
Profit before income tax FFr 45258 A1l F) 1,561,253 1,279,272
Tax calculated at statutory tax rate of 25%  ¥Z25%HEE B R E HFIIE 390,313 319,818
Tax effect of; AN SIS E -
Difference in tax rate BER=R (2,410) 740
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose ENEIE L == 48,668 61,225
Income not subject to tax AR A (15,383) (23,900)
Additional deduction of research and e 8 A INEH 0k
development expenses (511) (889)
Tax loss for which the deferred income W AERRIELEEHEERN
tax assets were not recognized fhiaEia 30 348
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable 1% 7k £ [ /R BB B 2 &
profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries Al DB FEBIR AL 70,326 45,609
Effect on opening deferred tax of TRIG DI HRVEE R B 2
increase in rates 20 (2,133)
Other HAith 2,093 (1,900)
493,146 398,918
(a) Cayman Islands income tax (a) ASEEMREH

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act of the Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from
local income tax.

(b) British Virgin Islands profit tax (b)
The Company’s direct subsidiaries in the British Virgin Islands
were incorporated under the BVI Companies Act, 2004 and
accordingly, are exempted from British Virgin Islands income
tax.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd)

(c)

(d)

Hong Kong profits tax

No provision for Hong Kong profit tax was provided as the
Company. Pursuant to the two-tiered profit tax rates regime,
the Group's first HKD2,000,000 of assessable profits under
Hong Kong profits tax during the reporting period were subject
to a tax rate of 8.25%. The Group’s remaining assessable
profits above HKD2,000,000 will continue to be subject to a
tax rate of 16.5% during the reporting period.

PRC corporate income tax

Enterprises incorporated in the PRC are subject to income tax
rate of 25% throughout the reporting period unless subject to
tax exemption set out below.

Certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are qualified as small
and micro enterprises and were entitled to a preferential
corporate income tax rate of 5% during the reporting period.

One of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is accredited as a “High
and New Technology Enterprise” and was therefore entitled to
a preferential income tax rate of 15% during the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023. Such qualification is subject to
review by the relevant tax authority in the PRC for every three
years.

Certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are engaged in
agriculture and entitled to the tax exemption on agricultural
products.

The income tax provision of the Group has been calculated
at the applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable profits
for the reporting period based on existing legislations,
interpretations and practices.

12. FREBIE M=)

()

(d)

BEERNEH
RABWEBLBFBFEHIELEE - RIK
FERMAT - NEBEBER RS AR E
EHEF BT L E 2,000,000/ TTRE R FE
128.25% KT R o AN B R R & A
JAMEIE L i ER3B2,000,00078 TTH AR T FE
RBFEIZ16.5% T REH -

B ZEEH
FE R B REM AR S ) 1 SR AN B B R o IR
25%H) TR BNFTSTH  ER M T X
PREVIRIRE BRSO

RIps - AREEETREEA RS
BB RER  LEREES%OEED
EFHERRE -

AEEH—KPENBRRERE L &FH
R | EIbREZE2024%F 220234
12A31 B IEFEBEZE15%NEBME
K - ZEKHTPEEEHEEET =
FEIZ—IX -

AEBNETHEMBERARRERSE I
BERZAEREMRH

AL BN EBHEEEERBTER - 2
FRRIBD) R B AR BRI bE
RBIEEE -

DR ERSRIZERERD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)
(e) PRC Withholding Tax (“WHT")

According to the applicable PRC tax regulations, dividends
distributed by a company established in the PRC to a foreign
investor with respect to profit derived after 1 January 2008
are generally subject to a 10% WHT. If a foreign investor
incorporated in Hong Kong meets the conditions and
requirements under the double taxation treaty arrangement
entered into between the PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant
withholding tax rate will be 5%.

Deferred income tax liabilities have been recognized at 31
December 2024 for the withholding tax that would be payable
on the earnings of certain subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC that are expected to be distributed in the foreseeable
future. The remaining undistributed earnings generated from
1 January 2008, for which withholding tax is not provided for,
amounted to RMB2,830,214,000 as at 31 December 2024
(2023: RMB2,889,370,000).

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company, excluding any costs

of servicing equity other than ordinary shares by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the

12. FISHER»)
(e) FPEITEHB([FEIF )
BIFEARBREBREER  ERBEKRIHR
A L2008 1 B 1 B & EV 15 89 F)E [ S X
BE &R E—RBEMRI10% M TEN
o BEBBEMAZOINEIREETS
P EEEBRTNEERKTE LK
HRIETE - HERETEINR RS A5% °

202412 8318 Bt EEMAK
URETFHBRARGRARRESIRZ
B MES Nz BINHERELEEH
BE - R2024F 128318 88 TEB
2008F 1TA1TBZ AN RABFSEAA
R #2,830,214,000 7T (2023 4F : AR #
2,889,370,0007T) * REtULEEETEINF

13. BREF
(a) EAR
FRERBFIRAR FIEAE AREEFECR
ERL BRI AL E ) B
FERNBATEIN SRR DT 9B

year.
2024 2023
20244 20234
Profit attributable to equity holders of the ZNA RIEZE15E A (G FH
Company (RMB’000) (ARETIT) 1,068,512 880,354
Weighted average number of outstanding 27T £ 5N E 38 % HAE F 15 E
ordinary shares (thousands) (Fm%) 2,312,789 2,309,771
Basic earnings per share (RMB) BRERBEF(ARET) 0.46 0.38

Outstanding ordinary shares that are contingently returnable

(i.e. subject to recall) are not treated as outstanding and are
excluded from the calculation of basic earnings per share until
the date the shares are no longer subject to recall.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, an aggregate of

3,092,870 RSUs (2023: 2,981,331) become vested under the
terms and conditions of the RSU Scheme, so the effect of these
shares has been taken into account in the calculation of basic
earnings per share since the vesting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Cont'd)
(b) Diluted
Diluted earnings per share is calculated based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Company after adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
during the year.

13. BREF (&)
(b) #=H
FRBERNESERNFRAE AT EENE
TR EBAORERT  AEEITEN
TEBRONETIEE  REAQRHES
AR ERTE -

2024 2023
20244 20234
Profit attributable to equity holders of the &7 BlfEzsi5 5B A (S M
Company (RMB'000) (AREETFIT) 1,068,512 880,354
Weighted average number of outstanding Z%7T7EYNE 38 A% N4 198
ordinary shares (thousands) (Fm%) 2,312,789 2,309,771
Adjustments for: TS IEEL T -
— RSUs (thousands) — SR HIAR  BAL(FAR) 5,787 6,530
Adjusted weighted average number of BREERNOEITEINE B
outstanding ordinary shares for diluted AR EIASFHE N F19 80 (FAR)
earnings per share (thousands) 2,318,576 2,316,301
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) FlREEREM(ARET) 0.46 0.38
DREERSRIZRBR D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

14. DIVIDENDS 14. RE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREETTT
Final and special dividends declared in respect &Z2022412A31H IFEE
of year ended 31 December 2022 BB IR AR B RIS - 564,276
Final and special dividends declared in respect &Z2023412A31H IFEE
of year ended 31 December 2023 B EIRAIRE MRS 493,741 -
Interim dividend declared in respect of year ~ #Z=2023% 128318 ILFE
ended 31 December 2023 B EIR&)H ER S - 282,138
Interim dividend declared in respect of year ~ #ZE20244 12 A318 L FE
ended 31 December 2024 EE IR F B S 376,183 -
869,924 846,414

On 6 June 2024, the Company’s shareholders approved a profit
distribution plan at an annual general meeting, pursuant to which
a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023
of RMBO0.10 per share, amounting to a total final dividend of
RMB235,115,000, and a special dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2023 of RMBO0.11 per share, amounting to
a total special dividend of RMB258,626,000, were declared to all
shareholders.

On 15 August 2024, the Company’s board of directors approved a
profit distribution plan at the board meeting, pursuant to which an
interim dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2024
of RMBO0.16 per share, amounting to a total interim dividend of
RMB376,183,000, was declared to all shareholders.

The dividend was paid in July and October 2024, except for dividend
attributable to the unvested shares held by the trustee in relation to
the RSU scheme amounting to RMB 14,065,000, which the holders
will entitle to dividend right upon vesting of the RSUs.

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2024
of RMBO0.11 per share, amounting to a total final dividend of
RMB258,626,000, and a special dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2024 of RMBO0.18 per share, amounting to a
total special dividend of RMB423,206,000, are to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. These financial statements do
not reflect these dividend payables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BER®E

Building
Furniture improvement
and office  Electronic and  Construction
Buildings  Machinery Vehicles  equipment  equipment  decoration in progress Total
BFEg
B W ER FARBORE ETRE REfh EERIE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR ARBTRT ARMTR ARETn ARBTR ARMTR ARETR
Net book amountasat  }2023%5151BH
1 January 2023 REFE 443,745 408,855 6,371 58,864 5,675 55,406 148,640 1,127,556
Additions NE 123 5719 1,103 9,594 5450 23,611 76,495 122,095
Transfers upon completion  5eFK( 14 &7% 35,780 105,068 - - - - (140,848) -
Disposals RE (14,570) (15,812) (638) (4,808) (20) - - (35,848)
Depreciation (Note 8) iR (19,046) (41,065) (2,362) (8,626) (5,993) (30817) - (107,909)
Impairment (Note 7) HEMET) - (4,037) - (859) - - - (4,89)
Netbook amountasat  }2023%12A3184
31 December 2023 REFE 446,032 458,728 4474 54,165 5112 48,200 84,287 1,100,998
Asat31December2023  }2023£12A318
Cost B 509,864 635,999 14,903 80,688 15,106 138,896 84,287 1,479,743
Accumulated depreciation  EEHTE (6383)  (167056) (10429 (25239 (9.994)  (90,696) - (367,246)
Impairment WA - (10215) - (1,284) - - - (11,499)
Net book amount REFE 446,032 458,728 4474 54,165 5112 48,200 84,287 1,100,998
Netbook amountasat 1202451710 H
1 January 2024 REFE 446,032 458,728 4,474 54,165 5112 48,200 84,287 1,100,998
Additions RE 184 13,599 236 874 2473 2,406 235,608 255,380
Transfers upon completion 2R 1% &7 287 90,834 - - - 1,597 (92,718) -
Acquisition e - 6,300 405 195 - 83 414 1,397
Disposals RE (10) (3.492) 31 (110) (6) (8,466) (611) (12,726)
Depreciation (Note 8) & (fitzEs) (33,302) (67.430) (1,923) (13,024) (2419 (5,735) - (138%)
Impairment (Note 7) BT (593) (20,586) - (53) - (738) - (21,970)
Exchange realignment B AR - (17) (5) (V)] - (V)] (1) 27
Netbook amountasat  }2024512A3184
31 December 2024 REFE 412,598 477,936 3,156 42,045 5,160 37,345 226,979 1,205,219
Asat31December2024  12024512A318
Cost R 510,318 709,700 14,714 75,961 17,361 133,776 226,979 1,688,809
Accumulated depreciation  Z5HTE (97127 (206,245) (11,558) (33,506) (12,201) (96,431) - (457,068)
Impairment HE (593) (25,519) - (#10) - - - (26,522)
Net book amount FREE 412,598 477,936 3,156 42,045 5,160 37,345 226,979 1,205,219
DREGRESRIZRERD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment of the Group is
analyzed as follows:

BB IRR M

15. 3% - MERRMH )
AEEDX - BEIIBEOFEITLT :

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARKETTT

Cost of sales of goods $EERA 75,496 69,875
Administrative expenses BEEEA 48,133 37,764
Distribution and selling expenses CEE N HES 204 270
Total A% 123,833 107,909

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Construction in progress as at 31 December 2024 mainly
comprised of machinery (2023: machinery) being constructed
in the PRC.

The Group has capitalized borrowing costs amounting to
RMB1,423,000 on qualifying assets during the year ended
31 December 2024 (2023: RMB1,520,000) (Note 11). The
weighted average capitalization rate was 3.97% for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: 3.97%,).

Refer to Note 30 and Note 35 for information on non-current
assets pledged as security by the Group.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of buildings
without building ownership certificates was RMB4,725,000
(2023: RMB4,060,000). The Group is in the process to obtain
the certificates.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, an impairment loss
of RMB21,970,000 (2023: RMB4,896,000) was recognized for
certain property, plant and equipment. Impairment was fully
provided for the obsolete machinery and furniture and office
equipment with no alternative use by taking into account the
fact that these assets would not be economically viable for
their remaining life and there was no identified alternative
utilization, the directors of the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of these assets were nil and made full provision on
their carrying value.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2024

(a)

(b)

(0)

(d

(e)

R2024F 12 A3THNERTIREBBERE
PRSI EE (20234 ¢ 1#32) -
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3.97%) °

ERAEBERARRNIERDEES
B B2 30 M KEE35 ©

MR2024F12A318 - KEBREEMEERE
R FERMEE A AR 4,725,00070 (2023
F: ARM4,060,0007T) ° AEEIEAH
BIHEEE -

HZE2024F12A831B8IFE  ERHET
M BELREERREEEARE
21,970,00070 (20234 : A R#%4,896,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

16. LEASES
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
lessee.

(@) Amounts recognized in the statement of
financial position
The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position
in relation to leases are as follows:

16. A&

MM EREREAREESEEANEERE -

(a) REBARR KPRV

BRI & B BT E AR R & 2R

me

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETFT
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Land-use-rights T Hb(F A 437,337 447,445
Buildings BgF 35,135 12,263
Equipment % 1,628 1,121
474,100 460,829
Lease liabilities HEaE
Current E (9,619) (3,692)
Non-current FERE (19,826) (8,930)
(29,445) (12,622)

Additions of the right-of-use assets during the year
ended 31 December 2024 were RMB28,812,000 (2023:
RMB17,672,000).

HZE2024F 12831 BILFE - AENEHR
WA RE R ANRE28,812,0007T (20234 -
AR#17,672,0007T) °

DR ERSRIZERERD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

16. LEASES (Cont'd) 16. HE =
(b) Amounts recognized in profit or loss (b) REEZEFERNEEE
The amounts recognized in profit or loss in relation to leases REBETPERNEBEMRENSENT

are as follows:

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EHEEENE
Land-use-rights Tl A 10,108 11,550
Buildings BF 5,025 5,203
Equipment B 1,046 521
16,179 17,274
Interest expense (included in finance cost) M /EFZ (G ABVERA)
(Note 11) (HEE11) 719 648
Expense relating to short-term leases @Eﬂﬁ%jﬁ%ﬁsﬁf(ﬁ)\ﬁﬁ;gﬁ
(included in cost of goods sold, gﬁ?%;?%iﬁ)%%ﬁﬁ REE
distribution costs and selling expenses and T
administrative expenses) (Note 8) 17,853 17,833
Total amount recognized in profit or loss RBas R B S 34,751 35,755

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31
December 2024 was RMB29,679,000 (2023: RMB22,964,000).

(c) The Group's leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group lease factories, office buildings, warehouses and
equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 19 months to 6 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purpose.

(d) As at 31 December 2024, the carrying value of right-of-
use assets related to land-use-rights purchased from the
government of RMB155,230,000 (2023: RMB158,778,000)
and purchased from a third party of RMB282,106,000 (2023:
RMB288,667,000), has useful lives of 50 years stated in the
relevant land-use-right certificates. All the Group’s right-of-use
assets related to land-use-rights are located in the PRC.

(e) Refer to Note 30 and Note 35 for information on the land-use-
right pledged as security by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

17. GOODWILL 17. B8

Goodwill
mE
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Cost at 1 January 2024, net of accumulated R2024F 1B 1B BRI -
impairment HRRHRE -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 32) IR BE M B AR (Mi3E32) 4,269
Cost and net book amount at 31 December 2024 R2024F12A31 BN AR EREFE 4,269

As at 31 December 2024 12024512H831H
Cost AR 4,269
Accumulated impairment RERE -
Net book amount BREVFE 4,269
Impairment testing of goodwill R ZRRE R

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
konjac raw materials processing business cash-generating unit for
impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the konjac raw materials processing
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was 16% and cash
flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated using a growth
rate of 4%, which was the same as the long-term average growth
rate of the relevant industry.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the konjac
raw materials processing business cash-generating unit for 31
December 2024. The following describes each key assumption on
which management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year, increased
for expected efficiency improvements, and expected market
development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

BBEBATRBOEES KT EFRM T
R EELEMETRENH -

BES RAR N TR 2 B A B ) AT U (0 B BRIR
REEFEEETE  ZFIEEERASRERE
HESHMAFNUBEELSEENRERER
A BRARRERERAINIIRER16% - A
FUAENBRSRERAIERE4% ML - ZEE
TEMRBITENRATIHEREIAR -

STER2024F 12 B3 AWM EFEREMEIN T £5%
ReELBENFEREERAZERRE - LTIIR
ERESETAERERENATARSREEA
FTR I S TEE BRRER

BREEMNE -REEENEEBEENREEGN
HEESERBREFERN —FMERNTHERN
T RS EREE RIESmSEREM L

FEIRE —FARGIR R TR AT - WRBREIA R
BAEH S ERR -

ERERSRIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

17. GOODWILL (Cont'd)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Cont'd)
The values assigned to the key assumptions on the market

17. B8 %)

EEMRERR 2

DEEEFREME NI ESH T 53R KRR
development of the konjac raw materials processing business and BB EEEINLER IR —2 -
the discount rate are consistent with external information sources.
The management of the Group assessed that any reasonably possible REEEREN G - ZERFEMSIER e E
) I BFRMEINIEBRRSEESEN
MR A = R EL A 20244F 12 A31 H BV AERE AT Uk
ElE5E o

change in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of the konjac raw materials processing business cash-
generating unit to exceed its corresponding recoverable amount as
at 31 December 2024.

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. HhEEEE

Software

B

RMB’000

AR¥ET T

Net book amount at 1 January 2023 7A20235F1 51 A EREFE 21,445
Additions INE 1,802
Amortization (Note 8) #3H (MI7E8) (3,267)
Net book amount as at 31 December 2023 A2023F12 A31AWERERE 19,980

As at 31 December 2023 72023%12H31H
Cost BN 32,473
Accumulated amortization RETHEEY (12,493)
Net book amount BREFE 19,980
Net book amount as at 1 January 2024 7A2024F1 B 1B HEREFE 19,980
Additions NE 735
Disposal BE (1,417)
Amortization (Note 8) 35 (ff7E8) (2,079)
Net book amount as at 31 December 2024 72024512 A31 A WWERERE 17,219
As at 31 December 2024 A2024%12831H
Cost BN 31,611
Accumulated amortization REHE (14,392)
Net book amount BRENFE 17,219
Amortization of other intangible assets of the Group is analyzed as AEBHMEEEBHIITWT -
follows:

2024 2023

20245 20234

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETT ARETFT

Administrative expenses (Note 8) EEERH (M) 2,079 3,267
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 19. RERESHNEMTE
The Group holds the following financial instruments: NEEFETY 2amT A :

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
k=3 AR%T R AREETTT
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at amortized cost R ER AN ET 28
SREE
— Trade and other receivables — 8 5 M EMEWFRIE 20 61,533 90,307
— Cash and cash equivalents —BehBELEEY 23 841,717 526,193
— Restricted cash —XBRHEE 23 - 166
— Term deposits with initial term over  —¥#AHARR A =18 A LA -
three months B E BiTE X 24 4,425,780 4,164,110
Financial assets at fair value through A AR EEEE A E# &)t
profit or loss AEHERENEREE
— Investments in fund management
products —REESERE®D 33 - 122,820
5,329,030 4,903,596
Financial liabilities -l =Ri
Financial liabilities at amortized cost I ERAAEN SR EE
— Trade and other payables —B 5 ME M ENFIE 3.1 463,779 360,633
— Refund liabilities —RFEE 29 206,173 99,918
~ Lease liabilities —MHEBE 16 29,445 12,622
- Borrowings — &= 30 388,960 180,940
1,088,357 654,113
The Group's exposure to various risks associated with the financial NGB S R T EARRA R B IEE b i D M 3
instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum exposure to credit M - REHROSAEER B A & Lt
risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of each FHEMeRMEEMNIREE

class of financial assets mentioned above.

DR ERSRIZERERD A
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20. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

20. B 5 R HE M EWRIE R AN RIE

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Trade receivables: B S EWNIE !
Receivables from third parties FEWE =18 52,843 51,659
Loss allowance (Note 3.1) EE e (FI5E3.1) (5) 41)
52,838 51,618
Other receivables: HAeb U RE ¢
Deposits T 5,258 4,535
Proceeds receivable from sale of property, HEME  BE MRBHERIATES
plant and equipment oA - 460
Loans to third parties (d) RIEFE=FHERO) 200 200
Receivables from local government JEUE Ho BT 5R0R - 29,068
Others HAth 3,437 4,626
Loss allowance (Note 3.1) R (HFE3.1) (200) (200)
8,695 38,689
Prepayments: FAfRRIE -
Prepayments for raw materials R RHER 518 64,869 25,530
Prepayments for services AR IS TRI 5B 17,287 28,110
Input VAT recoverable RS ET IR 67,480 63,151
Prepayment for income tax FriGHiTa i #Ia 42,184 4,433
191,820 121,224
253,353 211,531
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

20. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

(@

(d)

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their
carrying amounts are considered to be approximate their fair
value.

Trade receivables primarily arise from credit sales of products.
The Group usually deliver products to distributors after they
have made the payment, while for direct sale customers, the
credit terms are generally up to 90 days. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. The balances of trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing. All the trade receivables of the Group are
from third parties.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the aging analysis of the
trade receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

20.

B REMBWRERANREZ)

(a) AMBENEAEUGRIEMEIEE®R - HIR
EEREREE DA EEIM

(b) BRRERATIERBERNEEHE
AEBAERNEHEBENRRAELRZINE
mo MEREHEEF  AIRTEESR F
EH—MRTHIB0E - XEBWEBEEE
SRR S SR A AR R E
BERHGM - EHREFIREHR/RE ©
AEEMAESRWFIRIGREE=T] -

M2024% K% 2023512 A318 - ENEER
HE 5 IERGIBRER ST T ¢

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Trade receivables: B2 ENRUE ¢
Within 90 days 90HN 47,392 40,344
91 to 180 days 91£180H 5,451 11,315
52,843 51,659

Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses for trade receivables. The loss allowance
for trade receivables at amortized cost was not material during
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. Note 3.1(b)
provides details about the calculation of the allowance.

Loans to third parties were unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

() BEREEHO
A B8 A BB B IS 3RS AR R ) B OTR AL Ak
B HEWFIBEF2BBEEFRE - 1520245
N2023F 12 A31 B IEFEMIREBIENAFTER
B S RBEEBEFET TERX  MitE3.1(b)#H
7B BT EEERFS -

(d) RHFE=FNERREER - T EE
mERERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

21. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 21. EfERBEE

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREETTT
Prepayments to suppliers of property, MY - BB KRR E RS 8
plant and equipment TEfSFRIA 60,270 4,343
22. INVENTORIES 22. 78
Our inventories mainly include raw materials and packaging BFITF S E BB RBEMF - B
materials, finished goods, goods in transit and semi-finished goods, R EYRFm  RREMHREEMRBE
with raw materials and packaging materials being the major SHPHES ©
component.
31 December
12A31H
2024 2023
2024F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTFT
Raw materials and packaging materials FEME R B 728,545 341,270
Finished goods and goods in transit K REEEY 136,723 71,291
Low-value consumption goods EESESD 12,994 7,332
878,262 419,893
The costs of individual items of inventories are determined using FEERIE B AN TR A E -
weighted average costs.
The cost of inventories recognized as an expense and included in HE2024F1N2ANBUEFE  FEXR
cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2024 amounted to BRAERAIUFAHEEXNANESEARA
RMB2,581,344,000 (2023: RMB1,922,757,000) (Note 8). R ¥ 2,581,344,000 7t (2023 F : AR #

1,922,757,00070) (Bi3¥8) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED CASH

23. BERBESEYUARZIRHRE

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Cash and cash equivalents: ReRELEEY:
Cash at bank RITRE
- RMB —AR® 721,495 463,255
- Uusb —E7T 89,896 59,529
—HKD —HTT 24,838 3,409
— Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR") —EEE(EREE]D 5,488 -
841,717 526,193
Restricted cash ZRERE
- UsD —T - 166
Cash at bank can be redeemed by the Group within a short-term. RITREAIRAEERNEHAED -
DREERSRIZRBR D
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24. TERM DEPOSITS WITH INITIAL TERM OVER

THREE MONTHS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

24. NHBRB=MEA X ELNEHER

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
2024F 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Current assets REBEE
Term deposits with initial term over WA AR A =18 A LA LAY
three months TEBITE R
- RMB — AR 763,175 515,560
- USD —E7T 776,235 1,078,527
— HKD —B7T 4,649 -
- IDR —EfeE 2,307 -
1,546,366 1,594,087
Non-current assets EREEE
Term deposits with initial term over MIEHABR B =& A LA /Y
three months TEBITER
— RMB — AR 2,879,414 2,385,305
- USD —27T - 184,718
2,879,414 2,570,023
4,425,780 4,164,110

The carrying amounts of term deposits with initial term over three
months approximated their fair value, since the interest receivables
on these term deposits with initial term over three months is either
interest bearing at rates close to current market rates or the term
deposits with initial term over three months are of a short-term
nature.

As at 31 December 2024, the term deposits with initial term over
three months that denominated in RMB were at the fixed interest
rates ranged from 1.50% to 3.55% (2023: 2.65% to 4.13%).

As at 31 December 2024, the term deposits with initial term over
three months that denominated in USD were at the fixed interest
rates ranged from 4.25% to 5.56% (2023: 5.05% t0 5.90%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

Number of
ordinary shares,
issued and Nominal value
fully paid of ordinary shares
ERTRHE
WEERHE EEREE
usD
=
Authorized EE
Shares of USD0.00001 as at 1 January 2023, #2023%F1H1H -
31 December 2023, 1 January 2024 and 2023% 127318 ~ 20244
31 December 2024 1A18X2024%12A31H
1B £0.00001 E LA 5,000,000,000 50,000
Nominal Equivalent
Number of value of nominal value of
ordinary shares  ordinary shares  ordinary shares
EERHE EEREE EEREEEE
usD RMB
EYn ARM
Issued =<y
At 1 January 2022 $202241 A18 2,092,612,007 20,926 137,499
Issuance of ordinary shares upon the REHRORRENHTIRE
supplemental pre-IPO investments BITE R 157,626,890 1,576 10,367
Issuance of ordinary shares for REZR B B ETE
RSU Scheme BITEBAR 4,509,681 45 296
Issuance of ordinary shares related to PO {TEE R ABEE G
ERK 96,397,000 964 6,684
As at 31 December 2023, 1 January 2024 20234128318 ~ 2024%F
and 31 December 2024 1A1BX%2024F12R31H 2,351,145,578 23,511 154,846

The movement of paid-in share capital is shown in the table below:

ERBRARBEIERIA TR -

31 December

12H31H
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETT
Beginning and end of the year FMRER 155 155
DREERSRIZRBR D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

26. OTHER RESERVES 26. Hi{#E

Notes

i3

As at 1 January 2023 R202351818 2,114,849 (1,745) 217,034 717,947 3) 57927 3,226,009
Profit appropriation to statutory ~ FIEHBE AT BGEE

surplus reserves - - 154,769 - - - 154,769
Dividend declared and paid BERREANRE (831,599) - - - - - (831,599
Share-hased payments PR RS

-value of employee senices  EERBEE 10 - - - 89,981 - - 89,981
Deferred tax impact related to share-£2eJ[B & 3 (TH0 LB 7 AREE

based payments o employees AR FEBNETHESE 3 - - - (484) - - (484)
Transfer to retained eamings ~~ EAZZFEF-

- eregistration of subsidiaries BRI - - (1,500) - - - (1,500)
Currency trandlation differences B 28 - - - - - 43,206 43,206
As at 31 December 2023 R2023E128318 1,283,250 (1,745) 430,303 867,444 ?3) 101,133 2,680,382
As at 1 January 2024 R202451518 1,283,250 (1,745) 430,303 867,444 3) 101,133 2,680,382
Profit appropriation to statutory ~ FEHBE AT BiEE

surplus reserves - - 106,690 - - - 106,690
Dividend declared and paid BERREMRRE (855,859) - - - - - (855,859)
Share-hased payments P OEE RS

- value of employee senvices  [EERBBA 10 - - - 36,197 - - 36,197
Transfer toretained eamings ~~ ERZRHRF-

- deregistration of subsiciaries  JBAAsE - - (554) - - - (554)
Currengy translation differences X £ - - - - - 42,631 42,631
As at 31 December 2024 R20245125318 427,391 (1,745) 536,439 903,641 3) 143,764 2,009,487
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

26. OTHER RESERVES (Cont'd)

(@)

(b)

()

Share premium

On 15 December 2022, the Company completed its IPO
by issuing 96,397,000 new shares with nominal value of
USD0.00001 each at a price of HKD10.56 per share. The
gross proceeds raised was approximately HKD1,017,952,000
(equivalent to RMB907,698,000), with which share capital was
increased by approximately RMB7,000 and share premium
was increased by approximately RMB907,691,000. The share
issuance costs directly attributable to the issuance of the new
shares amounting to RMB31,331,000 were charged to share
premium.

Statutory surplus reserves

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC, when distributing the net profit of each year, the Group
shall set aside 10% of its profit after income tax (based on
the PRC statutory financial statements and after offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years) for the statutory surplus
reserve fund (until the reserve balance has reached 50% of the
paid-in capital).

Statutory surplus reserves can be used to make up for the
loss or increase the paid-in capital after approval from the
appropriate authorities.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the portion of
the grant date fair value of RSUs granted to the directors
and employees of the Group that has been recognized in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in Note 2.16(d). Information relating to the share-
based payments is set out in Note 10.

26. EfbfEH )

(@)

(b)

(9

R =aE

2022412 A158 » KRR RIAERK10.5678
TLIEHK3£1796,397,000 % A% {£0.00001
ETTMFBD TR E R ARESE - B&E
S HEEY21,017,952,0008 7T (FHER A
R #907,698,0007T ) + £ A i% A 1 40 49
AR #7,0007T M AT AN 5 B nH A R
907,691,0007T ° BEITHR 7D EE EIEHIAR
DEITERAAARE31,331,0007T (B K5
EEHR) °

EEBERHEE

RIBEHBEMEBERER - RO IKSFFF
B AEERELEAERBHREEES R D
H10% KR PSR FIR (B o B E B
BRRLEBENEFORABERER B
ERFEHRTED BIR50%) ©

REERBHLER  XERBFEEATRA
RBAEIRSIE MBS

LURRAD B ERE AV R #

U RERONKEEEHERTAEHE
EENEEXBRHIBRNEMRETANA
REERD - ZEDEREMHME2.16(d)F
BULAR D /5 R B0 S SR R B & ST UK
TARER  BRANERD RERK N KK E
FHERBTEET0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

27. DEFERRED INCOME 27. EZEUWA

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREETTT
Beginning of the year F9 158,407 196,033
Government grants received BT B 2,603 5,184
Government grants returned ERIEBTHEE - (36,827)
Transfers to other income (Note 6) A H A A B FIE (FisE6) (6,686) (5,983)
End of the year FR 154,324 158,407
28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. ES K HEMENKIA
31 December
12H31H
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Trade payables: B EMNRIA
— Third parties —E=5 204,020 154,662
— Related parties (Note 36) — A (F3E36) 8,594 10,066
212,614 164,728
Other payables: HthfEAFRE -
Salary and welfare payables B e RAEF 282,361 262,432
Amounts due to a related party (Note 36) SRR 7 oA (MiEE36) 260 260
Deposits payables iz e 80,791 80,384
Freight charges payables JERHEE 24,371 17,584
Payables for purchase of property, BEEME - BEKERESN
plant and equipment FERFRIA 22,848 17,786
Tax payable JE 4T 3R 30,467 26,264
VAT payable related to contract liabilities A RAEEENEIGER 50,020 13,415
Utilities payables JERIKELR R E 15,673 10,612
Consideration payable for acquisition U g — M B R B e B
of a subsidiary (Note 32) (B5E32) 4,000 -
Others Hi 103,222 69,279
614,013 498,016
826,627 662,744
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd) 28. ES R HMBENFIE#)
The aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date is as HEAREHHNE SENZTIBEBSHTNOT
follows:

31 December

12A31H

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AR¥ETT

Within 90 days 90HA 212,614 164,728
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are considered to B 5N H N RIEAEEE(E RN E S B

be approximately their fair value, due to their short-term nature. BAEENABERS °

29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REFUND LIABILITIES 29. 4R&EREHER

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
2024F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET R ARBTFT
Contract liabilities (Note 5) ARBEMES) 391,137 106,425
Refund liabilities RFEE 206,173 99,918
597,310 206,343
(@) Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arose from advance (@ AEEMNEREEFERBENAAREHRE
payments made by customers while the goods have not mEE P TENTENRIE - MBEREIE
been provided. All carried-forward contract liabilities at the ENERAE—RINRKI2MEAER AR
beginning of the year were usually recognized as revenue in g °
the next 12 months.
(b) Refund liabilities of the Group mainly are volume rebate b) AEENEREEFERENELPAHE
payables to customers, which had not been paid at the end of RF - ERREHARMAREZN
the reporting period.
DREERSRIZRBR D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

30. BORROWINGS

30. &K

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETFIT
Current liabilities: REAE

Secured borrowings from bank BRI TER 2,945 1,980
Unsecured borrowings from bank MIERRITER 210,000 -
212,945 1,980

Non-current liabilities: FREBEE
Secured borrowings from bank BIRIBIRI TR 176,015 178,960
388,960 180,940

(@ The weighted average effective interest rates (per annum)
during years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as

follows:

(@) EZE2024F}2023F12A31HIEFERM

BTHBEENERIIOT

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
20244 20234
Borrowings from bank RITER 1.96% 2.18%

(b)  Secured bank loans of the Group which were guaranteed and

pledged are set out below:

(b) AEBEBERRBITERNOERLERER

T

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTFT
Guaranteed and pledged BEEREER 178,960 180,940

REEH 20244 2023512 A31 HHYIRTT

Borrowings from bank of the Group as at 31 December 2024
and 2023 were guaranteed by subsidiaries of the Company
or pledged by the land-use-right held by a subsidiary of the
Company (Note 35).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

30. BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

(¢)  The maturity of the borrowings is analyzed as follows:

30. fER#@)

(0)

ERHNBHEDHAT

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Within 1 year —FR
- RMB — AR 212,945 1,980
Between 1 and 2 years —EWF
- RMB — AR 176,015 2,945
Between 2 and 5 years ZERF
— RMB —ARKE - 176,015
388,960 180,940

(d) The fair values of the Group’s borrowings are not materially
different from their carrying amounts, since the interest
payable on those borrowings is either interest bearing at rates
close to current market rates or the borrowings are of a short-
term nature.

(e)  The borrowings from banks are all at fixed rate during the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. Details of the Group’s
exposure to risks arising from current borrowings are set out in
Note 3.

(f)  The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowings during the reporting period.

(d

(e)

)

R % EE KA BN N S TR E 5T I5
MEBENN R ERZEERB RN
B wAKEERN AR BEREREE

HZE2024F K 2023F 12 A31H I FERER
TEFE BETEFIE - REBEBEIE K
EENRBRFIBHNHES

i

RBEHA - REB DB TEERNTH
2

4

¥

B

ERERSRIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED 31. BB SERIEILEFIEHARE

INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

The deferred income tax assets and liabilities balance as at 31

R2024F }2023F 12 A31BWIRIEFSHEE

December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: KaEEsmT
31 December
12A31H
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Gross deferred income tax assets RIEFTST B ELRR 99,610 102,294
Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities RIBHUEIR EHUERE TSR
pursuant to set-off provisions A& (77,386) (79,611)
Net deferred income tax assets RIEASHEEFE 22,224 22,683
Gross deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTETH B R (203,193) (172,973)
Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities IRABH B AR E SO IR FTS B
pursuant to set-off provisions aE 77,386 79,611
Net deferred income tax liabilities FIEATS TR B BT (125,807) (93,362)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED 31. EiEFiEHSERIELEEHAE &)
INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

Movements in deferred income tax assets during the reporting RIREHAREEFTEMEENEEIT
period are as follows:

Impairment Tax Lease Unrealized  Deferred
Deferred income tax assets of assets losses liabilities Accruals profits income Total
BEMEHER EERE BHEFR HERE  EPEE AERAE BERA fit

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARWTr ARMTR ARRTn ARMTR

As at 1 January 2023 #2023F181A 1,861 23,553 1,326 67,391 6,099 34,928 135,158
Credited/(charged) to REBETEA/ (308)
profit or loss 2,47 (511) 1,585 (28,057) 518 (8,162) (32,380)
Credited directly to equity BRI AER - - - (484) - - (484)
As at 31 December 2023 120235128318 4,108 23,042 2911 38,850 6,617 26,766 102,294
As at 1 January 2024 202451818 4,108 23,082 2,911 38,850 6,617 26,766 102,29
Credited/(charged) to RBEREA/ (k)
profit or loss 4,268 454 368 (10,187) 2,494 (81) (2,684)
As at 31 December 2024 120245124318 8,376 23,496 3,279 28,663 9,111 26,685 99,610
Deferred income tax assets have not been recognized for the Group’s AR AREBR2024F 12 A31BEFRBRELMNAT
tax losses arising in the PRC of approximately RMB6,452,000 as at SHEIBHARYE,452,0007T(20234F + AR
31 December 2024 (2023: RMB6,422,000), that will expire in one to #£6,422,0007T) + R —ZERFREIE - A
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. JEARFERTAAE - B0 AR Z E BB RRIEL
TIREE -
Movements in deferred income tax liabilities during the reporting RIEBARERMEHaENESNT -

period are as follows:

Accelerated Unrealized
tax Right-of-use investment ~ Withholding
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation assets income tax Total
EEEHAE IEHBHE EREEE ABRANRERA Stilt &t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TTR AR¥TT AR¥TR AR¥T R
As at 1 January 2023 R2023F1R18 (97,364) (1,492) (13,973) - (112,829)
Charged to profit or loss REZHIR (6,292) (1,618) (11,107) (41,127) (60,144)
As at 31 December 2023  #2023%12831H (103,656) (3,110) (25,080) 41,127) (172,973)
As at 1 January 2024 R202451818 (103,656) (3,110) (25,080) (41,127) (172,973)
Charged to profit or loss BRI (1,339) (327) (14,072) (70,326) (86,064)
Transfer to tax payable BEEEATR - - - 55,844 55,844
As at 31 December 2024  #2024%12831H (104,995) (3.437) (39,152) (55,609) (203,193)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

32. BUSINESS COMBINATION 32. ¥KE6f
On 25 June 2024, the Group acquired a 100% interest in PT 202468258 » NEBBEIFLE = HUEPT
Banshang Technology Jawa Timur (“Banshang”) from independent Banshang Technology Jawa Timur([ Banshang|)
third parties. Banshang is engaged in the primary processing of #1100%E %5 ° Banshang it =B ES- R M A A9 #0H0
konjac raw materials. The acquisition was made as part of the T ZWBEANEBEBEIIHFRIEN 2D - %
Group's strategy to support its business. The purchase consideration WEE=ENES HE AR S ARK28,000,000
for the acquisition was in the form of cash of RMB28,000,000, with 7T Heh AR®24,000,0007T 2 72 2024F7 A%
RMB24,000,000 paid in July 2024 and RMB4,000,000 remained i T AKRE4,000,0007T522024F12 A31 817
unsettled as at 31 December 2024. REETS o
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Banshang as RUEE HEf - Banshang® Al iR EEN B &
at the date of acquisition were as follows: BAREBENT :
Fair value
recognized
on acquisition
WS R RS
WA REE
Notes RMB’'000
B aE AREETTT
Property, plant and equipment VI~ BB Mk iE 7,398
Right-of-use assets CRAEEE 835
Other non-current assets HihIEmENEE 771
Trade, other receivables and prepayments B 5 & E A EWSRIE R IE FUE 2,793
Inventories FE 17,168
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESEEY 34,259
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMFER IR (9,388)
Contract liabilities and refund liabilities ARBBNMERERE (29,518)
Current income tax liabilities ANEAF S BB R (587)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value LAA S EERT 2R #5268
FEEMHE 23,731
Goodwill on acquisition g E 17 4,269
Satisfied by cash AR & 21+ 24,000
Satisfied by consideration payable LAFER S B S 28 4,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont'd)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a
subsidiary is as follows:

32. E¥adtie)
KEHBARNREREATMT :

RMB’000
AREBTT
Cash consideration paid during year ended 31 December 2024 HE2024F12A31HIEFE
SR S EHE (24,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WEERE RIReSEY 34,259
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash flows HE2024F 12310 IEFE
from investing activities during the year ended 31 December FTAREESAMSREREN
2024 R kB2 EBYRNEE 10,259

Since the acquisition, Banshang contributed nil to the Group’s
revenue and contributed loss of RMB3,435,000 to the Group’s
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year
ended 31 December 2024, the revenue from operations of the
Group and the profit of the Group for the year would have been
RMB6,397,222,000 and RMB1,078,311,000, respectively.

B UBE LA SR - Banshang ¥ R & B Ay R A I &
B WAREBEE2024F12A31BIEFEHE
HHR B E B E 18 A R 3,435,0007T °

HAEHREE2024F12 A31 H L FEFARE
17 AEEFRELERARFBEES RIAARE
6,397,222,0007t & AR #1,078,311,0007T ©

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of the Group’s goodwill at the RBERY AR EERENRMENERSE
beginning and end of the reporting period is presented below: AT -
RMB’000
ARBTFT
Gross carrying amount REAE
At 1 January 2024 MR2024F1A1H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary W EEHTE A ) 4,269
At 31 December 2024 R2024%12H31H 4,269
Accumulated impairment losses Rt REEE
At 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 20241 A1 2024512 A31H -
Net book value BREEE
At 1 January 2024 202441 A18 -
At 31 December 2024 H2024%12A31H 4,269
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

33. CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(a) Cash generated from operations

33. B RBEH
(a) EEFEESE

2024 2023
20244 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARET T AREETTT
Profit before income tax PSR AT RIS 1,561,253 1,279,272
Adjustments for: MTFIREFELRE
Impairment losses on property, plant  #1% - HiE R EN

and equipment AR R 7 21,970 4,896
Depreciation of property, plantand ¥ - BiRE RREITE

equipment 15 123,833 107,909
Amortization of other intangible assets i 2 & E 8 18 2,079 3,267
Amortization of right-of-use assets (RS 16 16,179 17,274
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HE¥% « BB &

equipment HAEREIE 7 6,109 245
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets HE&EFREEER

B 8 6,810
Loss on disposal of other intangible HEHEMEREEES

assets 7 1,417 -
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial A4 EEAESAE

assets at fair value through EEIEt A HEEN

profit or loss ERMEENAREE

&8, () 7 120,061 (19,377)
Other income transferred from IRIEW A BE A B E A

deferred income WA 27 (6,686) (5,983)
Finance income, net BhE YA SRR 11 (160,236) (175,559)
Impairment gains on financial assets 4 @& &R E K 3.1 (36) (386)
Non-cash employee benefit expense  FEIREEEBFER —

— share-based payments AR B BT 5 3 9 36,197 89,981
Net foreign exchange losses b 3 s 18 F 28 7 26,540 8,906
Change in operating assets and KREEEREBEZ2E

liabilities:

Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash ~ F[RHIREH L~
(8 1m) 166 (166)
Decrease/(increase) in trade, other B 5 K E At lE Y 308 K2
receivables and prepayments EBRRIERL
(42) (30,770) 10,496
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL () (441,253) 179,370
Increase/(decrease) in contract ARIAENREREE

liabilities and refund liabilities a0, Gl ) 361,449 (18,918)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B 5 NE bR FRIE

other payables B0, Crid) 145,455 (5,402)
Cash generated from operations K& ERE 1,783,735 1,482,635
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

33. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing

activities

33. REREER (2
(b) BB EBHEBEYE

Balance as at 1 January 2023 M2023FE1A18 &8 (161,300) (5,304) (166,604)
Cash flows ReEnsE (19,640) 5,131 (14,509)
Additions NE - (17,672) (17,672)
Disposal HeE - 5,223 5,223
Balance as at 31 December 2023 420235128318 K&
and 1 January 2024 202451 B 18 &8 (180,940) (12,622) (193,562)
Cash flows Renh= (208,020) 11,826 (196,194)
Additions NE - (28,812) (28,812)
Disposal HE - 163 163
Balance as at 31 December 2024 20245128318 &8 (388,960) (29,445) (418,405)
DREGRESRIZRERD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

34. COMMITMENTS
(@) Contractual commitments
The Group has the following significant capital commitments

34. E&IE
(a) ERIFEE
AEEBER THIEKRE RFERIRE TR

not provided for as at the end of the reporting period. i AR o
31 December
12A31H

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTFT
Property, plant and equipment M - BRE KR 169,372 49,427

(b) Non-cancellable short-term leases and low-value
leases
The Group leases various offices, warehouses, buildings
and manufacturing equipment under non-cancellable leases
contracts.

The Group has recognized right-of-use assets for leases, other
than short-term and low-value leases, see Note 16 for further
information. The commitment about short-term lease and low-
value lease were as following:

(b) TARGEEHEEREEEES
ARERBFTHEOBEAARE S
WAZ A BTREERME -

BEfLEEERESN  NEECERE
EFEREEE  HtEMBLHME16 -
AR E REEEHENRENT

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETFT
Within 1 year —FR 4,455 5,097

35. ASSET PLEDGED AS SECURITY 35. AFREVNEFEE
The carrying amount of asset pledged as security for borrowings is: AEETEERNIEEEENERES
31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R ARETFT
Land-use-right T AR 89,849 91,836
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BB RS
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) EHEBAINRS
The Group had the following transactions with related parties NEREEAA - NEBHEBB AETTUAT
during the reporting period: X5
2024 2023
202445 20234
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T R ARBTFT
Property leasing MERE
A company controlled by the AR AR R HIRI 2 A -
Controlling Shareholders:
Zhumadian Pingping Limited (i) HEETEERBBRARI 2,827 2,827
Purchase packaging products REBOLEER
A company significant influenced by R HEA LN A] -
the Controlling Shareholders:
Luohe Delong Color Printing B EsE Y IR AR AT
Development Co., Ltd. (THEEEFRZED D i)
(“Delong Color Printing”) (ii)iii) 84,073 72,938
Notes: ks

(i) The prices for the rental fees were determined in accordance
with the terms and conditions mutually agreed by the contracting
parties.

(i) The purchases from the related parties were conducted in the
ordinary course of business and based on commercial terms
mutually agreed by the counterparties.

(i)  The above related party transactions also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

()  TEEMWERIRIERT K77 2R 5 E M FR

K AFAFEEER ©

(i) EBREETRBIORABEGBEFET
WIAZR 5 %15 H R 352 VR R IR RIRIE

(i) bt BARETT 32 5 AR LT AR RIS - P0A

BETAENBER S IFEBERS °
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2024 F#f

203



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 36. B AR S (2)
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties (b) EARFEEH HIREZEER

The Group has the following significant balances with its 20245 K2023F 12 A31H » REEE
related parties as at 31 December 2024 and 2023: TEHEBH M E SRS

31 December

12A31H
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBTFT
Balances due to related parties: FETRERSE S 456k -
Trade and other payables B RAMETE
Non-trade related HE SR
A company controlled by the AR R IEHIHI 2 7] -
Controlling Shareholders:
Zhumadian Pingping Limited HEEETFFRMERAT 260 260
Trade related ME S HE
A company significant influenced by SRR FEA ZEmy 1 F] -
the Controlling Shareholders:
Delong Color Printing EmEERED 8,594 10,066
8,854 10,326

As of 31 December 2024 and 2023, amounts due to related H22024F K%2023F12A318 » E

parties were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand BT IE R EER PR EERESRE
and were related to the transactions as disclosed in Note 36(a). E o W36 HENR S B -

EAREIE A S HM
RRMEEA - BREROHMESIAT -

() Key management personnel compensation (o)
Key management compensation for the reporting period is set
out below:

2024 2023

2024 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTFT

Wages and salaries TERS® 34,066 34,333
Discretionary bonuses BIBIEAT 32,352 4,170
Contributions to pension plans BRSETEIH R 724 535
Welfare and other expenses B REMFEY 680 502
Share-based payment expenses PARR 7 AR E BRI R 2 21,933 62,184
89,755 101,724
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

37. SUBSIDIARIES 37. B AR
The Group's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2024 are set out R2024% 128318 - A&EBEFEWB AT HT
below: N
Place of
Establishment Equity interest held
Date of and type of Principal activities and by the Company
Name of subsidiaries establishment  legal entity place of operation Registered capital ~ as at 31 December
R TEED ARRN2A31H
WEAREH Ava=p wIN-kid REEEHE SREE FERAEL

2024 2023
20248 203F

Directly held by the Company

FARRERRE

HH Global Holdings Ltd. 2018-07-09 British Virgin Investment holding, UsD1 100% 100%
slands, limited British Virgin Islands
liability company

MAERER A 018F7A9H  RBARRES - REER 12T 100%  100%
BREFRF KBRS

EFeng Capital Ltd. 2018-06-28 British Virgin Investment holding, UsSD1 100% 100%
Islands, limited British Virgin Islands
liability company

SLERERAT 018F6A280 RBAARES - REER 1%T 0 100%  100%
EREERT REERARES

Weilong Investment Holdings Ltd. 2024-04-15 British Virgin Investment holding, usb1 100% 100%

Islands, limited British Virgin Islands
liability company

DAREERERAA 2024F4A158  RBARRES - REER 1ET 100%  100%
BEREALH ERERRNS

Yizheng Innovation Management Ltd. 2024-04-15 British Virgin Investment holding, usb1 100% 100%
Islands, limited British Virgin Islands
liability company

—FEFERBRAT 024F4A158  RBARRES - REER 120 100%  100%

BREERT RBARARES

Indirectly held by the Company

TRAEERE

HH International Enterprise Limited. 2018-07-19 Hong Kong, limited  International trading, HKD100 100% 100%
liability company ~ Hong Kong

MMBEIRSEXERAA 218F7A198 &% BIRE% &4 10057 100%  100%
BREERR

EFeng Investment Development limited 2018-07-10 Hong Kong, limited  Investment holding, HKD100 100% 100%
liability company ~ Hong Kong

HERARRARDA 2018574108 &% AR &R 10087 100%  100%
BREERR
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

37. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

The Group's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2024 are set out

37. B E](#)
R2024F12 8310 » KEBEEHE R A5

below: (continued) W ()
Place of
Establishment Equity interest held
Date of and type of Principal activities and by the Company
Name of subsidiaries establishment  legal entity place of operation Registered capital ~ as at 31 December
BIBER TEEE ARNFAR12A318
WEAREH B B 5 EARRER REEEHE AMER BFERAEL
2024 2023
2024F  2023F
Indirectly held by the Company (Cont'd)
RABEEE ()
Luohe Weilong Delicious Industry Development ~ 2018-08-31 Henan, PRC, Investment holding, USD66,060,000 100% 100%
Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as “Luohe wholly- Mainland China
Hehe Foods Technology Co., Ltd.") foreign-owned
enterprise
BIIRFREXEREIERAGA A 201858A31H  HETH REER 66,060,000%7T  100%  100%
[ZAANRmRRAEREERR]) NEEELE HEIARE
Luohe Weilong Commerce Co., Ltd. 2014-07-11 Henan, PRC, limited Trading of food, RMB300,000,000 100% 100%
liability company ~ Mainland China
AT ABEAR AT 2014878118 FETE - RmX 5 HEAE  AK$3000000000C  100%  100%
BREAATA
Henan Weilong Foods E-commerce Co., Ltd. ~ 2017-07-12 Henan, PRC, limited  Trading of food, RMB30,000,000 100% 100%
liability company ~ Mainland China
TEELRmEEEHERARAT 017F7A128  HETH - REXZ REAE  AK¥%30000000C  100%  100%
BEREALR
Luohe Weilong Meiwei foods Technology 2019-01-22 Henan, PRC, limited  Trading of food, RMB20,000,000 - 100%
Development Co., Ltd. liability company ~ Mainland China
B IR RRREHBREREREALA 201918228 FETE RmR 5 PEAE  AR¥20,000,0007 - 100%
BREEAA
Luohe Ping Ping Foods Co., Ltd. 2004-09-09 Henan, PRC, limited Manufacture and sale of RMB120,000,000 100% 100%
liability company ~ food, Mainland China
BT TFRREREELT 2004F9R98  HEWH - RMZERHE - AR#120,0000007C  100%  100%
BREMAF HEIARE
Luohe Qinzui Foods Co., Ltd. 2010-06-24 Henan, PRC, limited  Manufacture and sale of RMB30,000,000 100% 100%
liability company ~ food, Mainland China
BURERMERLA 2010F6A248  HETH - RBERHE - ARH30,000000C  100%  100%
BREERR HEIARE
Luohe Weilai Foods Technology Co., Ltd. 2013-11-11 Henan, PRC, limited Manufacture and sale of RMB30,000,000 100% 100%
liability company ~ food, Mainland China
BIERREREBERAR 2013F1MANAB FETE - RIMBERHE - ARH¥30,000000C  100%  100%
BREFAT hEIARE
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

37. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

The Group's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2024 are set out

37. B E](#)
R2024F12 8310 » KEBEEHE R A5

below: (continued) wmr ()
Place of
Establishment Equity interest held
Date of and type of Principal activities and by the Company
Name of subsidiaries establishment  legal entity place of operation Registered capital ~ as at 31 December
BIBER TEED ARARR12A31H
WEAREH F{L B 5 EARRER k20 HMER BERAEL
2024 2023
2024F  2023F
Indirectly held by the Company (Cont'd)
RAMERE (8
Luohe Lewei Seasoning Processing Co., Ltd. 2017-07-31 Henan, PRC, limited Manufacture and sale of RMB20,000,000 100% 100%
liability company  food, Mainland China
B TERERRMTERAF 01778318 HREEH - RmEERHEE ARM¥20,0000000  100%  100%
BREALH HEIARE
Luohe Lewei Agricultural Foods Processing 2017-07-31 Henan, PRC, limited Manufacture and sale of RMB50,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. liability company  food, Mainland China
BAEREENNIERAR 2017674318 FEE RBERHE - AR%50,000,000C  100%  100%
EREERT REIARE
Luohe Weidao Foods Technology Co., Ltd. 2018-07-11 Henan, PRC, limited Manufacture and sale of RMB250,000,000 100% 100%
liability company ~ food, Mainland China
BAEHRMHRERAR 018F7ANA  HRETH - RMBERHE - AR#250,000000C  100%  100%
BREALHA BN
Zhumadian Weilai Foods Co., Ltd. 2017-07-20 Henan, PRC, limited  Manufacture and sale of RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
liability company ~ food, Mainland China
BEEARRRARAT 2017%7A208  HETH - RAZERHE  FE  ARH10000000  100%  100%
BREERF N
Luohe Xinglin Foods Co., Ltd. 2019-12-25 Henan, PRC, limited  Trading of food, RMB200,000,000 100% 100%
liability company ~ Mainland China
BAAHRRBRAT 2019128258 HETE - RmZ 5 HEAE  AK$2000000000C  100%  100%
BREFAT
Luohe Weilong Biotechnology Co., Ltd. 2020-06-12 Henan, PRC, limited  Research and RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
liability company ~ development,
Mainland China
BAm LR ENRIERAT 2020F6A120  FEE - B - mEAE AR¥1,000000  100%  100%
BREERR
Shanghai Weilong Meiwei Biotechnology 2020-05-18 Shanghai, PRC, Research and RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. limited liability development,
company Mainland China
HEDRERENREERAR 2020457188 HELE Bra - mEARE AK#1,000000C  100%  100%
BREMAT
DREGRESRIZRERD A
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31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

37. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 37. B AR ()
The Group's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2024 are set out R2024% 128318 - A&EBEFEWB AT HT
below: (continued) W ()
Place of
Establishment Equity interest held
Date of and type of Principal activities and by the Company
Name of subsidiaries establishment  legal entity place of operation Registered capital ~ as at 31 December
BBER TEEE AARMM2A318
WEAREH 2 vl=p EARRER REEEHE HMER BERAEL

2024 2023
2024  2023%F

Indirectly held by the Company (Cont'd)

RAMERE (8
Shanghai Weilong Meiwei International 2020-05-18 Shanghai, PRC, Trading of food, RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
Commerce Co., Ltd. limited liability Mainland China
company
LRI ERERAERRAELA 202058188 HELSE RmR5 AR%1,000000  100%  100%
BREALH HEIARE
Shanghai Weilong Information Technology 2021-01-22 Shanghai, International trading, UsD2,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. PRC, wholly- Mainland China
foreign-owned
enterprise
HEDRERRARAR 21F18220 HELE BRES 2,000,000 100%  100%
NEBERE lEVNS
Nanning Weilai Commerce Co. Ltd. 2021-02-05 Shanghai, PRC, Trading of food, RMB1,000,000 - 100%
limited liability Mainland China
company
HEMERBERRAA 22162858 HELE Rmi 5 RERE AK%1,000,0007 - 100%
BREFAF
Weilong Foods (Luliang) Co., Ltd. 2021-02-19 Yunnan, PRC, Manufacturing and sale RMB100,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability of food, Mainland
company China
ErReRm (EREK) ARAR 2021528198 FEZER ReSHENHE - AR#100,0000007C  100%  100%
BREMAT REIARE
Shanghai Weilong Digital Technology 2021-05-26 Shanghai, PRC, International trading, RMBS8,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. limited liability Mainland China
company
DEDRBFHERERAF 2021554268 FE LS HRES  PEARE AK?8,000000T  100%  100%
BREAAF
Shanghai Weidao Trade Co., Ltd. 2021-12-20 Shanghai, PRC International trading, RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability Mainland China
company
HERNESRREEAT 20215128208 FELS - BRES  PEAE AK#1,000000C  100%  100%
BREFAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

37. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 37. BT )
The Group's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2024 are set out R2024% 128318 - A&EBEFEWB AT HT
below: (continued) PONNENE=))!
Place of
Establishment Equity interest held
Date of and type of Principal activities and by the Company
Name of subsidiaries establishment legal entity place of operation Registered capital ~ as at 31 December
BIBER TEREE AQFAR12A318
WEARERE KA EABREL RiEEHS fER FERE#ER

2024 2023
2024F  2023%F

Indirectly held by the Company (Cont'd)

*AABERE (8

Luohe Honglong Trading Co., Ltd. 2023-06-09 Henan, PRC, limited Manufacture and sale of RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
liability company ~ food, Mainland China

BATARBEARAR 2023F6R98  HETE - RAMERHE AE#1,000000C  100%  100%
BRELAF EPNS

Guangzhou Jilong Food Co., Ltd. 2023-08-04 Guangzhou, PRC,  Manufacture and sale of RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability food, Mainland China
company

BEMEERRERAR 2023%F8H4R  HEEM RuSERFE AR#1,000000  100%  100%
BREERF REIARE

Sichuan Spicy Master Brand Management 2023-08-15 Sichuan, PRC, Brand Management, RMB1,000,000 100% 100%

Co., Ltd. limited liability Mainland China

company

W)= RS E B EREAAT 2023%8A158  HEM - mEER - REAE AE#1,000000T  100%  100%
BREALHA

Beijing Spicy Master Commerce and 2024-03-14 Beijing, PRC,limited  Brand Management, RMB1,000,000  90.50% -

Trade Co., Ltd. liability company ~ Mainland China

MR RHBEEREART 224F3R148  HELR mEERE - EAE ARH1,000,000  90.50% -
BREERF

Honglong International Holdings Ltd. 2024-04-17 Cayman Islands, Investment holding, USD50,000  90.50% -
limited liability Cayman Islands
company

BB ERERAT 202447178 REHE- REER  REHE 50,000%7T  90.50% -
BREMAT

Fulong Global Investment Ltd 2024-04-29 British Virgin Investment holding, usbt  90.50% -
Islands, limited British Virgin Islands
liability company

Fulong Global Investment Ltd 2024648290 EB4RREE . RESR: €T 90.50% -
BREERR REERRNS

Red Loong Global Holdings Private Limited 2024-05-10 Singapore, limited  Investment holding, Singapore Dollar ~ 90.50% -
liability company ~ Singapore ("SGD") 2,000

Red Loong Global Holdings Private Limited 2024F5R108  FTA0E - RARR - 2% 2,000%7 %7 90.50% -
BREERT (TFmgl)

DR ERSRIZERERD A
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37. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

The Group's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2024 are set out

37. B E](#)
R2024F12 8310 » KEBEEHE R A5

below: (continued) W ()
Place of
Establishment Equity interest held
Date of and type of Principal activities and by the Company
Name of subsidiaries establishment  legal entity place of operation Registered capital  as at 31 December
RIBER TEED AARMM2A318
WEAREH B B EINL-EoE REGEH HMER BERAEL
2024 2023
2024F  2023F
Indirectly held by the Company (Cont'd)
FRAABESE (£
Red Loong Asia Pacific Trade Private Limited 2024-05-27 Singapore, limited  Trading of food, SGD2,000  90.50% -
liability company  Singapore
Red Loong Asia Pacific Trade Private Limited 202458278 #jn - RMRS 3 2,0005TI%7T  90.50% -
BRELAF
PT Zhengxin Industrial Investment Ltd 2024-06-07 Malaysia, limited ~ Investment holding, IDR1,000,000,000  90.50% -
liability company  Malaysia
PT Zhengxin Industrial Investment Ltd 2024F6R78 BRAL B  HRAEE  1,000,000,00080EF  90.50% -
EREERF
Hefei Spicy Master Trading Co., Ltd 2024-09-26 Anhui, PRC, limited - Brand Management, RMB1,000,000  90.50% -
liability company ~ Mainland China
AEMEFMHEERAF 2024%9A268  REZE mEEE - REKE ARH1,000,0007C  90.50% -
BREAALHA
Xi'an Weilong Trading Co., Ltd 2024-12-17 Shanxi, PRC, limited  Trading of food, RMB1,000,000  90.50% -
liability company ~ Mainland China
ARIRHERERAT 204F 128178 REIFRA RmX % PEIRKE ARH1,000,0000  90.50% -
BREERF
PT ZhengXin Trade Indonesia 2024-06-26 Malaysia, limited ~ Trading of food, IDR10,000,000,000  90.50% -
liability company ~ Malaysia
PT ZhengXin Trade Indonesia 2024F6A260  HRED RMR 5 HREZ  10,000,000,0005EE  90.50% -
BREERA
PT Banshang Technology Jawa Timur 2019-09-25 Malaysia, limited ~ Manufacturing and sale  IDR10,000,000,000  90.50% -
liability company ~ of food, Malaysia
PT Banshang Technology Jawa Timur 2019F9A8258  HRAD RmBERHE - 10,000,000,00050/E%  90.50% -
BRELRA i ik
PT Shangde Technology Indonesia 2024-12-13 Malaysia, limited ~~ Manufacturing and sale  IDR10,000,000,000  90.50% -
liability company ~ of food, Malaysia
PT Shangde Technology Indonesia 2045128138 BRES RmBUERHE - 10,000,000,00051E&  90.50% -
BREEAA SRER

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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37.

38.

SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

The English names of the companies registered in the PRC represent
the best efforts made by the management of the Company to
translate the Chinese names of these companies as they do not have
official English names.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

37. B =)&)

RepEE R A AN LB E B BY K
SAFDXEBOBLBE - REARSLRE
EFS &R

FEFIEEER AT BV EAEEENEETTY
RAREADHEEFEL ARG BAR -
5% BEIBIRRTR - SO 5 A A B A A
ZEHE -

8. ARAMBMRRKRRFEEEB

(a) ARTBEIBARREK

31 December

12H31H8
2024 2023
20245 20234
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mozt ARETT ARETFT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIBRAFHEE 410,273 276,887
Term deposits with initial term of — ¥#AHARR A=18 A LA L
over three months B E BiTE K 481,449 -
Total non-current assets EMBEERE 891,722 276,887
Current assets REBEE
Trade, other receivables and B 5 R HEMEWFIER
prepayments TEfTFRIB 354,303 165,746
Financial assets at fair value through A X4 BEEE 2 A #
profit or loss FTAEHIEE
SREE - 122,820
Term deposits with initial term of — #WAEAR A=1E A LA L&
over three months FHTER 557,328 1,141,307
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY 7 35,498
Total current assets MEVEERE 911,638 1,465,371
Total assets EEHAE 1,803,360 1,742,258
ERERSRIERERAT

2024 F#f
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2024 20245 12AH31H

(a) ADBIMBARRFK#)

38. XRABBMRAKRRFEED 2

(Cont’d)
31 December
12A31H
2024 2023
2024F 20234
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
FMosE AR®T T AREFT
Liabilities aE
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payable E 5 N HMERFRIE 11,540 7,076
Total current liabilities MEEELREE 11,540 7,076
Total liabilities B &R 11,540 7,076
Net assets BEFE 1,791,820 1,735,182
Equity Em
Share capital &N 155 155
Other reserves EhfERE (b) 1,516,206 2,301,115
Retained earnings/(accumulated BEREF
losses) (REHEE) 275,459 (566,088)
Equity attributable to owners ViN/NEIEZE DN
of the Company FE(h R 1,791,820 1,735,182
Total equity A 1,791,820 1,735,182
Total equity and liabilities EERkEEREE 1,803,360 1,742,258

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38. AATMBRRRRFHEES 2
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)
(b) Reserve movements of the Company (b) QBB ESE

Asat 1 January 2023 ©2023F1 818 2,114,849 30,632 777,463 3) 72,831 2,995,772
Dividend declared and paid EERMKTRRE (831,599) - - - - (831,599)
Share-based payments-value of - LARR /7 B ELRE 8 50—

employee services RERKEE - - 89,981 - - 89,981
Currency translation differences [& 5 Z58 - - - - 46,961 46,961
As at 31 December 2023 #2023F12A31H 1,283,250 30,632 867,444 ®3) 119,792 2,301,115
As at 1 January 2024 R2024%181A 1,283,250 30,632 867,444 (3) 119,792 2,301,115
Dividend declared and paid BEERMKSTRRE (855,859) - - - - (855,859)
Share-based payments-value of LARR(R AER K —

employee services EERKER - - 36,197 - - 36,197
Currency translation differences [& 5 258 - - - - 34,753 34,753
As at 31 December 2024 R2024F12831H 427,391 30,632 903,641 (3) 154,545 1,516,206

DR ERSRIZERERD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
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39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

39. EENEANRER
() ESM=

For the year ended

31 December 2024

BZ21E1A3NBLEE

Executive directors: HITEE

Mr. Liu Weiping AETEE - 8,784 - - 87 81 8,952

M. Liu Fuping URTEE - 8,784 - - 87 81 8,952

Mr. Sun Yinong*** Sk - 4,560 9,186 (17,495) n 80 (3,598)

Mr. Peng Hongzhi YRERE - 1,963 5,641 10,447 83 81 18,215

Mr. Yu Feng* SELE - 1212 5232 7170 58 58 13,730

Mr. Liu Zhongsi kbt - 2,158 5,185 11,879 84 81 19,387

Mr. Chen Lin** i v - 607 - 3,013 26 22 3,668

- 28,068 25,244 15014 496 484 69,306

Non-executive directors: FATEE:

Ms. Xu Lil G2t Len 264 - - - - - 264

Mr. Zhang Bihong KRAEE 264 - - - - - 264

Ms. Xing Dongmei JiES:T 264 - - - - - 264
792 - - - - - 792
792 28,068 25,244 15,014 49 484 70,098

* Mr. Yu Feng was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 25 April 2024.

**  Mr. Chen Lin resigned as an executive director of the Company

on 25 April 2024.

**% Mr. Sun Yinong will resign as an executive director of the
Company subsequent to 31 December 2024, thus the related

share-based payment expenses were reversed accordingly.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd) 30. EENRA R ER )

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) () EEM=E )
Welfare,
Share-based ~ Contribution medical
For the year ended Discretionary payment  to pension and other
31 December 2023 Fees Salaries bonuses eXpenses plan eXpenses Total
B
E=2i) e R/ BE
HENBENANALER e ¥ BEEL  MRRx HEMR RAMEX it

RMBOOD  RMB000  RMB'OO0  RMB'OOD  RMBOOD  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETL  ARBTL ARETR ARMTR ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR

Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Liu Weiping AETEE - 8,784 - - 79 67 8,930
Mr. Liu Fuping URTEE - 8,784 - - 78 67 8,929
M. Sun Yinong EEELE - 4,560 %0 17839 68 6 23493
M. Peng Hongzhi R - 2479 38 12,200 68 6 1519
Mr. Chen Lin EHEE - 1,562 960 10,784 68 66 13,440
Mr. Liu Zhongsi AnBRAE - 2,132 557 13,605 68 67 16,429
- 28301 2,859 54,428 429 399 86,416
Non-executive directors: FHIEE -
Ms. Xu Lil Bt 239 - - - - - 239
Mr. Zhang Bihong KWL 239 - - - - - 239
Ms. Xing Dongmei LS 3 239 - - - - - 239
mni - - - - - mni
mni 28,301 2,859 54,428 429 399 87,133

IRERERERERDF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2024 2024412 A31H

39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd)
(b) Directors’ retirement and termination benefits
There were no retirement benefits paid to or receivable by any
director in respect of their other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits
There were no termination benefits paid to or receivable by any
director during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for
making directors’ services available
No payment was made to the directors for making available
the services of them as a director of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors
There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings entered
into between the Group and the directors and in favour of the
directors during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2024 (2023: Nil).

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by
the board of directors on 27 March 2025.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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39.

40.

41.

EENENRER#)

(b) EEMEMRRBEBER
HE2024F12A31BILFE - TEBEARD
RIS EM B AR EHEERENE MRS
M E B A EERRARNE
F(20234 : 4&) ©

() EE=BERER
HZE2024F12A31BILEE - WERIT
fA] 28 3 S A AT o] 3 S5 AR O BE B AR
(2023F : &) o

(d) BESEEHREMETFE=Z TS
B
HZE2024F 12831 B ILFE @ BEARKS

EAARRESREREMEESELA

FR(2023%F : 4#) -

I

(e) BALESAZTRAZRER - £8
MEHMRZ2ER
HZE2024F12R831HIEFE - AEBERE
EZHBEITIVNEEASZANTME
K EERREAMI S (2023F ¢ &) o

) ESERRS ZHLERFPHWEK
S
RERFINEE2024512 A31 B IHEEH
ERERE - A FEEA R AER—FA
AAREEREFEENEERAENR
ENIAARAEEEBNEARS &%
PERAE(20234F « ) o

HEEE
20244 220235124310 » RNEEEE(AS
ASA B -

AU FES
EFEDH202593 827 B LA R TS B SR
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